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DIT Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively, “the Group”) (stock
code: 726HK) is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

The Group positions itself as a leading integrated service provider
in smart building, as well as an innovative high-tech enterprise
that specializes in business throughout the entire value chain of
prefabricated construction (“PC"). We are the first listed company
in the prefabricated construction industry. The main business of
the Group covers smart prefabricated manufacturing,
landscaping services and decoration. The Group has already set
up several smart PC plants nationwide. It runs 19 self-operated
PC plants and several plants owned and operated by franchisees.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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The Group provides green buildings and one-stop home solutions
as our key mission and is dedicated to the strategic presence
nationwide to seize the opportunities form construction
industrialization in China during the 10-year golden era, and
achieve such industrialization, informationalization and
technologicalization of the construction industry with the
application of technology collaborations among various parties.
We aim to transform traditional construction from “on-site” to
“precast components+on-site assembly” mode, bringing
unprecedented change to the construction industry.

“Developing Brilliant Living” is our corporate value and we aim to
facilitate the upgrade and transformation of the modernization of
the construction industry. With our commitment to the creation
of the largest modernized operating platform of the construction
industry in China, we strive to give shape to the new construction
industry which is environmentally friendly, highly efficient and at
top quality by the process of informationalization with the
seamless combination between technology and building. The
Group has set up several smart PC plants nationwide, and is the
industry leading enterprise in terms of the number of smart
production lines. The Group's technologies and products receive
wide recognition from our clients. The Group currently provides
its service for projects under construction with site area of 6
million square metres in China.
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With the consistent adherence to its development strategy of
“driving development with leading technology”, the Group is
equipped with the five most advanced core technology systems
specific to the industry of prefabrication construction in the world
with the Group’s possession of a plenitude of core technologies
ranging from BIM in the context of intelligent construction, the
Internet of Things, Big Data to artificial intelligence. The number
of the Group’s patents has been continuously ranking first in the
prefabricated construction industry. The Group has the one and
only R&D center at provincial level in the industry, as well as the
pilot smart manufacturing R&D platform.

The Group is dedicated to provide safer, more comfortable and
smarter living experience through its continuing technological
innovation.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of the Group, | am pleased to
report the consolidated results of the Group and present a
business review for the year ended 31 December 2021(“the
Year").

In 2021, in the face of the repeated challenges of the global
COVID-19 pandemic and the complex international economic and
social situations, China continued to consolidate the
achievements in pandemic prevention and control and economic
and social development, showing a stable and positive trend.
China’'s GDP increased by 8.1% year-on-year, and the total
economic volume exceeded RMB 110 trillion.
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In December 2021, the Central Economic Work Conference
proposed to “promote the construction of affordable housing and
support the commercial housing market to better meet the
reasonable housing needs of home buyers”, insisting on high-
quality development and seeking progress while maintaining
stability. The role of the construction industry as a pillar industry
of the national economy has been continuously enhanced.
According to the data released by the National Bureau of
Statistics of China, in 2021, the total output value of the national
construction industry was RMB 29.3 trillion, a year-on-year
increase of 11.0%;, the construction area of houses in the national
construction industry was 15.75 billion square meters, a year-on-
year increase of 5.4%.

Under the strategic guidance of “Dual Carbon Goals" and
“Construction Industrialization”, China is driving the green
transformation and high-quality development of the construction
industry with policies. The “14th Five-Year Plan” for Development
of Building Industry once again clearly emphasized that by 2025,
the proportion of prefabricated buildings in new buildings will
reach more than 30%. As an important solution for energy
conservation and carbon reduction in the construction industry,
the green building method, mainly prefabricated buildings, will
usher in significant development opportunities and bring huge
growth potential to the Group.

In 2021, we will adhere to the development strategies of “home
intelligence” and “technology leading”, and deepen the
development of prefabricated buildings. All core indicators have
achieved steady growth. In 2021, the Group recorded operating
revenue of HK$2,085 million, a year-on-year increase of 91.4%,
the gross margin rose 51.8% from a year earlier to HK$524
million; the net profit attributable to the parent company was
HK$132 million. Specifically, revenue from PC components and
patent licensing amounted to approximately HK$1,421 million, an
increase of 44.5% compared with 2020; with the improvement of
the business layout of the whole industry chain, the decoration
and landscaping services achieved an operating income of nearly
HK$551 million.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Collaborate with Glodon to develop a one-stop digitalized
platform in prefabricated construction industry. In 2021, Glodon
became the second largest shareholder of the Group. The
cooperation between the two parties has moved from the
business level to the strategic level, and started the joint
operation of the digital business of prefabricated buildings. Of the
HK$288 million in the subscription, part of the funds were
earmarked for digitalization and software development related to
the construction industry, and other funds were mainly used for
the operation of directly-operated factories.

Ccontinue to deepen the layout, and steadily increase the scale
and efficiency. During the year, 19 factories were directly
operated and put into operation by the Group, an increase of 4
from the beginning of the year (Dengfeng, Qijiang, Huidong,
Shipeng), and all of them achieved profitability. With the influence
of brand and policy support, the production and sales volume
and sales contract value of PC components increased
significantly.

In 2021, the Group successfully won the bid for the eleventh
batch of joint procurement of China Urban Realty Association,
signed a strategic cooperation agreement with East China Branch
of the China Construction Fifth Engineering Bureau, and the 23rd
Metallurgical Construction Group Co., Ltd. of Minmetals, and
established a joint venture with its partner Dongzhu Ecological
Environment Protection Co Ltd. The business foundation of each
segment of the Group continued to be consolidated.

Improve product competitiveness and DIT branding. During the
year, the Group held the Home Ecological Conference,
participated in several industry summits such as the 4th Summit
Forum on China Smart Construction and Building Industrialization
Development, appeared at the China (Changsha) International
Prefabricated Building and China (Zhengzhou) Prefabricated
Building and Green Building Technology Products Expo, and held
the “DIT Cup” industrial worker skills competition in Nanjing,
Hefei and other places. During this period, DIT has received
extensive attention from the government, customers, peers,
experts and scholars, and the media, which greatly enhanced the
influence of the Group.
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During the year, the Group won a number of awards including
the "Best Sustainable Development Award” and “Most Valuable
Industrial Manufacturing Company”. Three new factories
(Changsha, Zhoukou and Foshan) were set up, and a total of 9
factories were rated as national high-tech enterprises; 1 new
factory (Ruyang) was set up, and a total of 8 factories were
honoured as provincial-level prefabricated construction industry
demonstration bases; 6 factories were honoured as provincial-
level enterprises characterised by specialty, refinement,
unigueness and novelty, 2 factories (Yuxi, Decoration) were
honoured as provincial-level technology-based small and
medium-sized enterprises; dozens of products from 3 factories
(Nanjing, Zhoukou and Jiaozuo) won the “China Green
Construction Materials Certification”.

Accelerate technological innovation and strengthen core
development drive. In July 2021, the Group set up a national-level
post-doctoral scientific research station to actively introduce and
cultivate high-end scientific and technological talents; the double-
cycle production line independently developed by the Group was
selected as one of the “First Batch of Typical Cases of Innovative
Services for New Technologies and Products of Intelligent
Construction” by the Ministry of Housing and Construction; the
“13th Five-Year Plan” project undertaken by the Group, “R&D of
Automatic Combination Forming Technology and Equipment for
Reinforcement Frame of Wall Panel Components”, was
recognized as “international advanced level” by the expert group.
As of December 31, 2021, the number of patent applications of
the Group for this year was 118, and the cumulative number of
patent applications reached 1,908, ranking first in the industry for
seven consecutive years.

In 2022, driven by the strategy of “Dual Carbon Goals” and
“Building Industrialization”, the prefabricated building industry
will usher in new development opportunities. The Group will
continue to adhere to the corporate positioning of “provider of
integrated smart building solutions”, steadily promote the
expansion and construction of the park, continue to improve the
level of technology research and development and equipment
informatization, continue to improve organizational efficiency
and capacity utilization, and continuously improve product profit
margins and overall profit levels.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Intelligent construction and green construction will become the
mainstream trend of the future development of the building
industry, and technological innovation will become the inherent
requirement of the transformation and upgrading of the building
industry. In 2022, the Group will focus on the strategy of “home
intelligence” and strive to achieve standardized design, factory
manufacturing, specialized construction, platform-based
procurement, refined management and smart operation in the
entire industry chain, form digital overall solutions for the
prefabricated building industry, empower the high-quality
development of building industrialization, and contribute to the
realization of the strategic goals of carbon peaking and carbon
neutrality.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to the staff for their hard work and
dedication in the past year. | would also like to express our
gratitude to all shareholders, investors and other business
partners for their continuing support and trust to the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
DIT Group Limited

Liu Weixing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEmE

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December

FERERME

BE1+-HA=1+—HILFE

2021 2020 Changes
—E-—fF —E-FF #E
Revenue (HK$'000) WA (F&T) 2,085,226 1,089,284 91.4%
Gross profit (HK$'000) EM(FET) 524,155 345,204 51.8%
Gross profit margin ViR 25.1% 31.7% -6.6*
Net profit (HK$'000) sw A (FET) 138,977 169,966 -18.2%
Net profit margin i | 2R 6.7% 15.6% -8.9*
Profit attributable to equity shareholders HEmiEE ARG R
(HK$'000) (F#&T) 132,375 158,833 -16.7%
Basic earnings per share (HK$ cents) GREARAF CEW) 4.66 5.67 -17.8%
Diluted earnings per share (HK$ cents) SRESE AT GEN) 4.66 5.67 -17.8%
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT (el BiRREIE
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December RI+ZA=+—H
2021 2020 Changes
—F-- —E-TF 25
Total cash (including cash and cash wiRe (BRERE &
equivalents and restricted bank deposit) REFEBEE AR
(HK$’000) BRHIFR)(FET) 649,068 663,495 -2.2%
Total assets (HK$'000) BEMBRE(TET) 7,560,802 5,213,352 45.0%
Total liabilities (HK$'000) afE®sE(FErT) 4,199,505 2,391,768 75.6%
Total equity (including non-controlling R BRE (BIEFEER
interest) (HK$'000) W) (FET) 3,361,297 2,821,584 19.1%
Total debt (HK$°000) BEs1B%8 (FET) 2,298,499 1,425,301 61.3%
Current ratio @ MENE R O 113.7% 147 1% -33.4*
Net gearing ratio @ FEELREO 50.8% 30.2% 20.6*
Net asset value per share (HK$) SREEFECET) 1.08 1.01 0.07*
Equity attributable to equity shareholders EZ=EE AL
per share (HK$) SR RERS CET) 0.86 0.77 0.09*
Notes: Bt -
* Change in percentage points * BOLLEH

(1 Calculated based on the total current assets divided by the total current

liabilities
2 Calculated as set out on page 24

) RRBEERINERDEE

2 HEREFZ2REAUER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREMRR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year 2021 coincides with the first year of the “14th Five-Year
Plan”. The country vigorously promotes the high-quality
development of the building industry and sets carbon peak and
carbon neutrality targets in response to climate change.
Benefiting from the accelerated implementation of policies, the
demand is getting stronger in the prefabricated building industry.
With the Group’s leading full-industry chain business model and
technological advantages, the Group's business scale has grown
significantly in 2021 and its operating efficiency has steadily
improved. For the year ended 31 December 2021 (“this year”),
the Group recorded sales revenue of approximately HK$2,085
million, a year-on-year increase of approximately 91.4%, and its
gross profit rose approximately 51.8% from a year earlier to
approximately HK$524 million.

I.  The whole industry chain features perfect
business layout, and the production and sales of
prefabricated components maintain rapid growth.
The Group has been deeply engaged in the field of
prefabricated building, committed to technological
innovation and the development of collaborative business
model across the whole industry chain, and has actively
explored the business of smart gardens and smart
decoration, doubling the order volume this year and
promoting performance growth. The Group continued
deepening its PC business layout and increasing its regional
layout in the Yangtze River Delta and the Greater Bay Area
this year, with its market share in the Greater Bay Area
leading the market, laying the foundation for the Group's
business orders. This year, contract sales of prefabricated
components rose approximately 74% on a year-on-year
basis to approximately RMB2.501 billion; annual production
of prefabricated components reached 430,000 cubic
meters, increased by about 40% year-on-year. As of 31
December 2021, the Group has put into operation a total of
19 direct intelligent PC factories nationwide, with a design
capacity of 1.16 million square meters. The overall
utilization rate of prefabricated components production
capacity is about 47%. The Group accelerated the
expansion of its prefabricated components production
business by means of franchise, joint venture and asset-
light model, successfully signed with one leased factory,
one asset-light factory, and four franchised factories, and
continued to improve the Group’s production capacity
layout around the nation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

With its excellent product quality and service capability, the
Group won the bid of the China Urban Realty Association
("CURA") in June 2021, becoming the bid winner of a
project, the 11th joint procurement project of CURA. The
winning of this bid provided the Group with the opportunity
to speed up project signing and implementation in the
prefabricated building services and prefabricated
components supply business. The Group also signed
strategic cooperation agreements with a number of
institutions this year, including the East China Branch of
China Construction Fifth Bureau, 23rd Metallurgical
Construction Group of Minmetals, Shanxi Interior
Decoration Association and Shanxi Jinduofu Real Estate
Co., Ltd., to further expand the network of major customers
and drive the soaring of the annual contract amount. In
addition, the Group set up a joint venture with Dongzhu
Ecological Environment Protection Co Ltd at the end of
September, namely, Henan Dongzhu Drawin Ecological
Environment Protection Limited, to accelerate the
development of smart garden business. As a scientific and
technological innovation enterprise in the building industry,
the Group appeared at the China (Changsha) International
Prefabricated Building and Construction Technology Expo
to exhibit its exploration and development achievements in
the entire industry chain of prefabricated buildings and a
series of achievements in green construction.

Glodon became a shareholder to accelerate the
transformation of digital intelligence of buildings
In August 2021, the Company signed a subscription
agreement with Glodon (Hongkong) Software Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China’s largest engineering
cost software company Glodon Company Limited
("Glodon”), and completed the closing in November. Glodon
subscribed for 300,000,000 shares issued by the Company
through its subsidiary, accounting for 9.67% of the issued
share capital. The net amount raised is about HK$288
million, of which HK$20 million will be earmarked for the
development of SaaS software for the prefabricated
building industry, and the remaining amount will be used as
working capital and for the operation of smart factories.
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Relying on Glodon's leadership in China’s building
engineering digital intelligence market, coupled with the
Group's years of practical experience in the field of
prefabricated building, the Group will polish the leading
digital intelligence technology in the industry jointly with
Glodon to develop SaaS software in the prefabricated
building industry, empower the Group’s entire industry
chain business with Glodon'’s digital intelligence technology,
realize the integrated development of “digital intelligence +
industrialization”, create an industry-oriented integrated
vertical platform across the industry chain, and accelerate
the transformation of digital intelligence of buildings.

Advantages of leading scientific research deepen
the strategy of home intelligence

The Group positions itself as a “provider of integrated smart
building solutions” and adheres to the “technology leading”
development strategy. Since the announcement of the
“home intelligence” strategy in 2020, the Group has relied
on the technological innovation and integration of the core
production sections of the entire industry chain of
prefabricated buildings, and is committed to achieving
standardized design, factory manufacturing, professional
construction, platform procurement, refined management
and intelligent operation in the entire industry chain to
realize the comprehensive upgrade of building quality,
construction period and cost, and create an innovative
collaborative model across the industry chain. As of 31
December 2021, the number of patents independently
developed by the Group totalled 1,908, increased by 6.6%
from 2020, ranking first in the industry. The Group reduces
prefabricated building costs and improves building quality
with leading research and development and design.

BfEEMEETHEETREECHISNE
Bl - M ANEEERENZEENS F
MEBRLR  SEREEMERSITESRL
TTENBERM AEEREARETE
SaaS ¥t - #S EH =M BUE (il B SR
MEPEXEER  BE [BEL+EXE]N
BARER  ITEERATRNE2EREMR —
BTG - IEREEEELEL -

- ARNREDR  RMEREEHK

REBNU S EREERBATERBER ]
R ETEA - BFE [ B E L ] B8R B -
EEE-T-TFAMIREE ] BEEAKR
KIEERABRE2EXRZOEERSOR
REFAMERK - N EE2EFXETREEL
FE - IRb8GE - FEEI - FAbR
B RBAEERE - BeelbiEe  BEREEE
2 THNMRANSEAR  TEAFZE
¥EHpRAER - BHE_T=-—F+ A
=+—H1E - AEBEZF B EHENFTNE
ERE T _TFIEN6.6%EF1,90818
BETES AL AER AT KR RRE
RECFRERR - IR RERE -



EREENREFERAT ~ —B-—FFRH

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In April 2021, the “Flexible Manufacturing Technology and
Demonstration of Complex-shaped Concrete Parts and
Components based on a Standard Production Line
Transformation”, as one of the topics of the national key
R&D programme in the"13th Five-Year Plan” undertaken by
the Group, was accepted by a panel of experts and was
assessed to reach the international advanced level. Flexible
components production line can adapt to the efficient
production of complex and multi-category prefabricated
components. It offers a new solution for the production of
components in PC factories. The prefabricated components
produced by the demonstration production line have been
widely applied in prefabricated building projects in
Zhengzhou, Jiaozuo, Luoyang, etc. In July, the Group set up
a national post-doctoral research station to recruit and train
post-doctoral researchers in scientific research and
production. The Group actively introduces and trains high-
end technological talents, strengthens the industry-
university-research cooperation between enterprises and
universities, solves the difficulties in the industry, and
makes every effort to promote the application of high-tech
projects and to promote the high-quality development of
the prefabricated building industry. In December, the case
of “Application of DIT Group Double-cycle Prefabricated
Concrete Component Production Line in Jiaozuo Factory of
DIT Group” independently developed by the Group was
successfully selected as the first batch of typical cases of
innovative services for new technologies and products of
intelligent construction by the Ministry of Housing and
Construction. This production line is the first in the industry
and has been authorized by 26 patents, including seven
invention patents, covering process methods, apparatus,
complete logistics, control system and intelligent detection,
etc. It is one of the most advanced intelligent production
lines in the industry.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The national dual-carbon policy accelerates the growth
of the prefabricated building industry

China has put forward the strategic goal of “3060" carbon peak
and carbon neutrality, and the building industry is one of the key
areas for carbon reduction. Driven by national policies, the
prefabricated building industry is regarded as an important
solution for energy saving and carbon reduction in the building
industry. In the past six years, local governments in various
provinces and cities have continued to increase their efforts to
launch schemes or plans to support the development of
prefabricated buildings. The comprehensive advantages of
prefabricated buildings in green and environmental protection
will be further highlighted. In the future, the Group will continue
to seize the new opportunities of dual-carbon, accelerate the
research and development and application of prefabricated
building technology, and accelerate the green transformation and
upgrading of the building industry.

The Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development issued the
“14th Five-Year Plan” for Development Planning of Building
Industry in early 2022, which clearly requires that by 2025,
prefabricated buildings account for more than 30% of new
buildings. Moreover, the Central Economic Work Conference
insisted on high-quality development and seeking progress while
maintaining stability, emphasizing “to promote the construction
of affordable housing and support the commercial housing
market to better meet the reasonable housing needs of home
buyers”. With the expansion of the industry scale, under the
economies of scale, prefabrication costs may be gradually
reduced, and the green and prefabricated building industry will
usher in major development opportunities, bringing growth
potential to the Group.
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Consolidate the business development across the
industry chain and accelerate the realization of digital
intelligence advantages

On 12 March 2021, the central government issued the “14th Five-
Year Plan” and the outline of the “Long-range objectives through
the year 2035", which clarified the general direction of the
building industry in the future, i.e. prefabrication, green and low-
carbon, information technology, and new industrialization.
Intelligent construction and green construction will become the
mainstream trend of the future development of the building
industry, and technological innovation will become the inherent
requirement of the transformation and upgrading of the building
industry. The digital intelligence of prefabricated buildings has
become a new track in the building industry during the “14th
Five-Year Plan” period.

Looking forward to the future, the Group will continue to focus on
prefabricated building technology, continue to deploy intelligent
digital factories in various provinces and cities across the
country, improve the production capacity, expand third-party
customers for prefabricated components, smart gardens and
smart decorations, accelerate the layout of its prefabricated
components factories through direct selling, franchising and
asset-light models, actively explore new projects, realize new
business growth, expand its market share in the country, and
lead the Company’s business into stable growth.

The digital intelligence of prefabricated buildings has become a
new track in the building industry during the “14th Five-Year Plan”
period. In the future, the Group's research and development focus
will shift from technology research and development to product
research and development. Through the research and
development of products based on the two major structural
systems in terms of construction period, cost and quality, the
Group will aim to reduce costs and increase efficiency, and use the
advantages of the whole industry chain to create core competitive
products. With the help of the Group's digital intelligence platform,
we will focus on breaking through the data-driven business, and
through the iteration of digital intelligence system applications and
the continuous accumulation of data, we will initially form an
influential overall solution for digital intelligence in the field of
prefabricated buildings. We will formulate carbon emission
reduction plans and integrate our own technologies to provide
complete and sustainable green buildings for real estate
enterprises. In addition, Glodon’s shareholding and cooperation in
the research and development of digital intelligence products will
speed up the implementation of the Group’s “"home intelligence”
strategy and form an overall solution for digital intelligence in the
prefabricated building industry.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Results

The principal activities of the Group are prefabricated
construction work, decoration and landscaping services, granting
licenses, consulting services and sales of equipment in the
People’s Republic of China.

Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately 91.4%
from approximately HK$1,089.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$2,085.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The significant increase in revenue
was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in the operation for the
manufacture and sale of prefabricated components and the
continuous increase in the production capacity utilized by
technology parks during the year; (i) a significant increase in the
income of licenses and consulting services; and (iii) additional
income from connected transactions regarding decoration and
landscaping services. As a result, the Group recorded sales
revenue for year ended 31 December 2021 of prefabricated
construction units of approximately HK$1,322.6 million (2020:
approximately HK$915.3 million), decoration and landscaping
services of approximately HK$551.5 million (2020: approximately
HK$37.4 million), granting licenses of approximately HK$98.1
million (2020: approximately HK$67.7 million), consulting services
of approximately HK$79.0 million (2020: approximately HK$27.2
million), rental income of approximately HK$21.3 million (2020:
approximately HK$13.7 million) and prefabricated construction
equipments of approximately HK$12.7 million (2020:
approximately HK$28.0 million).

Cost of sales

The Group recorded cost of sales of approximately HK$1,561.1
million (2020: approximately HK$744.1 million) for the year ended
31 December 2021. The increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in sales of prefabricated construction components and
revenue from the decoration and landscaping services, while the
corresponding cost of sales also increased at the same time; as
the additional plants which have been in its initial operation were
in low production volume, the increase in each fixed expense
therefore resulted in the increase of cost.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately
HK$179.0 million from approximately HK$345.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$524.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The gross profit margin
decreased to 25.1% in 2021 from 31.7% in 2020. The decrease in
gross profit for this year was mainly due to an increase in raw
material costs, increased by about HK$185 per cubic metre due
to the increase in the price of steel.

Other income

The other income of the Group increased by approximately
HK$5.8 million from approximately HK$11.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$17.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021. Other income mainly
comprised of interest income from a related party of
approximately HK$10.8 million and interest income arose from
bank deposits of approximately HK$5.4 million.

Other gains — net

For the year ended 31 December 2021, other gains — net
amounting to approximately HK$8.5 million mainly comprised of
(i) gains on disposal of equipments of approximately HK$5.5
million; (ii) fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$3.2 million; (iii) gains on
disposal of right-of-use assets of approximately HK$1.2 million;,
and (iv) net exchange losses of approximately HK$1.1 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses amounted to approximately
HK$91.2 million (2020: approximately HK$69.9 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The increase in expense was primarily
attributable to the increase in regional salesforce, the increase in
salary and the number of plants in operation and growth of
income with the significant growth in transportation fees for
product sales.
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Administrative expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the administrative
expenses increased by 45.1% to approximately HK$192.2 million
from approximately HK$132.5 million in 2020, which was mainly
attributable to an increase in staff expenses, partially due to an
increase in personnel due to the addition of subsidiaries,
resulting in an increase in costs, and a significant growth in
equity incentive expenses, while the remaining increase was
attributable to the increment of other general administrative
expenses, such as rental expenses, professional fee,
entertainment, travelling expenses and office expenses etc.

Finance costs

Finance costs of approximately HK$56.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 represented (i) the interest expenses
of approximately HK$97.9 million for the borrowings; (ii) the
finance charges of approximately HK$4.6 million on the lease
liabilities; and (iii) capitalisation interest of approximately HK$45.7
million in plant under development for prefabricated construction
business for the year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$461.4 million (2020:
approximately HK$443.9 million) and the current ratio of the
Group is 1.1 (2020: 1.5).

As at 31 December 2021, the borrowings of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$2,179.3 million (31 December 2020:
approximately HK$1,380.0 million) and the net gearing ratio,
calculated as net debt divided by total equity, is 50.8% (2020:
30.2%).

Capital Structure

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 25 July 1991. The capital
structure of the Group comprised issued share capital and
reserves. Details of the share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 19 November 2021, the Company issued and allotted
300,000,000 new shares (the “Subscription Shares”) of the
Company to Glodon (Hongkong) Software Limited for cash at
subscription price of HK$0.96 per Subscription Share (the
"Subscription”) (representing a premium of approximately 33.33%
to the closing price of HK$0.72 per Share as quoted on the Stock
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Exchange on the date of the subscription agreement). The net
proceeds from the Subscription (after deducting the expenses
incurred in the Subscription) amounted to approximately
HK$287,500,000. The Company intends to apply the net proceeds
from the Subscription: (i) as to HK$90,000,000 for digitalization
and software development in relation to the construction
industry, and (i) the remaining amount for working capital and
other general corporate purposes. There had been no change in
the intended use of net proceeds as previous disclosed in the
Company’s announcements. The details of the use of the net
proceeds from the Subscription are set out below:
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As disclosed in the announcement dated 20 August 2021, the
Group will, from time to time, explore collaboration opportunities
with strategic investors and partners to create synergies with,
and complement, the Group's existing business and future
business development. Glodon is a top rank market leader of
construction engineering informationization in the PRC. The
Board believes that there is considerable potential for business
collaboration and synergies between the Group and Glodon's
group, which may lead to greater operational efficiencies and
complement the Group’s business expansion plan. The additional
funds brought to the Group from the Subscription can strengthen
the financial position and broaden the capital base of the Group
to facilitate its business operations and development.
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Structure of Borrowings and Deposits

The Group continued to adopt a prudent principle on financial
management and centralise our funding and financial
management. Therefore, we maintained a high proportion of
cash with a reasonable level of borrowing. As at 31 December

BERFHERE

2021, the repayment schedule of the Group’s bank loans and

lease liabilities was as follows:
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B ARBUEFSESEBALE - URERE
AENEBKE R_Z-_—F+=-_A=+—8"
REBBTERMAEAED

SHESMPH

ERFHIT

As at As at
Repayment Schedule BEREFEY 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
R-B-—-% i
+=-A=+-H +-A=+—8©
HK'000 HK'000
FET FET

Bank borrowings RITEN
Within one year —FR 838,158 386,999
More than one year, but not exceeding two years ~ — A H{ERBBME 412,626 375,895
More than two year, but not exceeding five years M LA HERBBEF 784,516 545,839
More than five years BB hF 143,978 71,289
2,179,278 1,380,022

Lease Liabilities HERE
Within one year —FR 13,749 13,735
More than one year, but not exceeding two years ~ — & A H{ERBBMAE 10,946 7,784
More than two year, but not exceeding five years  MF LA FHERBBREF 30,297 11,184
More than five years HBRF 64,229 12,576
119,221 45,279
Total debt EHAE 2,298,499 1,425,301
Interest payable JERTFIS, 256 600
Less: deposit for bank borrowings w o RITIEERESR (130,000) (130,000)
Less: cash and cash equivalents W ReREEEEESR (461,351) (443,882)
Net debt RER 1,707,404 852,019
Total equity R 3,361,297 2,821,584
Net gearing ratio FEEEE 50.8% 30.2%
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Foreign exchange risk

Our business mainly operates in the PRC with most of our
transactions settled in Renminbi, and our financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars. Renminbi is not a freely
convertible currency. The State Administration of Foreign
Exchange, under the authority of the People’s Bank of China,
controls the conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies. The
value of Renminbi is subject to changes in central government
policies and to international economic and political developments
affecting supply and demand in the China Foreign Exchange
Trading System market. We do not believe that we currently have
any significant direct foreign exchange risk and have not used
any derivative financial instruments to hedge our exposure to
such risk.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.01 per Share for the year ended 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: Nil) to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”). The proposed final dividend will be submitted
for consideration at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Tuesday, 24 May 2022 (“AGM").
Subject to Shareholders’ approval at the AGM, the final dividend
will be paid on or around Monday, 13 June 2022 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Wednesday, 1 June 2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Dividend Policy, provided the Group is profitable and
without affecting the normal operations of the Group, the
Company may consider to declare and pay dividends to the
shareholders of the Company. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) shall take into account,
among others, the operating results, cash flow, financial
condition and capital requirements of the Group and the interests
of the shareholders of the Company. Declaration of dividend by
the Company is also subject to the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-
Laws of the Company and any applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be
proposed or declared in any specific periods.
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DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Except as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Business
Overview” above, the Group does not have any future plans for
material investments or capital assets as at the date of this
annual report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS

As of 31 December 2021, there were no significant investments
held by the Company, nor were there any material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during
the year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 770 (2020: 848)
employees excluding the Directors. 765 (2020: 843) of them
worked in Mainland China and 5 (2020: 5) of them worked in
Hong Kong, China.

Employees are basically remunerated based on the nature of
their job and their performance as well as the prevailing market
trend. Other employee benefits include mandatory provident
fund, medical benefits and year end discretionary bonus.
Following a people-oriented approach, we implement a
systematic recruitment, training and incentive platform, providing
internal fuel for the growth of the Company. In doing so, we
create a desirable workplace for our employees to develop and
flourish.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals

with highest remuneration are set out in Notes 11 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant assets
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities and bank
loan granted to the Group, except for the one as disclosed in the
Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2021, the Group was not involved in any
material litigation threatened against the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Weixing ("Mr. Liu"), aged 62, was appointed as an
executive Director on 21 August 2020. Mr. Liu is currently the
chairman of the Board. Mr. Liu has over 38 years of experience in
banking and finance.

Mr. Liu held positions of officer and vice division chief responsible
for industrial and commercial credit facilities in Luoyang Region
Center Branch of People’s Bank of China from 1979 to 1984. Mr.
Liu held several positions in Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China from 1985 to August 2016, including the vice president of
Luoyang Region Center Branch, the vice president of Sanmenxia
City Branch, an officer of Henan Province Branch, assistant to the
president of Henan Province Branch, the vice president of Henan
Province Branch, the president of Anhui Province Branch, the
president of Chongging City Branch, the president of Henan
Province Branch and the head of Internal Audit Department of
Main Branch. Mr. Liu was an executive director of Central China
Real Estate Limited (stock Code: 832)(“CCRE", together with its
subsidiaries, the “CCRE Group”) from March 2017 to August 2020.

Mr. Liu obtained a certificate of graduation in banking
management from Henan Banking College* (7] & 4R 1T £ #%) in
1979, a certificate of graduation in financial management from
Zhengzhou University in 1983, a master degree in economics
from Henan University in 1998 and a certificate of graduation in
law from Tsinghua University in 2005.

Mr. Guo Weiqiang (“Mr. Guo"), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director on 17 September 2019. Mr. Guo is currently
the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Guo joined the CCRE Group in 2001 and has held various
positions in the CCRE Group since then. Throughout the 18 years
in the CCRE Group, Mr. Guo worked as the manager of the
treasury department, the assistant general manager of the
finance center and the deputy director of the office of the board
of directors of the CCRE Group. Mr. Guo also served as the
executive deputy general manager of the CCRE Group’s office in
Nanyang City, the executive general manager of the CCRE
Group's office in Xinxiang City, the general manager of the CCRE
Group's regional head office in Xinxiang and the assistant
president and vice president of CCRE. Mr. Guo was also the
secretary of the party committee of CCRE in 2018.
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Mr. Guo obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Real Estate Operation
and Management from Henan University of Economics and Law
in 2001. He obtained a Master’s Degree in Engineering from
Wuhan University in 2009 and a Postgraduate Diploma in
Professional Accounting from The University of Hong Kong in
2011.

Mr. Guo obtained the qualification of Senior Accountant in Henan
in 2009 and was qualified as a Senior International Finance
Manager by the International Financial Management Association
2011. Mr. Guo has been a Certified Practising Accountant of the
CPA Australia since 2012.

Mr. Guo served as the representative of the 13th and 14th
National People’'s Congress of Honggi District, Xinxiang City, as
well as the representative of the 13th National People’s Congress
of Xinxiang City.

Ms. Wang Jing (“Ms. Wang"), aged 51, was appointed as an
executive Director on 21 August 2020. Ms. Wang is currently the
vice president of Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology
Industry Limited* (S8 R B ERH R EXEEBR A

Ms. Wang has 30 years of extensive working experience. She was
a technician of the Research Institute of Zhongyuan
Pharmaceutical Factory* (4 JR & &2 ERE 9T A7) from 1991 to 1997.
She joined the CCRE Group in 1997 until April 2020 and held
several positions there. During her 23 years in the CCRE Group,
Ms. Wang served as the vice president of Central China Real Estate
Group (China) Company Limited* G2 EELE () BRAA])
(“Central China Real Estate”), including the general manager of
the design management center, the assistant president and the
general manager of the Forest Peninsula Project* Gr#rEIER),
the general manager of Zhengzhou Metropolitan Area, the
director of the product management center, the general manager
of the Zhengzhou-Kaifeng Region and the general manager of
Henan Central China Commercial Real Estate Management
Company Limited* (B @2 X B XM ERLEERBR AR
during which she was also charged with managing Henan Central
China Modern Agricultural Investment Company* (Al R 2R &
Z I8 E 2 7)) and the Window of Jianye Project* (¥ 2 &8 H).
She was also a member of the implementation committee of
Central China Real Estate Group (China) Company Limited.
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Ms. Wang graduated from Zhengzhou Air Defense Force
Academy in 1991, majoring in mechatronics, and obtained an
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) from
National University of Singapore in 2012.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wu Wallis (“Ms. Wu"), alias Li Hua, aged 40, was appointed
as a non-executive Director on 17 September 2019. Ms. WU is
currently a non-executive director of CCRE.

Ms. Wu obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Architecture from the
University of New South Wales in Australia in 2006, and a
Master's Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie University in
2007. Before joining the CCRE Group in 2006, she worked in
Woodhead International (Beijing) and Banatex Architects Pty Ltd
in Sydney Australia in 2005. Ms. Wu is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Wang Jun ("Mr. Wang"), aged 41, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 17 September 2019. He has over 18 years
of experience in the real estate industry and capital market.

From 2003 to 2007, Mr. Wang served in PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company with the latest position as a
senior associate; from 2007 to 2011, he served as the head of
investor relations and a senior manager of the finance
department in Country Garden Holdings Company Limited; and
from 2011 to June 2018, he served in Morgan Stanley Asia Limited
with the latest position as an executive director. Mr. Wang has
served as an executive director of CCRE since August 2018. Mr.
Wang has served as Central China New Life Limited's (stock code:
9983) executive director and chairman since October 2018.

Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in English from
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies in 2002 and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 2011.
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Mr. Guo Jianfeng ("Mr. Guo JF"), aged 40, has been appointed
as a non-executive Director on 7 January 2022. He has over 14
years of experience in digital construction.

From February 2007 to April 2012, Mr. Guo JF served as the
researcher at the Shanghai research and development center of
Autodesk, Inc., during which he was responsible for researching
BIM solutions and cross-profession collaboration for the entire
life cycle of construction projects. He joined Glodon in April 2012
and has held various positions in Glodon since then, including the
senior technical researcher, the manager of cloud platform
department, the general manager of platform technology center
and the member and the head of the standing committee of
technology committee. He is currently the vice president of
Glodon and the general manager of its digital constructor
business division.

Mr. Guo JF obtained a doctorate degree in civil engineering from
Tsinghua University in January 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Hongqing (“Mr. Jiang"), aged 55, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 2 February 2015. Mr.
Jiang holds a Ph.D. in Engineering majoring in Architectural
Design and Theory from South China University of Technology.
He also holds a Master of Engineering Degree majoring in
Landscape Architecture Design and a Bachelor of Engineering
Degree majoring in Urban Planning from Chongging Institute of
Architecture and Engineering. Mr. Jiang also studied in Ecole d’
Architecture Parisla-Seine in Paris, France. He is a Professorate
Senior Urban Planner and a Certified Planner of the People’s
Republic of China. Mr. Jiang presided over and participated in a
number of major engineering technology or research projects at
national, provincial and ministerial level; and he has a certain
extent of study in Xiongan New Area, China’s Hainan Free Trade
Zone, Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macau — Bay Area, urban and
rural development, urban renewal and health (pension) industry.
Mr. Jiang was an executive director of the Hong Kong Life
Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (stock Code: 8085)
from 1 December 2012 to 29 September 2017. Mr. Jiang was also
an executive director of Birmingham International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2309) from 30 August 2011 to 20 January
2012.
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Mr. Lee Chi Ming (“Mr. Lee"), aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 December 2014. He is
a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Mr. Lee graduated from Hong Kong
Polytechnic. He also holds a LLB degree from University of
London and a master degree in Business Administration from
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee has over 25 years' experience
in the fields of accounting, regulations and asset management.
He held various senior positions with the Securities and Futures
commission (“SFC"), Hong Kong since 1995, as director of
Licensing, director of Corporate Planning and director of Finance
and Administration. Mr. Lee retired from SFC in July 2014, and he
is the director and managing partner of Benington Capital Partner
Ltd.

Mr. Ma Lishan ("Mr. Ma"), aged 71, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 June 2016. He has
extensive experience in operation and management of modern
large-scale corporations and listed companies. Mr. Ma graduated
from Beijing Foreign Studies University in the PRC in 1975. Mr. Ma
served in various positions such as chairman, executive director,
general manager in certain large-scale joint ventures under China
Oil & Foodstuff Corporation. From January 1996 to June 2003, Mr.
Ma served as an executive director of China Foods Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 506). From
May 1997 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as an executive director
and the managing director of China Foods Limited. From June
2000 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as the deputy general manager
of China Foods Import and Export (Group) Co., Ltd. From June
2008 to January 2009, Mr. Ma was an executive director of Sino
Resources Group Limited (now known as Elife Holdings Limited),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 223). From
March 2008 to 30 December 2021, he was an independent non-
executive director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 886), from 30
December 2021, he is an non-executive director of Silver Base
Group Holdings Limited. From 2 August 2009 to present, he is an
independent non-executive director of Sunac China Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1918). From September 2010 to August 2012, he was also the
executive director, managing director and chairman of Hao Tian
Resources Group Limited (now known as Hao Tian Development
Group Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 474). He was the senior consultant in Hao Tian
Development Group Limited from August 2012 to August 2016.

32

FHEE(TFRE]) 9 RZTE—MF
T A+ REZARBYIERITES - ZhE
ARTARESTMAGREBSHIMAS([HFHE
SEHMASNEFEE - HEENEAET N o
A ERBEAELBEL BN LEBRETH
EEBELTEMN - FTRATES EZRREEEE
EHAEEBBFLER - BE-NMNAFRERE
FHELMEERERZE((BES D EEZE
SR PIEEEREE  WEKR BB E N
B RAITHRIRE - TEER T —NFEL AR
FEEEIR (K - 3T Benington Capital Partner Ltd &
ENEEABA-

BYWRE(BEE]D 71w RZE—REX
AT NBEZAABUIRNTES - BAER
BRABEGER FTARNCENERE AR
2TEELR BAER-—NERAFEERFTEH
EFINEERR - BEELRBERRERBERA
A REETZETAABENGECELAE
ER CHTEE BEESEN - R—NAILAE
—REZTZT=FR A BEAELEHBIA LD
ANAFBERMBARAE (RMHAS - 506) HHITE
E-R-ANLERAE-_ZTT=FA 5%
EETTFERABRARNITES RITHAEE -
RZEEEFAAAEZ_TZE=_FA " FhEH
FHESEERARERE - R_TZFTN\F A
ETTNF—A BEERBA LT AR
MEREBBRAT(RBEIEFEREBRAF)
(BRARER : 223) MIITES - B =TT N\F=A
ET_—F+ZA=+H #HABIFETA
FIIRESEERAER AT (R : 886) UL
FMTEE BT —F+-_A=1+H 8T
REEEERERAFERTEE B -8=2F
ThRENAZBES  BABKZF ETMARRRE
FEERAR A E (RGO RS - 1918) ML FEH
TEE - AT TFHAZE=ZT—=FN\A"
BAHABRF EMARERREREEBRARGE
BERAEREEERAA) (BRMHNRSE - 474) 28
TEE TRBEFEEE R-2FE——-F)\AZE
ZE-RENA BREREESBEBERRARIE



EREENREFERAT ~ 2= —FFH

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

From March 2016 to present, he is also an independent non-
executive director of SRE Group Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1207). From August 2016 to present,
he is an independent non-executive director of Huarong
International Financial Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 993).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Dayou (“Mr. Yu"), aged 60, was appointed as chief
technology officer of the Company on 1 May 2016. Mr. Yu has
over 30 years of experience in architectural design and property
industry. He has held technical management positions as Deputy
General Manager of Hunan Office of China Poly Property* (7 &
RFHE# R A A1) and General Manager of Hunan Architectural
Design Institute. Mr. Yu graduated from architectural profession
university in 1989. He has led or involved in formulating
numerous local standards and has personally owned more than
40 patent rights. He also received 3 Elite Awards in Science
Technology* (1% Im Bt £ #% 1i7 #%). Mr. Yu is a Senior Engineer,
Certified Level-one Architect, an expert of Hunan Province
Committee of Experts of Engineering Construction
Standardisation* (#iFg 4 TR ER T EE(LERELZEF) and
an expert of Committee of Information Management of National
Construction Enterprise CIO Development Union* (BIZR @& 581 %
COERBEBEREAMELEXEZES)

*  For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
corporate governance practices as the Board considers that
good and effective corporate governance is essential for
enhancing accountability and transparency of a company to the
investing public and other stakeholders. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (version up
to 31 December 2021) (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for
the following:

(@ Code provision A.6.7 provides that independent non-
executive Directors and non-executive Directors should
attend general meetings to gain and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to their
respective business engagements and travel restrictions as
a result of COVID-19, Ms. Wu Wallis and Mr. Wang Jun were
unable to attend the special general meetings of the
Company held on 9 September 2021. The Company will
arrange video conference and ensure proper equipment
are in place for such meetings in the future in order to
provide more flexibility.

Save as disclosed above, the principles as set out in the Code
have been applied in our corporate governance structure
throughout the year. The Board has taken actions and measures
to make sure that the Company is in all aspects in strict
compliance with the Listing Rules and the Code. The current
practices are reviewed and updated regularly to be in line with
the local and international corporate governance practices.
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CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. In response
to the specific enquiry made to all Directors by the Company, all
the Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

All the Directors are high caliber executives with diversified
industry expertise and bring a wide range of skills and experience
to the Group. As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised three executive Directors, three non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, whose
biographies are set out on pages 28 to 33 of this annual report.
Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and
Senior Management Biography”, there is no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships between Board
members, and in particular, between the Chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board maintained
a high level of independence, with more than one-third of the
Board comprised of independent non-executive Directors, who
had exercised independent judgement. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications whenever the names of Directors are disclosed.
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Meetings 23

The composition of the Board and their respective attendance in @ &2 —ZE-—F+_-_A=+—HItFENEEE
the general meeting and the Board meetings during the year HKEHAANEESENREASNEETETEH
ended 31 December 2021 are as follows: fEREERIATS ¢

Number of meetings
attended/held during the

respective tenure
REBEBBBEHE
BITHWERRE
General Board
meetings meetings
BERERAE EZE288F
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Liu Weixing (Chairman) REESE(EE) 2/3 4/4
(appointed on 21 August 2020) (RZEZZFNAZ+—HEZME)
Mr. Guo Weigiang (Chief Executive Officer) BRI (FTTBAEE) 2/3 4/4
(appointed on 17 September 2019) (RZZE—NFHLATEAEZT)
Ms. Wang Jing * %%’*ézi 2/3 4/4
(appointed on 21 August 2020) (RZEZZFNAZ+—HEZME)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) S 2/3 4/4
(appointed on 17 September 2019) (RZZE—NFNA +EREZT)
Mr. Wang Jun T #EEE 2/3 4/4
(appointed on 17 September 2019) (RZZE—NFhHA TEREZE)
Independent non-executive Directors BUKHITES
Mr. Jiang Hongging EHRERE 3/3 4/4
(appointed on 2 February 2015) (RZZE—RAF-A-HEZMT)
Mr. Lee Chi Ming TEALA 3/3 4/4
(appointed on 30 December 2014) (R=—E—NE+-A=1+HEZEF)
Mr. Ma Lishan Bz EAE 3/3 4/4

(appointed on 28 June 2016)
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Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board has delegated the supervision of the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business to the executive
Directors. However, the Directors are collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by guiding and
monitoring the Company to achieve its strategic objectives. The
Board's primary functions are to set corporate policy and overall
strategy for the Group and to oversee the management’s
performance. Accordingly, the Board approves strategic plans,
major disposals and acquisitions, connected transactions and
other significant operational issues. Furthermore, Board meetings
may be held on occasions when a Board level decision on a
particular matter is required, otherwise daily operational
decisions as well as the implementation of the Board’s policies
and strategies are delegated to the executive Directors and
management of the Group.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

To ensure their contributions to the Board remain informed and
relevant, all the Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skill.

During the year, all the Directors were provided with regular
updates and presentations on changes and developments of the
Group’s business and the latest developments in laws, rules and
regulations relating to director’s duties and responsibilities.

In addition, every newly appointed Director will receive an
induction on the first occasion of his or her appointment, so as to
ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company, and his or her
responsibilities under laws, regulations and especially the
governance policies of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, all of the Directors
confirmed that they have obtained sufficient continuous
professional development training.
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Throughout the Report Period, the Directors have participated in
continuous professional training as follows:

Name of directors EEHE

REEFEHE - EF0LMBETLEIIER
mT

Type of
continuous professional

development training M@
HEEERREIER O

Mr. Liu Weixing %J’%Eﬁ‘ii

(appointed on 21 August 2020) (RZZEZZEFNA+—HEZE) A&B
Mr. Guo Weigiang SRR A A&B
Ms. Wang Jing T ﬁﬁaﬁi

(appointed on 21 August 2020) (RZZEZZFN\AZ+T—REZE) A&B
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) F T A&B
Mr. Wang Jun T EEE A&B
Mr. Jiang Hongging EHERE A&B
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FEREE A&B
Mr. Ma Lishan S A&B
Notes: Bfet -

(1) A: Attending seminar(s), conference(s), forum(s) and/or training
course(s)

2) B: Reading materials provided by external parties or by the Company
including but not limited to updates relating to the Company’s business
or directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance and
regulatory update, Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-executive
director should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for the
time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. As such,
the Company considers that such provision is sufficient to meet
the underlying objective of this code provision.

According to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”),
Directors appointed to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting and can be eligible for re-
appointment at that time.
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Insurance of the Directors and Officers

The Company has bought liability insurance for Directors and
officers in respect of legal action against the Directors and
officers which is in compliance with Code provision A.1.8 of the
Code.

Board Diversity Policy

Under code provision A.5.6 of the Code, the nomination
committee (or the board) should have a policy concerning
diversity of board member, and should disclose the policy in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 4 July 2014 and reviewed the implementation of it on
an annual basis. The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board and endeavors to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. In determining the optimum composition of the Board,
diversity of Board members will be considered from a number of
factors in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of
talents, skills, experience and knowledge on the Board. The
Company will also take into account its own business model and
specific needs from time to time.

The Board currently consists of two female directors and seven
male directors and Directors are at ages ranging from late-30s to
71 years old with four of them between the age group of 40-49,
two of them between the age group of 50-59, two of them
between the age group of 60-69 and the remaining one at the
age over 70, serving on the Board for different tenures. We have
one male senior management. The Board will take opportunity to
increase the proportion of female members over time when
selecting and making recommendation on suitable candidates for
Board and senior management appointments. The Board would
ensure that appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved
with reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international and
local recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of
bringing the Board to gender parity.
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Board Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals of
high integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in their
chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities and
skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group and
its Shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability to
exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights and
diverse perspectives. Candidates will also be assessed in the
context of the then-current composition of the Board and the
operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director,
consider diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other factors as it
deems appropriate given the then-current and anticipated future
needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a balance
of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.

The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications
at a minimum to be required of any Board members in
recommending to the Board potential new board members, or
the continued service of existing members:

—  reputation for integrity

— accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company

— commitment in respect of available time

— merit and potential contributions that such candidate could
bring to the Board with reference to the Company'’s Board
Diversity Policy (as adopted and amended by the Board
from time to time), including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, independence, skills, knowledge and length of
service

— in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
director of the Company, to assess: (i) the independence of
such candidate with reference to, among other things, the
independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules; and (i) the guidance and requirements relating to
independent non-executive directors as set out in Code
Provision A.5.5 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and in
the "Guidance for Boards and Directors” published by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

— board succession planning considerations and the long-
term needs of the Company
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The position of Chairman is held by Mr. Liu Weixing, and the
position of Chief Executive Officer is held by Mr. Guo Weigiang.
These two separate positions have clear distinction in
responsibilities.

Mr. Liu Weixing, being the Chairman, is responsible for the
management and leadership of the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development directions for the Group, to
ensure that adequate, complete and reliable information is
provided to all Directors in a timely manner, and to ensure that
the issues raised at the Board meetings are explained
appropriately.

Mr. Guo Weigiang, being the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for the daily operations of the Group and the
implementation of business policies, objectives and plans as
formulated and adopted by the Board, and is accountable to the
Board for the overall operation of the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has set up an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference which
clearly deal with its authorities and duties. The primary role and
function of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in
providing an independent review of the Group's financial
reporting and risk management and internal control systems as
well as the internal and external audit functions.

The Audit Committee currently comprises all of the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging,
Mr. Lee Chi Ming and Mr. Ma Lishan. The composition and
members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Lee Chi Ming is an
independent non-executive Director with appropriate
professional accounting qualification as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
held three meetings to review with the management the Group's
adopted accounting principles and practices, internal controls
and financial reporting matters in conjunction with the external
auditors, including reviews of the half-year and annual financial
results and reports. The Audit Committee has also discussed on
the financial, operational and compliance controls in particular
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget. The Audit Committee has
not taken a different view from the Board regarding the selection
and re-appointment of the external auditors. The attendance of
each member of the Audit Committee is set out below:

HE_T-_—F+_A=+—HILFE BFKZE
BgRTZRed HEEERIINEZBMAR

HHAEEMEAN G RAIRER - AEPEE
LM BEREEE  ERREEMNYFEREF
MBEERRE BRZEGNHUE EER
BRETIELFH  BFRRAERESF KUK
ERee T EMER BEIERELREHREREH
URBIFEINEIRERAHEERERE
EREZESUENEREEINEZEM T EEES
EWEAANERSIE SBEZEZESNENLE
EERAAT

Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

REEE HESERE
Mr. Lee Chi Ming (Chairman) TERLEE(EE) 3/3
Mr. Jiang Hongaing EHRERE 3/3
Mr. Ma Lishan B EAE 3/3

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with the
management and the independent auditor of the Company the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
has discussed the auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters, including a review of the annual results and
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Nomination Committee

The Company has set up a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with specific written terms of reference
which clearly deal with its authorities and duties. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board on a regular basis (including
the skills, knowledge and experience), to recommend to the
Board on the selection of suitable candidates for directorships
and on the succession planning for the Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Liu Weixing; and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging and Mr. Lee Chi
Ming.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to review the structure and
composition and the succession plan of the Board, and to
evaluate and make recommendations on individuals nominated
for directorship. The attendance of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:

EXRERHRS
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Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

REEE HESERE
Mr. Liu Weixing (Chairman) RFESTE(EE) 11
Mr. Jiang Hongging EHERE 11
Mr. Lee Chi Ming ZEREE 11

Remuneration Committee

The Company has set up a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference which clearly deal with its authorities and duties. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and
make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, and
ensure no Director or any of his associates may be involved in
any decisions as to his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Liu Weixing; and two independent non-
executive Directors, hamely Mr. Jiang Hongging and Mr. Lee Chi
Ming.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management,
consider and approve the renewal of the Company’s service
agreements with its executive Directors and matters relating to
the early termination of such agreements upon change of Board
composition of the Company. The attendance of each member of
the Remuneration Committee is set out below:

BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—BILFE  FME
BERT-REE UBRBTEELSAER
ABWMFHGEA LR B RIERNARRHRTT
EZETOREHSE  URARARREEFSK
BEEPMBRFRULABHENER - SFHZ
IgREMHECENT

]

\

Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

MEE HESERE
Mr. Jiang Hongging (Chairman) ELELRE(FE) 1”1
Mr. Liu Weixing 2FEfLE 11
Mr. Lee Chi Ming TERREE 11

The existing Remuneration Committee will continue to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management of
the Group, and to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

All Directors are entitled to a fee as approved by the Board with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Executive Directors
are entitled to fees, salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances, benefits in kind (including contribution to the pension
scheme on behalf of our Directors) or discretionary bonuses,
which are determined by the Board having regard to the Group's
performance and the prevailing market conditions and approved
by the remuneration committee of the Company. Details of
Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of five highest paid
individuals of the Company (including senior management of the
Group) are set out in Notes 11 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for ensuring sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
shareholders’ interests and the Company's assets. The Board has
the responsibility to evaluate and determine the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and to ensure the Company establish and
maintain appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or 10ss.

The audit committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group conducts
an annual review on whether there is a need for an internal audit
department. Given the Group’s simple operating structure, as
opposed to a separate internal audit department, the Board is
directly responsible for internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness. It formulates the annual internal audit
plan and procedures, conducts periodic independent reviews on
the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities
and risks, develops action plans and recommendations to
address the identified risks.

The Board conducts a review on the risk management and
internal control system of the Group on an annual basis and has
the responsibility to maintain an effective risk management and
internal control system. The review involves all material
monitoring aspects, including but not limited to finance,
operation, compliance and risk management. The Board also
reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems on a regular basis to ensure that
the systems in place are adequate. The Group's internal control
system is comprised of a system of controlled management
wherein various authoritative limits are placed to ensure that the
Group is able to supervise, control and assess various functions
within Group. The system further permits the Group to safeguard
its accounting records to minimise material errors in order to
provide financial information as accurately as possible.
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The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries. Meanwhile, the Company handles and disseminates
the inside information according to the related policy to ensure
that the inside information is kept confidential before being
approved for dissemination and the relevant information will be
released effectively and conformably.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company engaged
an external independent consultant to conduct a review on the
internal control system of the Group in order to maintain high
standards of corporate governance. The Board has also reviewed
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company'’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function. Based on the
above, the Board is of the view that the Company has established
a proper risk management and internal control system which is
effective and adequate.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The auditor of the Company for the financial year under review is
PricewaterhouseCoopers. During the year ended 31 December
2021, remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditor of the Company to the Group was
approximately HK$2,236,000 and nil respectively.

DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021. The auditor of the Company acknowledges its
reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s report on the financial
statement during the year. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
going concern. The statement made by the auditor of the
Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 83 to 91 of this annual report.

46

ARBHEELRBERE  BARAEE T8
SREEBREBEERREREER BERA
FHREE KB IE Rt —&R$E3| - R - A2 A
BRARMHBARREERZMAREE - LERA
FHEERESEMEN —BERE  YBERBRR
—BUNERMHERER -

BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HLEFE XARF
LB HNBREEER RSB A EESE -
HREEKTNEEER EFGNERAARRF
25 AREZRVEERBE A ENER - 8
TEFERKE BIRELEHEEESTRE °
BIELN  EEEREARACELLZLERRKRE
BREMBBEENAIETSE

288 B B 4% BURT N =

ARBINEEVRFENZBASELBICGES
RSB - BHE—T-_—F+=-A=+—Hit
FE - ARBZBEAAREREABZBNIE
ZEURTE BN 2 54 /5 2,236,000/ 8 T M E

ESERZBEMARA FHRROFE

EERREREARAEE-_ZSZ—F+ZA
ST+ —BUEFEMBREOEST - AR FZHAD
REZBRMREPERERFAVBRERENE
F-EBEFUTNBEAMEHXBRAOEKRNTH
AREEIREHARARNIFECEENEEEAS
e RARIZEMBEEGAEVBERROBRER
TR RPAH N AT RE 83 E 91 BB X AR

K



EREENREFERAT ~ 2= —FFH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Ho Pong was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) since 14 June 2017. He
is full-time employee of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance matters and facilitating communication
between Board members, the Shareholders and management of
the Company. For the year under review, the company secretary
has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Rights to convene special general meetings

(1) Under the Company'’s bye-laws
Pursuant to Bye-law 62 of the Company’s bye-laws, a
special general meeting (“SGM") shall be convened on
requisition by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”, or individually the “Shareholder”), as
provided by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) (the “Companies Act”), or, in default, may be
convened by the requisitionists.

(2) Under the Companies Act

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act, a
Shareholder or Shareholders holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company may requisition the Directors to forthwith
proceed duly to convene a SGM by depositing a written
requisition at the registered office of the Company.
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The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting (including the resolutions to be considered at the
meeting), signed by the requisitionists, deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Victoria Place, 5th
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Rights to put forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meetings of the Company pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Act as follows:

Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act allow certain
Shareholder(s) to requisition the Company to give notice to
the Shareholders in respect of any resolution which is
intended to be moved at an annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM") or circulate a statement in respect of
any proposed resolution or business to be considered at a
general meeting of the Company.
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Under Section 79 of the Companies Act, at the expense of
the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves,
it shall be the duty of the Company on the requisition in
writing by such number of Shareholders:

(@) to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting.

(b)  to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The number of Shareholders necessary to make the above
requisitions to the Company shall be:

(@aa) either any number of Shareholders representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or

(bb) not less than one hundred Shareholders. Notice of
any such intended resolution shall be given, and any
such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by
serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each
such Shareholder in any manner permitted for service
of notice of the meeting, and notice of any such
resolution shall be given to any other Shareholder by
giving notice of the general effect of the resolution in
any manner permitted for giving him notice of
meetings of the Company, provided that the copy
shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the
same manner and, so far as practicable, at the same
time as notice of the meeting and, where it is not
practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it
shall be served or given as soon as practicable
thereafter.
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Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions to
be met before the Company is bound to give notice of any
resolution or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to
Section 80 of the Companies Act, the Company shall not be
bound under Section 79 to give notice of any resolution or
to circulate any statement unless:

(@ acopy of the requisition signed by the requisitionists,
or two or more copies which between contain the
signatures of all the requisitionists, is deposited at the
registered office of the Company:

() inthe case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the
meeting; and

(i) in the case of any other requisition, not less
than one week before the meeting; and

(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expense in giving effect thereto;

provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring
notice of a resolution has been deposited at the registered
office of the Company, an AGM is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the abovementioned time shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the
purposes thereof.

Rights to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and be sent by post to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 7707-
7708, 77th Floor, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road
West, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Shareholders may also make
enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with its
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors” understanding of the Group's business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with its Shareholders. To ensure that the
Shareholders and potential investors are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company and to manage its relationship
with its Shareholders and the investment community, the
Company communicates through publication of announcements,
circulars and annual and interim reports. Such information is
disseminated through the Stock Exchange at its designated
website (http://www.hkexnews.hk), and can also be accessed via
the Company’s website (http://dit.aconnect.com.hk). The
Company's corporate information is also made available on the
Company’s website. In addition, annual and special general
meetings provide a forum for the Shareholders to make
comments and exchange views with the Directors and senior
management. The Company keeps on promoting investor
relations and enhancing communication with the existing
Shareholders and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions
from investors, stakeholders and the public. The Directors,
company secretary and other appropriate members of the senior
management will also respond to inquiries from the Shareholders
and the investment community put to the Company in the
manner as mentioned under the heading “Shareholders’ Rights”
in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Shareholders’ communication policy on an annual basis and
considered it to be effective.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to the
memorandum of association of the Company and Bye-laws, the
current versions of which are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are prefabricated
construction work, granting licenses, consulting services, sales of
equipment, decoration and landscaping services in the People’s
Republic of China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group'’s revenue is derived primarily from business activities
conducted in Hong Kong and China Mainland.

A fair review of the Group's business, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the company, the
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of 2021 and the likely future developments, is set out in
the Business Review and Prospects and Financial Review
sections of this Annual Report.

Disclosure related to the Group’s environmental policies and
performance and relationships with major stakeholders are
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 and the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 92 to 223.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.01 per Share for the year ended 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: nil) to the shareholders of the Company. The
proposed final dividend will be submitted for consideration at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Tuesday, 24 May 2022. Subject to shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the
final dividend will be paid on or around Monday, 13 June 2022 to
the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 1 June
2022.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For Determining the Eligibility to Attend and Vote at
the Annual General Meeting

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 19 May 2022 to Tuesday, 24 May 2022, both dates
inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company's branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 18 May 2022.

For Determining the Eligibility to the Proposed Final
Dividend

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’ entitlement to
the proposed final dividend, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 30 May 2022 to Wednesday,
1 June 2022, both dates inclusive. The proposed final dividend will
be payable to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company as at Wednesday, 1 June
2022. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 27 May 2022.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming AGM will be held on Tuesday, 24 May 2022. A
notice convening the AGM will be published in due course in the
manner required by the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years/period is set out on
page 224.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group revalued its investment
properties by using the combinations of an income capitalisation
approach and a direct comparison approach. The increase in fair
value amounting to approximately HK$29,000 (31 December
2020: fair value gain of HK$260,000) has been credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
statement of changes in equity on page 96 and Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company'’s distributable reserves
were HK$157,955,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Weixing (Chairman)

Mr. GUO Weigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. WANG Jing

Non-executive Director:
Ms. WU Wallis (alias Li Hua)
Mr. WANG Jun

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. JIANG Hongging

Mr. LEE Chi Ming

Mr. MA Lishan

The Company has received from each of the existing
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Directors and Officers Liability Insurance undertaken by the
Company provides an indemnity to all the directors of the
Company under which every director will be indemnified by the
Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities incurred by him in the execution and discharge of his
duties or in relation thereto. Such insurance has been in force
during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and as of the
date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Liu Weixing has entered into a service contract with the
Company pursuant to which Mr. Liu Weixing agreed to act as
executive Director for a term of three years with effect from 21
August 2020
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Mr. Guo Weigiang has entered into a service contract with the
Company pursuant to which he agreed to act as an executive
Director for a term of three years with effect from 17 September
2019. Ms. Wang Jing has entered into a service contract with the
Company pursuant to which Ms. Wang Jing agreed to act as
executive Director for a term of three years with effect from 21
August 2020.

Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) has signed a letter of appointment
dated 17 September 2019 with the Company pursuant to which
she agreed to act as non-executive Director for a term of three
years with effect from 17 September 2019. Mr. Wang Jun has
signed a letter of appointment dated 17 September 2019 with the
Company pursuant to which he agreed to act as non-executive
Director for a term of three years with effect from 17 September
2019. Mr. Guo Jianfeng has signed a letter of appointment dated
7 January 2022 with the Company pursuant to which he agreed
to act as non-executive Director for a term of three years with
effect from 7 January 2022.

Mr. Ma Lishan has signed a letter of appointment dated 21
August 2020 with the Company pursuant to which he agreed to
act as independent non-executive Director for a term of three
years with effect from 21 August 2020. Mr. Lee Chi Ming has
signed a letter of appointment dated 21 August 2020 with the
Company pursuant to which he agreed to act as independent
non-executive Director for a term of three years with effect from
21 August 2020. Mr. Jiang Hongging has signed a letter of
appointment dated 30 June 2019 with the Company pursuant to
which he agreed to act as independent non-executive Director
for a term of three years with effect from 30 June 2019.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emolument of the Directors
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals
with highest remuneration are set out in Notes 11 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) pursuant to the MPF Schemes Ordinance for its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the
applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. Our employees are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to this retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the following Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed to have
interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which
(i) have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) have been entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or (iii) otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code to
the Listing Rules.
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of

the Company

RARBROREABRODPFENGE A

Percentage

Name of Director or Number of Number of of the Issued

chief executive Capacity Share Options held Shares held Share Capital

LB 81T

EEYQRETHRAEHEE 514 BFEBREZR BFERMEE BRAEBFDL

(note 2) (note 1)

(Hiz2) (Ktat1)

Mr. Liu Weixing Director 28,000,000 4,840,000 1.06%
BEELAE ok

Mr. Guo Weigiang Director 21,000,000 2,930,000 0.77%
DEEREE EF

Ms. Wang Jing Director 8,000,000 - 0.26%
T Bt BE

Note: Bifet -

Save as disclosed above or under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, as at 31 December 2021, so far as is
known to any Director or the chief executive of the Company,
none of the Directors nor the chief executives of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a)
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered

It was based on 3,102,400,730 Shares as at 31 December 2021.

Such interest in the Shares is held pursuant to the share options 2.
granted under the Share Option Scheme (as defined below), the details

of which are disclosed on pages 62 to 64.

KMHIE

in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements and under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in this annual report, no contract,
transaction or arrangement of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or
an entity connected with any Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements and under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in this annual report, no contract of
significance had been entered into between the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2021 and no contract of significance for the provision
of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the
controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
all or any substantial part of the Group’s business was entered
into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT
TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2021 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, as far as known to the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had the
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of

the Company

EERRNIRGREFARGIESR

)

R-—ZFB-_—%+-A=+—8"

BEEXARQT

RETHRABMA - TIAB(BEEHARARD
TTBRABRIN WA R B I RABRER D P HEER
B A MBI ERDIEXVERSE 2 &35 BB X /A M
ARARFERBIERE N HAERDIE3B6EAR
AATREFNECMACCENERIORR

RAERXTRORAEABROFFENER

Percentage of

Number of the Issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital
HeRT
BRERERE 51 FERGBEE BAEAH
(note 1)
(HtaF1)
Jiayao Global Investments Limited (“Jiayao”)  Beneficial owner 1,470,110,000 47.39%
=R (BEBR)IREBRAR([FHR)) EmEA A
Jiamin (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 80,000,000 2.58%
2 (ER)EEERAF BEmEEA
Jianuo (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 77,500,000 2.50%
S (ER)TEERAF ExnEEA
Jiaxin (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 68,500,000 2.21%
2EER)ZEBRATR EmlEEA
Jiaheng (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 67,250,000 2.17%
RHT(ER)HEBRAF ExnEEA
Jiacheng (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 16,250,000 0.51%
SR ZER)REBR AR EnEEA
Jialing (International) Investment Limited Interest of controlled corporation 309,500,000 9.97%
2R (BB)ERERRAT SR A/NCIL
Jiayao Interest of controlled corporation 309,500,000 9.97%
= SRR R
Jiaye Summit Global Investment Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
=& (BB RERRAT R A/NCIL
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%

Industry Group Limited
EREENNEXEEERAF
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Percentage of

Number of the Issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital
LB B1T
RREHE =27} BERGHAE &N
(note 1)
(KiaE1)
Henan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
Technology Industry Group Limited SR /NI T
(formerly known as Tianjin Drawin
Technology Limited)
AMEREEMREXRTERRA A
(AT« RRERZERRBRAF)
Henan Hongdao Business Information Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
Consultancy Company Limited RN EER
LB R E R ERERAR]
Henan Jianye Business Information Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
Consultancy Company Limited YR EERS
T MREEABEEERERAA
Construction Development (H.K) Company Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
Limited PR AR
BEER(EB)ARAA
Construction Housing Group Company Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
Limited TN R
BEAEZEEBRAA
Jianye Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 57.36%
SR /NEIL T (note 2)
(Kizz2)
Joy Bright Investments Limited Beneficial owner 245,567,425 7.92%
BERERRAA EmHEA A (note 2)
(Kizz2)
Mr. Wu Po Sum Interest of controlled corporation 2,025,177,425 65.28%
(Kizz2)
Glodon (Hong Kong) Software Limited Beneficial owner 300,000,000 9.67%
Bt E (BB BHEBER AR EmEa A
Glodon Company Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 300,000,000 9.67%

R ERE R AR AR (AE3)

SR NEIL: 3

Notes: Bt -

1. It was based on 3,102,400,730 Shares as at 31 December 2021. 1.

2. Mr. Wu Po Sum holds 100% of the issued share capital of Joy Bright 2.
Investments Limited and Jianye Holdings Limited.

3. Glodon Company Limited is a company established under the laws of 3.

the PRC with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the

Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002410).

— %+ = A =+—H¥##3,102,400,730 f%

ARAR ST B BRI B B R A 7] I Jianye Holdings
Limited 892 P2 B TARAR ©

FERERBRNER AR ARIEPEIAEKRIZER

RNE EBRORFNEEXZ S Em (RO AR :
002410) °
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Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2021, the
Directors were not aware of any persons (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 7 August
2013 (the “0Old Scheme”) was terminated pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on 17 July
2020. A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) in place
of the Old Scheme was adopted pursuant to such resolution with
effect from 17 July 2020 which has a term of 10 years. The
purpose of the New Scheme is to provide participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and
to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole. The New Scheme will provide
the Company with a flexible means of retaining, incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to participants.

uUnder the New Scheme, the employees of the Group (including
the executive Directors) and such other persons as the Board
may consider appropriate may be granted options which entitle
them to subscribe for Shares representing, when aggregated
with any Shares subject to any other scheme(s) of the Company,
up to a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue of the Company
as at 17 July 2020, unless the Company obtains a fresh approval
from the Shareholders to renew the limit as described below or
the Shareholders specifically approve the grant.

The total number of Shares issued or to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed 30% of
the total number of Shares in issue from time to time. The
amount payable by a grantee on acceptance of a grant of the
option within 10 business days from the date on which the letter
containing the offer is delivered to him is HK$1.00 (or its
equivalent in RMB or any other currency acceptable to the
Company).
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The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted and to be granted pursuant
to the New Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company to each participant in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant of the options must not exceed 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant of options
which would result in the number of the Shares issued as
aforesaid exceeding the said 1% limit must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting at which such participant and
his or her associates must abstain from voting.

Any grant of share options to a participant who is a Director,
chief executive, or substantial Shareholder or any of their
respective associate must be approved by the independent
nonexecutive Directors, excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is the grantee of the share options.

The exercise periods of the share options may be specified by
the Company at the time of the grant, and the share options shall
expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of the grant.
As at the date of this annual report, the total number of Shares
available for issue under the New Scheme is 195,910,000,
representing approximately 6.31% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.

The subscription price for the Shares under the New Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
notified to a participant, provided that such price shall be at least
and the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of a
share option which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet for the five consecutive trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share (whichever is the highest).

The New Scheme will expire on 16 July 2030.

No shares option have been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Old Scheme.
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Movement of share options granted by the Company under the REZE-Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIFEERXN " K~
New Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2021 was as A &ABIEF T 298 LR 2 S8m T -
follows:

Exercise  Exercise Asat  Granted Exercised Cancelled  Lapsed As at
Name or category of price period 1 January during during during during 31 December
participants Date of grant perShare  (Notes) 2021 theyear theyear theyear  theyear 2021
R=B=-F
ik R=B=-% TR
SRENZAER RiAH BRTKE (W) -B-B  HARE FROR FAHEE  FRAN =t-H
Directors
g2
Mr. Liu Weixing 30 November 2020 HK$1.09 6years 28,000,000 - - - - 28,000,000
IBERSE ZECERF-A=FE 109BT 6F
Mr. Guo Weigiang 30 November 2020 HK$1.09 10 years 21,000,000 - - - - 21,000,000
PERrE “E-REH-AZHR 198 0%
Ms. Wang Jing 30 November 2020 HK$1.09 10years 8,000,000 - - - - 8,000,000
I sut “ToTET-AZEA O100%T 0%
Senior management and 30 November 2020 HK$1.09 10 years 142,900,000 - - - (3990,000 138,910,000
other employees of the
Group
TEERRERAER “ToTFT-AZTR O100ET 0%
EhES
199,900,000 - - - (3990,0000 195,910,000

Additional information in relation to the Share Option Scheme is & BB AR = 21 M EEINE RIS AN F Z 3R & B 7%
set out in Note 28 to the financial statements of this annual  $REM 5528 °
report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

EPC Service Arrangement, Park Design Services
Arrangement, Supply Arrangement and PC Design
Service Arrangement

On 18 March 2021, (i) the Company and Drawin Intelligent
Construction Technology Group Company Limited (formerly
known as China Minsheng Drawin Construction Technology
Group Company Limited) (“Drawin Construction Technology”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Drawin Construction
Technology Group”) entered into the Framework Agreement | in
relation to the provision of EPC general contracting services by
the Drawin Construction Technology Group, namely the EPC
Service Arrangement; (ii) the Company and Drawin Construction
Technology entered into the Framework Agreement Il in relation
to the supply of prefabricated construction components and
products to the Drawin Construction Technology Group, namely
the Supply Arrangement; (iii) the Company and Drawin
Construction Design Company Limited (formerly known as China
Minsheng Drawin Construction Design Company Limited)
(“Drawin Construction Design”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Drawin Construction Design Group”) entered into the Framework
Agreement Il in relation to the provision of design services by the
Drawin Construction Design Group in respect of the Group’s
technology parks in the PRC, namely the Park Design Service
Arrangement and (iv) the Company and Drawin Construction
Design entered into the Framework Agreement IV in relation to
the provision of design services by the Drawin Construction
Design Group in respect of the prefabricated construction
components and products sold by the Group, namely the PC
Design Service Arrangement.

Pursuant to the EPC Service Arrangement, the contract price for
EPC general contracting services to be provided by the Drawin
Construction Technology Group to the Group should be
determined with reference to the estimated costs of a
construction project plus a profit margin and management fee of
not more than 8% of the construction costs and should not
exceed RMB2,780 per square metre (inclusive of tax) in principle.
As disclosed in the announcement dated 18 March 2021, the
Company estimated that the maximum value of the transactions
under the EPC Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement | may reach RMB550 million, RMB450
million and RMB450 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 respectively
(equivalent to approximately HK$658.40 million, HK$538.70
million and HK$538.70 million).

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERS

FAERXS

EPCIRIBZH - IERERBRBLE  HEZR
PR PCRRETIRIE 2 Bk

RIZB-—F=ZA+N\A  (FARFEEREE
ERMEEAR AR (AP RERERRE
EERRAR) ([EREZRR ] EREHRBAR
S ERERMEEEDFTIERGE — A
BEBERERFH R BRI HEPCAAB R -
BIEPCARFF & #F + (N AN A A& KB R BHRR]
ERBH - ARBBERERERHREEHE
BREKREAZEBR I MER - BIRZ I - (i)
ARRIRERRERNBRAR (AIHEHRERSE
RZERABRAR) ([ERZER] BRE
BB A R4S [ SRR EERFT R ) FT AR
#= NAAHEREERTEERARERS
BB E R E R IR - AR RE R RS R
BE R(v) AR RIEE R EER R LER Y=
M- AREBEREZERFTEERAKELED
BRERAEEL M REmREHRKRE RS - AIPC
RET IR 2k -

BIBEPCIR G L - EREBERZMEEE B R
NEBIZEEPCEEBRE 2 A NEBRAES
FEEIE B Z AN 3 0 F) S RN 8 8 SRR
8% KRB ETNERBEFHRKARE2780T
(BREBBE)ZEEEMET - HWBHAE-ZT
Z—F=ZA+N\BHRAEHE - NAFEET - EPC
IRIGLZEEIR TR HNIER HZ RS EE
REE—ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—RH ===
+ZA=+—HBERZE_=F+ZA=+—HIE
FEAREDRIEARESS0FET - ARK4AS0H
BTRAREAOEET FEERL 658408 8B
JC 53870 A @ AL M 53870 EEETT) °

65



DIT Group Limited ~ 2021 Annual Report

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERS

Pursuant to the Supply Arrangement, the integrated unit price of
the prefabricated construction components and products to be
supplied by the Group to the Drawin Construction Technology
Group should be the prevailing market price of each unit. In
principle, the provisional unit price should not exceed RMB3,400
per cubic metre (inclusive of tax). Subject to the actual volume of
the unit supplied, the final unit price may be adjusted. As
disclosed in the announcement dated 18 March 2021, the
Company is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set
an annual cap over the term of the Framework Agreement II.
Accordingly, such Proposed Supply Arrangement Annual Cap
over the term of the Framework Agreement Il has been
determined to be RMB400 million, RMB500 million and RMB500
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2023 respectively (equivalent to approximately
HK$478.80 million), HK$598.50 million and HK$598.50 million

Pursuant to the Park Design Service Arrangement, the contract
price for the design services to be provided by the Drawin
Construction Design Group to the Group should be determined
with reference to the estimated costs of the design services plus
a profit margin and management fee of not more than 5% of the
design costs and the provisional contract price should not exceed
RMB25 per square metre (inclusive of tax) in principle.

Pursuant to the PC Design Service Arrangement, the contract
price for the design services in respect of the prefabricated
construction components and products to be sold by the Group
to third parties should be determined with reference to the
estimated costs of the design services plus a profit margin and
management fee of not more than 5% of the design costs and
the provisional contract price should not exceed RMB70 per
cubic metre (inclusive of tax) in principle.
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As disclosed in the announcement dated 18 March 2021, the
Company estimates that the maximum value of the transactions
under the Park Design Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement Il may reach RMB6.50 million, RMB7.00
million and RMB7.00 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 respectively
(equivalent to approximately HK$7.80 million, HK$8.4 million and
HK$8.4 million). The Company is required under Rule 14A.53 of
the Listing Rules to set an annual cap over the term of the
Framework Agreement IV. Accordingly, such Proposed PC Design
Service Arrangement Annual Cap has been determined to be
RMB2.50 million, RMB4.50 million and RMB6.00 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2023 respectively (equivalent to approximately
HK$3.00 million, HK$5.40 million and HK$7.20 million).

Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology Industry Group
Limited ("Drawin Intelligent Manufacture”) indirectly holds
approximately 57.36% of the issued Shares of the Company.
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Wu Po Sum, who is a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Therefore, Drawin Intelligent Manufacture is a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Drawin Construction Technology is direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Drawin Intelligent Manufacture, and therefore a
connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, each of the EPC Service
Arrangement and the Supply Arrangement under the Framework
Agreement | and the Framework Agreement Il constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Drawin Construction Design is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Drawin Intelligent Manufacture, and therefore a
connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, each of the Park Design Service
Arrangement and the PC Design Service Arrangement under the
Framework Agreement Ill and the Framework Agreement IV
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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As the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design Service
Arrangement are both capital in nature which involve different
aspects in the construction of a technology park and Drawin
Construction Technology and Drawin Construction Design are
either direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Drawin
Intelligent Manufacture, the EPC Service Arrangement and the
Park Design Service Arrangement require aggregation under Rule
14.22 and Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. As the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the estimated maximum values of
the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design Service
Arrangement under the relevant Framework Agreements in
aggregate exceed 5% but are less than 25% on an annual basis,
the contemplated transactions under the EPC Service
Arrangement and the Park Design Service Arrangement
constitute (i) discloseable transactions of the Company which are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, and (i) connected transactions of
the Company which are subject to the reporting, announcement
and Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the Supply Arrangement is of revenue nature in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group and one or more of
the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Proposed
Supply Arrangement Annual Cap exceed 5%, the contemplated
transaction under the Supply Arrangement constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is subject to the annual
review, reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further, as all of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap are
less than 25% and the Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement
Annual Cap is less than HK$10 million, the contemplated
transaction under the PC Design Service Arrangement constitutes
a continuing connected transaction which is only subject to the
annual review, reporting and announcement requirements and is
exempted from the independent shareholders’ requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 26 May 2021, a special general meeting was held. Under the
ordinary resolution, shareholders are confirmed, approved and
ratify the Framework Agreements dated 18 March 2021 and the
transactions contemplated thereunder (including the Proposed
Supply Arrangement Annual Cap and the estimated transaction
values under the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design
Service Arrangement).
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Property leasing Agreement

On 11 May 2021, Changsha Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Limited (formerly known as Changsha China
Minsheng Drawin Intelligent Technology Company Limited)
(“Drawin Changsha”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology
Industry Limited (formerly known as China Minsheng Drawin
Technology Industry Limited) (“Drawin Intelligent Manufacture”,
together with its subsidiaries but excluding the Group, the
“Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Group Entities”) entered into the
Property Leasing Agreement pursuant to which Drawin Changsha
shall lease to the Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Group the
properties within the Changsha technology park for a term of one
year commencing from 11 May 2021 to 10 May 2022 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of usage as office premises, staff
dormitories, finished production warehouses, test plants, villa,
showroom and prefabricated components manufacturing plants
and provide to the Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Group certain
ancillary services.

Pursuant to the Property Leasing Agreement, Drawin Changsha
agreed to (i) lease to the relevant Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Group Entity the office premises, staff dormitories, finished
production warehouses, test plants, villa, showroom and
prefabricated components manufacturing plants, and (i) provide
to the same the ancillary services including the supply of heating,
hot water and the provision of technology park maintenance
services (“Leasing and Ancillary Services Arrangement”). The
rentals and service fees under the Property Leasing Agreement
have been determined by Drawin Intelligent Manufacture and
Drawin Changsha after arm’s length negotiation with reference
to the prevailing market rates for comparable properties in
Changsha. As disclosed in the announcement dated 11 May
2021, the Company is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing
Rules to set an annual cap over the value of the annual payment
by Drawin Intelligent Manufacture to Drawin Changsha under the
Leasing and Ancillary Services Arrangement over the term of the
Property Leasing Agreement. Accordingly, such Proposed
Property Leasing Annual Cap over the term of the Property
Leasing Agreement has been determined to be RMB18 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$21.76 million).
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Drawin Intelligent Manufacture indirectly holds approximately
57.36% of the issued Shares of the Company. Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum,
who is controlling shareholder of the Company. Therefore,
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Property Leasing Agreement constitute a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratios in
respect of the continuing connected transactions under the
Property Leasing Agreement is more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the contemplated transaction under the Property Leasing
Agreement constitutes a continuing connected transaction which
is only subject to the annual review, reporting and
announcement requirements and is exempted from the
independent shareholders” approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the Supply Arrangement and the PC Design
Service Arrangement and the Property Leasing Agreement and
confirmed that:

(i) the terms and conditions of the Framework Agreement I,
the Framework Agreement IV and the Property Leasing
Agreement are on normal commercial terms which are fair
and reasonable;

(i) the Proposed Supply Arrangement Annual Cap and the
Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap and
the Proposed Property Leasing Annual Cap are fair and
reasonable; and

(i) the Framework Agreement II, the Framework Agreement IV
and the Property Leasing Agreement are and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were entered into
and will be conducted in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company and its subsidiaries, and are in
the interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.
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To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (a non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (a controlling shareholder of the Company) who indirectly
holds the entire equity interests in Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture, none of the Directors has a material interest in the
Framework Agreement |, the Framework Agreement I, the
Framework Agreement Ill and the Framework Agreement IV and
the Property Leasing Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder.

Confirmation from auditors

The Company'’s external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
PC Design Service Arrangement, Property Leasing Agreement
and Supply Arrangement in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The external auditor has issued an
unqgualified report containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of the report to
the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2021 for provision of prefabricated construction
components and products design services by Drawin
Construction Design Company Limited (formerly known as China
Minsheng Drawin Construction Design Company Limited), supply
of prefabricated construction components and products to
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group Co., Ltd. and
its subsidiaries, including financing component recognized in
other income and leasing of properties to Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture Technology Industry Group Limited and its
subsidiaries:

a.  have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;

b. were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;
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c. were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

d.  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Provision of financial assistance

On 30 March 2020, Tianjin China Minsheng DIT Limited (“Tianjin
Drawin”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into the Mortgage Agreement with Yuhua Sub-branch of
Changsha Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. (the “Bank”), pursuant
to which Tianjin Drawin agreed to provide the Mortgage in favour
of the Bank as security for the repayment obligations of Drawin
Intelligent Manufacture (an indirect controlling shareholder of the
Company) under the 2020 Loan Agreement in respect of a loan
facility of up to RMB15,000,000 (the “2020 Loan") granted by the
Bank to Drawin Intelligent Manufacture for on-lending to Drawin
Intelligent Manufacture Technology Investment Limited (“Drawin
Investment”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) on the same terms as the 2020 Loan Agreement.

On 29 March 2021, Drawin Intelligent Manufacture entered into
the Loan Agreement with the Bank in respect of a loan facility of
up to RMB20,000,000(equivalent to approximately
HK$23,754,000), which represents an increase of RMB5,000,000
from the principal amount in the 2020 Loan. Save for the increase
in the principal amount, the Loan Agreement is on the same
terms as the 2020 Loan Agreement. The Loan will be on-lent to
Drawin Investment on better terms than those offered in the
Loan Agreement. Pursuant to the Mortgage Agreement, the
Mortgage will continue to be in force to secure the repayment
obligations of Drawin Intelligent Manufacture under the Loan
Agreement.

Drawin Intelligent Manufacture indirectly holds approximately
57.36% of the issued Shares of the Company. Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum,
who is a controlling shareholder; hence, Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The provision of the Mortgage by Tianjin Drawin
under the Mortgage Agreement therefore constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the provision of
the Mortgage are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the provision
of the Mortgage is subject to reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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As stated in the announcement of the Company 30 November
2020, Xiangtan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology
Limited (“Xiangtan Drawin”) entered into mortgage agreement
with the Bank and extended its obligation for another 12 months,
pursuant to which, Xiangtan Drawin agreed to provide the
Xiangtan Mortgage in favour of the Bank as security for the
repayment obligations of Drawin Intelligent Manufacture under a
loan agreement in respect of a loan facility of up to
RMB40,000,000 granted by the Bank to Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture. The provision of the Xiangtan Mortgage constituted
a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and was subject to reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Both Tianjin Drawin and Xiangtan Drawin are indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, and the provision of the
Mortgage to secure the repayment obligations of Drawin
Intelligent Manufacture under the Loan Agreement and the
provision of Xiangtan Mortgage were both entered into within a
12-month period and are of similar nature. The applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the provision of the Mortgage to
secure the repayment obligations of Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture under the Loan Agreement, if aggregated with the
Xiangtan Mortgage, remain more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
therefore, the provision of the Mortgage to secure the repayment
obligations of Drawin Intelligent Manufacture under the Loan
Agreement remains subject to reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The on-lending of the loan from Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
to Drawin Investment also constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but is fully
exempted from Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing
Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (a controlling shareholder of the Company), none of the
Directors has a material interest in the Mortgage Agreement, the
Shareholder’s Loan and the transactions contemplated
thereunder.
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Decoration Works Agreements and the Landscaping
Works Agreements

On 17 June 2021, Drawin Intelligent Decoration Construction Co.,
Ltd. (“Drawin Intelligent Decoration”) and Drawin Intelligent
Landscaping Construction Co., Ltd. (“Drawin Intelligent
Landscaping “) (each a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into three Decoration Works Agreements and three
Landscaping Works Agreements, respectively, with Drawin
Construction Technology, pursuant to which, Drawin Intelligent
Decoration and Drawin Intelligent Landscaping shall be
contracted to carry out decoration works for a consideration of
RMB5,000,000, RMB6,000,000 and RMB19,993,000 and
landscaping works for a consideration of RMB3,000,000,
RMB2,000,000 and RMB2,860,000 for Drawin Construction
Technology at three premises in the PRC, respectively.

Drawin Construction Technology is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture. Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
indirectly held approximately 57.36% of the total issued Shares,
hence, a controlling shareholder of the Company. Drawin
Intelligent Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu
Po Sum, who is the father of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (a non-
executive Director). Therefore, Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
and Drawin Construction Technology and its branch companies
are connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Decoration Works Agreements and the Landscaping Works
Agreements require aggregation under Rule14A.81 of the Listing
Rules as they are all entered into with Drawin Construction
Technology in respect of the same three premises and are of
similar nature. Since all of the applicable percentage ratios in
respect of the Decoration Works Agreements and the
Landscaping Works Agreements in aggregate are more than 0.1%
but less than 5%, the provision of decoration and landscaping
works thereunder constitutes connected transactions which are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but
exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (who indirectly holds the entire equity interests in Drawin
Intelligent Manufacture), none of the Directors have a material
interest in the Decoration Works Agreements and the
Landscaping Works Agreements.
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On 7 July 2021, the Company and CCRE entered into (i) the
Framework Agreement | in relation to the provision of decoration
service by the Group to CCRE Group, namely the Decoration
Service Arrangement and (ii) the Framework Agreement Il in
relation to the provision of landscaping services by the Group to
CCRE Group, namely the Landscaping Service Arrangement.

Under the Decoration Service Arrangement, the contract price
for decoration services to be provided by the Group should be
determined with reference to, exclusive of tax, the estimated
costs of a decoration project, including construction fees,
technical measures fees, site management fees, among others,
and a gross profit margin of not more than 18% of such costs. As
disclosed in the announcement dated 7 July 2021, the Company
is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
cap in respect of the maximum aggregate transaction amounts
under the Decoration Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement I. Accordingly, such Proposed Decoration
Service Arrangement Annual Cap over the term of the
Framework Agreement | has been determined to be RMB200
million, RMB300 million and RMB400 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023
respectively (equivalent to approximately HK$240 million, HK$360
million and HK$480 million).

Under the Landscaping Service Arrangement, the contract price
for landscaping services to be provided by the Group should be
determined with reference to, exclusive of tax, the estimated
costs of a landscaping project, including construction fees,
technical measures fees, site management fees, among others,
and a gross profit margin of not more than 20% of such costs. As
disclosed in the announcement dated 7 July 2021, the Company
is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
cap in respect of the maximum aggregate transaction amounts
under the Landscaping Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement Il. Accordingly, such Proposed
Landscaping Service Arrangement Annual Cap over the term of
the Framework Agreement Il has been determined to be
RMB200,000,000, RMB300,000,000 and RMB400,000,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2023 respectively (equivalent to approximately
HK$240,000,000, HK$360,000,000 and HK$480,000,000).
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As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Wu Po Sum indirectly held 65.28%
of the issued Shares, hence an indirect controlling shareholder of
the Company, and indirectly held 70.11% of the issued shares of
CCRE. Mr. Wu Po Sum is also the father of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director). Therefore, CCRE is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and each of the
Decoration Service Arrangement and the Landscaping Service
Arrangement constitute a continuing connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Decoration Service Arrangement and the Landscaping
Service Arrangement are of revenue nature in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, and the counter-parties
are the same; therefore, in accordance with Rule14A.81 of the
Listing Rules, the Decoration Service Arrangement and the
Landscaping Service Arrangement shall be aggregated when
calculating the applicable percentage ratios.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Proposed
Decoration Service Arrangement Annual Cap and the Proposed
Landscaping Service Arrangement Annual Cap in aggregate
exceed 5%, the transactions contemplated under the Decoration
Service Arrangement and the Landscaping Service Arrangement
are subject to the annual review, reporting, announcement,
circular and Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 9 September 2021, a special general meeting was held. Under
the ordinary resolutions, shareholders are confirmed, approved
and ratify the Framework Agreements | and Framework
Agreements Il dated 7 July 2021 and the transactions
contemplated thereunder.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive Directors
The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the Decoration Service Arrangement and the
Landscaping Service Arrangement and confirmed that:

() the terms and conditions of the Framework Agreement |
and the Framework Agreement Il are on normal commercial
terms which are fair and reasonable;

(i) the Proposed Decoration Service Arrangement Annual

Caps and the Proposed Landscaping Service Arrangement
Annual Caps are fair and reasonable; and
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(i) the Framework Agreement | and the Framework Agreement
Il and the transactions contemplated thereunder were
entered into and will be conducted in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company and its
subsidiaries, and are in the interest of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

As at 31 December 2021, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge
and belief after having made all reasonable enquiries, (i) Mr. Liu
Weixing, an executive Director and the chairman of the Board,
directly holds approximately 0.03% of the issued shares of CCRE;
(i) Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua), a non-executive Director, directly
holds approximately 0.45% of the issued shares of CCRE and is
also a non-executive director of CCRE and the daughter of Mr.
Wu Po Sum (who is an indirect controlling shareholder of CCRE),
and (iii) Mr. Wang Jun, a non-executive Director, directly holds
approximately 0.55% of the issued shares of CCRE and is also an
executive director of CCRE. Save as disclosed above, no other
Directors has a material interest in the Framework Agreements
and the transactions contemplated thereunder.

Confirmation from auditors

The Company's external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
Proposed Decoration Service Arrangement and the Proposed
Landscaping Service Arrangement in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The external auditor has issued an unqualified report containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The Company
provided a copy of the report to the Stock Exchange.
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The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2021 for providing decoration and landscaping
services to CCRE Group:

a. have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;

b. were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

c. were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

d.  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Patent Licence Agreement

On 26 November 2021, Drawin Investment (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), as licensor, entered into the
Patent Licence Agreement with Drawin Construction Technology,
as licensee, for the grant of the right to use the Licensed Patents
in the PRC by Drawin Investment to Drawin Construction
Technology for the period commencing from 26 November 2021
to 25 November 2026. The licence fee payable by Drawin
Construction Technology to Drawin Investment for the right of
use of Licensed Patents is RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$36,565,000). The licence fee is arrived at after
arm'’s length negotiation between the parties with reference to,
among other factors, the market price range of patents
comparable to the Licensed Patents offered in the market and
the prevailing market condition. As disclosed in the
announcement dated 26 November 2021, the Company is
required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
caps in respect of the license fee under the Patent Licence
Agreement. Accordingly, such annual caps in respect of the
license fee under the Patent Licence Agreement over the term
has been determined to be RMB30,000,000, RMBO, RMBO, RMBO,
RMBO and RMBO for the year ended 31 December 2021, 31
December 2022, 31 December 2023, 31 December 2024, 31
December 2025 and 31 December 2026 respectively (equivalent
to approximately HK$36,565,000, HK$0, HK$0, HK$0, HK$O and
HK$0).
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Drawin Construction Technology is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Drawin Intelligent Manufacture. Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture indirectly held approximately 57.36% of the issued
Shares, hence a controlling shareholder of the Company. Drawin
Intelligent Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu
Po Sum, who is the father of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) (@ non-
executive Director). Therefore, each of Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture and Drawin Construction Technology is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The transaction
contemplated under the Patent Licence Agreement therefore
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
continuing connected transaction under the Patent Licence
Agreement is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the contemplated
transaction under the Patent Licence Agreement is only subject
to the annual review, reporting and announcement requirements
and is exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the term of the Patent Licence Agreement exceeds three
years, pursuant to Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed the Independent Financial Adviser to explain the
reasons for a longer period required for the Patent Licence
Agreement and to confirm that it is normal business practice for
agreements of this type to be of such duration.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the Patent Licence Agreement and confirmed
that:

(i) the terms and conditions of the Patent Licence Agreement
are on normal commercial terms which are fair and
reasonable;

(i) the annual caps in respect of the license fee under the
Patent Licence Agreement are fair and reasonable; and

(i)  the Patent Licence Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were entered into and will be
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company and its subsidiaries, and are in the interest of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (who indirectly holds the entire equity interests in Drawin
Intelligent Manufacture), none of the Directors has a material
interest in the Patent Licence Agreement and the transaction
contemplated thereunder.

Confirmation from auditors

The Company's external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
Patent Licence Agreement in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The external auditor has issued an
unqualified report containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of the report to
the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2021 for granting Drawin Intelligent Construction
Technology Group Co., Ltd. a nonexclusive, non-transferable and
non-sub-licensable right to use the Licensed Patents:

a. have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;

b.  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

c. were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

d.  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December
2021, the Company had no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed under
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect
to the connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in Note
35 to the consolidated financial statements. Save for the
connected transaction as disclosed above, none of these related
party transactions constitutes connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions, which is required to be
disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021:

()  The Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 8.1% and 16.8% of
the Group's total turnover respectively.

(i) The Group's largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 6.3% and 17.9% of the
Group's total purchases.

Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group Company
Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company, is a key
customer of 8.1% sales of the Group. The connected transactions
with Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group Company
Limited have been approved at the Board meeting and
Shareholders’ meeting (if applicable) of the Company.

Save for this, none of the Directors, their close associates, or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has any
beneficial interests in these major customers and suppliers.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect of the
shares of the Company under the Company's Bye-laws although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality products and services to our customers so
as to ensure the Group's sustainable development.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the New Scheme of the Company as set out in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire in the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting .

By Order of the Board of
DIT Group Limited

Liu Weixing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DIT Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of DIT Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) which are set out
on pages 92 to 223, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021,

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

BERKE SN ERAT - ZEEPRAFAEL —#
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

1. Impairment provision for trade receivables

2. Government grants
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1. BSRUSIEBERRE

2. BUFE

Key Audit Matter 1
BRETEIH

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B ET MRS ERETSE

Impairment provision for trade receivables
B 2 ERFIRERERE

Refer to Note 4.1 (Critical accounting estimates — Impairment
of trade receivables) and Note 21 (Trade and other receivables
and prepayments) to the consolidated financial statements.
2EGREVBEMEMTL N (EZESFHE — BHRKER
ERE) RMIEE21 (8 5 R H R RIE RIERFKIE)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's gross trade
receivables amounted to HK$2,013,117,000, against which
an impairment provision of HK$50,383,000 was provided.
RZZE=Z—F+=ZA=+—H EBEEEEFEKFESZ
#7%2,013,117,0007% 7T + ¥ bt 51 $2 A {8 # #5 50,383,000
BT °

Our audit work in relation to impairment provision for
trade receivables included:
BMBEHEE S EYGIERERENEST TIERE

e \We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
impairment provision for trade receivables and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

o BMTHEEREYNE D EWFIRR BN NIIE
HIFET RN @AE BT M EE A E M EE R
RRR(EHN  T8ME S EEERHIXERE
RASHEGEFZE)NEE  FHE TERERNEB R

7N
i

0 o
PR

e \We assessed the reasonableness of key input data
and major assumptions adopted in expected credit
losses of trade receivables, including the historical
default loss rates and the adjustments for the
historical default loss rates based on forward looking
macroeconomic data.

o HMATMTEEHAZBENSEBEMUURE S EWKIE
EHEEEETPERANEERR - BEELENEX
EMERAEE R CESBERLENBRENH
# o

85



DIT Group Limited ~ 2021 Annual Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
15 M A% B R R B

_E
pwec

R Rk

Key Audit Matter 1 (Continued)
BRESE (F)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMOET MRS ERETSE

Impairment provision for trade receivables
(Continued)
g ZEWFERERE (F)

The Group applied the simplified approach as permitted
under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9 — Financial
Instruments to measure expected credit losses which used
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables,
grouped by shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

BEEERAEAVBMELENFEIR— 2R T ALY
Bt AT ERBMEREEE - AERMEE S EIKIE
R EHRFEEREEREE REZEERREE KRS
REDHE -

We focused on this area due to the high degree of
estimation uncertainties and the subjectivity of
judgements involved in determining the impairment
provision for trade receivables.

BTN ZEE - TIAAEETRAEE 8T HEE M4 A
KIRETE S ERFIBERERENABOEZEME -
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e \We tested the accuracy of the ageing analysis of trade
receivables by tracing items in the ageing analysis, on
a sample basis, to the relevant supporting documents.

o HIMMBEHBREIITPNIEE ZFEFEANXHE - A
55 AR B 5 e UK IR BR e 0 AT O ZERE 1 ©

o \We tested the expected credit losses calculation
schedule for mathematical accuracy.
o BRMAREHEEBRAERHERNEBERIL

e \We checked subseguent settlements relating to trade
receivables as at 31 December 2021, on a sample
basis.

o BFUMEARNBER T -_—F+_A=+—H¥
SERFENEBRERE -

Based on the work performed, we considered that the
management’s judgements in assessing the impairment
of trade receivables were supported by the evidence we
gathered.

RBEFTETIE  HARRERBENEE 5 EUGK
TERME T E ) FIER S R RIS 8 -



_E
pwec

EREENREBERAT ~ —B-—FFH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B A% B R

i IRk K

Key Audit Matter 2
BRETEIH2

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMET A EEERETSE

Government grants
BB

Refer to Note 4.2 (Critical accounting judgements —
classification of government grants) and Note 6
(Government grants) to the consolidated financial
statements.

2RV BRERMNFI2(BEZES T HE —BRNHEL
D) KB EE 6 (BRATHEED) ©

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recorded government grants amounting to HK$37,660,000
in the profit or loss, among which HK$25,997,000 were
industry support funds and were recorded as grants
related to income.
EA@iZEZ*iJr*H_Jr HIEFE - EEBENE
7 FP 815 BUTT #7 B 37,660,000 78 7T, + E R 25,997,000 7 70
REFXEFER  WARAHEWZEEHE -

Grants related to assets are government grants whose
primary condition is that an entity qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-
term assets. Grants related to income are government
grants other than those related to assets. The Group's
management needs to examine the terms of the
respective government grants and apply judgements to
identify the related expenditures that are intended to
compensate for.
&ié?*ﬁF%Eﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂ?aix1\*1¢%A§TuEa%/,\ﬁﬁé-\ =

R AEMAXMERAEENBUTHEE - BN AEE
MBI EIEREEERBHNBUTHE 2 N RT B o
EEEEEETRE S BUN M BRI E A #6351 #
HEMEERY -

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of
government grants and the significance of management
judgement applied in classification of those government
grants.

HRBNENEZEREREEES BZSBNHERE
FrAAEEEY - JMBENZESE -

Our audit work in relation to government grants included:
BMERENHENEST TERRE ¢

e \We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of the
classification of government grants.

o BT REREHENMEM D BTG MG R

2o

e \We obtained and examined the terms of respective
government grants, including investment agreements,
clarification statements and bank receipts.

o HMEVSIREI S BUATRHEBIMIER - BIERERE
/ﬁ uREﬂ&fEfTJ‘IQTf’

e We conducted interviews with local authorities to
obtain an understanding of what the related
expenditures were intended to compensate for from
local authorities’ perspective, considering the
precondition and purpose of these government grants.

o HMEM T MERMESHRUANI TKEEAE T AR
i =2 #k %W RIEE © & E R %S BT R SR
E58:3E=S

e We sought for confirmations from those local authorities
to corroborate the assessment of the Group'’s
management.

o HMEXZEMSTHANER UFE E5EERE
[ BIaTE o

Based on the work we performed, we considered that the
management’s judgements in government grants were
supported by the evidence we gathered.
BRIBERMETHNIE  RMRAEEEEBNHE A
M HETS R R MR ERN BB F -

87



DIT Group Limited ~ 2021 Annual Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
15 M A% B R R B

i
pwec

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
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90

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mang, Kwong Fung Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2-—E-_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-ZE-—F HE_T-TF
+=—A=+—-H +=H + S|
IEFE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaF FHET FET
Revenue WA 5 2,085,226 1,089,284
Cost of sales HENA 9 (1,561,071) (744,080)
Gross profit EX 524,155 345,204
Government grants AT B 6 37.660 94,452
Other income HAtn g A 7 17,636 11,751
Other gains — net Hib i — 58 8 8,485 2,741
Selling and distribution expenses SHERDHEAY 2 (91,180) (69,9195)
Administrative expenses THRAX 9 (192,166) (132,472)
Net impairment losses on financial assets ﬁﬁlﬁ%ﬂ@%%)@%ﬁ 3.1.2 (47,111) (9,673)
Share of (losses)/gains of associates Hﬁ%%’& ok (E8),Mas (12,534) 5,551
Operating profit F il 244,945 247,639
Finance costs B E R AR 10 (56,912) (32,948)
Profit before income tax BR PS8 AR A 188,033 214,691
Income tax expenses i3t x 12 (49,056) (44,725)
Profit for the year FERF 138,977 169,966
Profit for the year, BUTALFEH
attributable to FERF
— Owners of the Company — ARRBEHEEA 132,375 158,833
— Non-controlling interests — JEPERR R 6,602 11,133
138,977 169,966
Earnings per share attributable to KATREBARGEER
owners of the Company ZR 14
(expressed in HK$ cents per share) (AERBILZS)
— Basic and diluted — EARREE 4.66 5.67
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
kEMEEINER

meRE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HiZ2 - ——

Fr-A=+—RIFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-E-—F BE_Z_FTF
+=—A=+—-H +=AH -i— =]
LEE HFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
HtaE FHET FE&T
Profit for the year FERR 138,977 169,966
Other comprehensive income, Hit2mEls
which may be reclassified HEBTREW
subsequently to profit or loss B EZERHZ
— Currency translation differences — N HERR 84,935 168,785
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEKE -
for the year,net of tax HERBLE 84,935 168,785
Total comprehensive income FEXHKNRERE
for the year 223,912 338,751
Total comprehensive income ABUTALTHENEE
for the year, attributable to EHEWNEEEE
— Owners of the Company — ARREHEEA 216,979 322,967
— Non-controlling interests — IR R 6,933 15,784
223,912 338,751
The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other L3l &R& 1825 K H b 2 [ U2 28 7% 8 ER B8 P Y 2 —

comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

BERIE -
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RN R

As at 31 December 2021 A-ZZE_—4%+=-A=+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=B=—F R_T_ZF
+=ZA=+—-H +=—A=+—H
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
BtaF FHET FETL
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB & 15 2,951,508 1,978,312
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 16 1,119,436 991,017
Investment properties KEMEHE 17 18,591 18,298
Intangible assets | AE 18 4,346 4,567
Deferred income tax assets EEFTSIREE 30 61,745 39,067
Investments in associates e q =i ANE] 19 241,514 222,996
Financial assets at fair value through NARBEFEBEED
profit or l0ss FFAEBENERERE 23 52,003 46,276
4,449,143 3,300,533
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 211,424 89,456
Trade and other receivables and B 5 N Eh W IE K TR
prepayments ~3E 21 2,238,936 1,159,868
Financial assets at fair value through NARBEFEBEEES
profit or loss TABENEREE 23 12,231 =
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeSEER 24 461,351 443,882
Restricted cash BRHIRE 25 187,717 219,613
3,111,659 1,912,819
Total assets EERE 7,560,802 5,213,352
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners RAREE AFTEER
of the Company
Share capital (nominal value) IR (HE1E) 26 1,240,960 1,120,960
Reserves #E 27 1,425,619 1,029,059
2,666,579 2,150,019
Non-controlling interests JEE AR =S 29 694,718 671,565
Total equity fERAAEE 3,361,297 2,821,584
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AR R

n"'.R
As at 31 December 2021 R=—ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-BZ—F RZZT-TF
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—"H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET FHEIT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Amount due to a related party e~ A 75 F10R 35 - 50,463
Deferred income PRIEUA 2,672 2,709
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSR B E 30 14,323 13,613
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 105,472 31,544
Borrowings BE 32 1,341,120 993,023
1,463,587 1,091,352
current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMENFIE 31 1,772,008 835,377
Contract liabilities AHEE 60,890 17,558
Current income tax liabilities MEFTISH A& 51,113 46,747
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 13,749 13,735
Borrowings BE 32 838,158 386,999
2,735,918 1,300,416
Total liabilities BEREE 4,199,505 2,391,768
Total equity and liabilities EakEEAHE 7,560,802 5,213,352

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 223 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2022 and were

signed on its behalf by:

Liu Weixing
ZEE
Director

EF

i fer & B AR 0 3R FE L B 5 — D BIAE -

FREI2BEMNEREMBREN_ZE__F=A
— Tt HEESTeE YAUTESEKEES

gRE:

Guo Weiqgiang
SER
Director
EF
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v'.R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T ——

FHZA=+—RIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRTEE A
Undistributed
Contributed profits/ Non-
Share Share  Exchange surplus Other (Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total  interests equity
REWER/
e R EE EiffE HABBRE iR (RiER) BE  FBRER st
Notes HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
lif:3 TEr TAr AT Tir TEr TEr Az T TEr
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-B-25-A-AMER 1,120,960 863,669 (76,79%) 131,166 29439 (2369%) 1831445 587598 2419043
Profitfor the year EEEH - - - - - 158,833 153833 1133 169,966
Other comprehensive income:  Eb 2N :
Currency translation differences NEERE - - 164,134 - - - 164,134 4,651 163785
Total comprehensive income FE2ANRAT
for the year - - 164,134 - - 158,833 3229671 15,784 338,751
Transactions with owners: RERARTHRE
Capitalinjection by ownership REEERT\ES
interests = 2% = = (5,655) = (5419 - (5,419)
Share-hased compensation IR BRSNS = = = = 1,02 = 102 = 1,02
Transactions with NCI: HFERERETNRS
Capital injection by non-controlling ~ #ERBRIAES
shareholders - - - - - - - 63,183 63,183
Total transactions with owners ~ EEAAZRBEE - 26 - - (4.629) - (43%) 68,183 63790
At 31 December 2020 RZE-S5+ZB=1-A 1,120,960 863905 87,340 131,166 2,810 (78,162) 2,150,019 671,565 2,821,584
Balance at 1 January 2021 R=B=-%-B-ANGH 1,120,960 863,905 87,340 131,166 2,810 (78,162) 2,150,019 671,565 2,821,584
Profitfor the year FEEF - = = - - 132,375 132,375 6,602 138977
Other comprehensive income:  Efh2ENE :
Currency translation differences NEREER - - 84,604 - - - 84,604 331 84,935
Total comprehensive income FEREUEEAR
for the year - = 84,604 - - 132,375 216979 6,933 223912
Transactions with owners: HEBARGHRS
IssLie of ordinary shares ERLER % 120,000 168,000 - - - - 288,000 - 288,000
Share-based compensation WRGBERME - - - - 11,581 - 11,581 - 11,581
Transactions with NC: SHEREREANRS
Capitalinjection bynon-controling ~~ EERREIAES
sharefolders - - - - - - - 16,220 16,220
Total transactions with owners REEAZRGEE 120,000 168,000 - - 11,581 - 299,581 16,220 315,801
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-£+-A=1-H 1,240,960 1,031,905 171,944 131,166 36,391 54213 2,666,579 694718 3,361,297
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should 4R & e 25 5 B 3k FE B8 P Bl 5 — O B8

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-Z=-—F BHE_T_TF
+=A=+—-H +=A=+—H
LFE IEFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hta FET FAT
Operating activities REEH
Cash generated from operations KEMSMNIRE 33 179,727 81,180
Income tax paid BERATEE (65,188) (21,421)
Net cash generated from operating BB ATISHIIR & 558
activities 114,539 59,759
Investing activities RETH
Purchase of properties, plants BEYE  BERRE
and equipments (890,234) (454,532)
Purchase of land use rights BE TR (31,751) (199,447)
Purchase of intangible assets BEERLEAE (103) (873)
Purchase of wealth management product 8% & ¥ 51 & @ (13,315) -
Investment in associates WE B E N A (40,747) (12,000)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—ENBRRIMME
A 4,693 -
Proceeds from disposal of equipments &R BRI PTSRIE 24,476 1,255
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMREIERNFTS
investment properties KIE 486 246
Interest received B FIE 5,398 3,123
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFAMNIREF8E (941,097) (662,228)
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FAERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2-—E-_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

Year ended
31 December
2021

Year ended
31 December
2020

BE-E-_—F HE_T-ZTF
+=ZBA=+—-H +tZ—A=+—H

LFE IEFE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Kta FET FET
Financing activities RMEER
Interest paid BAF A (98,273) (38,081)
Increase in deposit for bank borrowings ~ $R1TIEER B LN - (16,000)
Repayments of borrowings BEEER (329,748) (365,865)
Proceeds from borrowings BEHFTSHIE 972,549 1,182,729
Payment of lease liabilities HEBGERNHRT (32,677) (12,923)
Amounts due to a related party & — % R gt ?XIE - 81,438
Proceeds from issuing of ordinary shares — 3$17 & 3@ Fr 1S 708 288,000 -
Capital contributions by R ERTE
non-controlling interests 16,220 61,990
Net cash generated from financing BEESEENRES FE
activities 816,071 893,288
Net (decrease)/increase in cash iﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%fﬁlﬁ B
and cash equivalents wA) e FEE (10,487) 290,819
Cash and cash equivalents at i%ﬂﬁ’]iﬁi ;HReEEIER
beginning of the year 443,882 82,415
Net exchange gains on cash and RENFSEEBEMER
cash equivalents Wzt 558 27,956 70,648
Cash and cash equivalents atend of FXRMNRERBRELSEHIER
the year 24 461,351 443,882

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

DIT Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda on 28
February 1991 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its issued shares are listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) starting from 25 July 1991.

The address of the registered office of the Company is
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
is Room 7707 and 7708, 77th Floor, International Commerce
Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are prefabricated construction work,
decoration and landscaping services, granting licenses,
consulting services and sales of equipment in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

As at 31 December 2021, the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company is Mr. Wu Po Sum.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements have been
consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial assets and investment
properties which are carried at fair value.

—REH

ERBENMBREEER AR ([ARR]) TR
—hWA—F A+t \NBERRARE
—NMN—FREVERBREZTMAILA—K
ERENEREEAR - MEASBTRGOA
—NMN—FtAZTHBRREEBHARS
FrBRRAR ([BEAZAT]) ERETM °

N B 8% = BE M 4k 4 Victoria Place, 5th
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda e "ARI X ELEEMB BB B NE
Mt BERIKRIRE 5 EIH771E7707-
7708 F ©

ARBMEMBRR ([AREHE]) B EZER
RRMEARLME ([HE]REREER
RETRE - RHMEMRS - & T ERK
e - BRIR MIHE R -

BRR BRI e BHREAB TR
TTDEY) WEREREATIL(TETD

RZZE-_—F+-A=1t—H ARFANK
RIERBR R TAE

EXTRTHRSR

R BRI R FRA M RREFR
RO EIESFRRNERFEERKRA -

if

21 mEPEE
RRARGEMBEREREBERBNB
WELAN([HETB@ELEL ] RE
BRENEPIE 622 EM IR B EME -
AN HRERRELAAE AR -
KEHARAABEFENETERHE
ERARRBEIENKREEFEHE
fEHIEET -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2-—E-_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

100

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies.

New and amended standards of HKFRSs
adopted by the Group in 2021

The Group has applied the following amendments for
the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2021:

° Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 —
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2021 reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments
or interpretations are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

2 HFAETHRBSE @

2.1

BB ()
RETETEMBREENNMBR
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BV 2 R AR B R B FBIA THERT A

o  FIEEENFE —F_BER—F
BUBREEREIN BEE
FHERIFE 3N - BB HREE
RIE 75 BRI EERE
455 R EBER SR & ERE 16 5%
CZTEN

PA_E R 5I e9E 7T 7 1 38 1 B ) HE AR
SHERAEMATE YAEFITEYH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BT IS R AR MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.2 Subsidiaries 2.2 MEBAT
2.2.1 Consolidation 221 HHEAER

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

(a)  Business combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is
used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquired business

o equity interests issued by the group
o fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent

consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary.

BB 2 R HE AN SR B R B A A
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REBER S EERAGH A&
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NEER HHARBIE Wam T IAY
o RBHEBEINTIALHE X
FrARHBEEAEEEERE
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EBERSIELE DN - AERE
ANER B PR AR 2 TSR — 2K e
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B XA HERAWE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2-—E-_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

102

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Cconsolidation (Continued)

(@

Business combinations (Continued)
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:

° consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the
acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
those amounts are less than the fair value
of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

2 EAEHEERBIE@®

2.2 MIBATR(E)
221 AR ()

(@)

EHEvf ()

RETEA G P U H AT 3
BIBEREAFENRER
HRBERRDEOIIMER
SN PR R B e A
FEFE - ARERAR
BRIZ R A IEFE IR i
SmOERBEERBNAE
BB EFERRNPTIE

BRI -

WRERBKRARELR X
B

o FEEA(E

o BT RVEMISE
ERERNESEN

o [EMEATRANKK
BT R R ME B
B R REE

78 38 P UK B8 B] 3B R B R
BERARBENEZEBEARR
BE - W F e BERA
WEXH A #EREEFE
MAFE: TELENER
BEENBaERARHEER
B



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Cconsolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without loss of control

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is
recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because
of a loss of control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the
change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSS.

EREENREBERAT ~ —B-—FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HiZ2 - ——

Fr-A=+—RIFE

2 EXEBREE@®

2.2 MIBATRE(E)
221 HEABR ()

(b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2-—E-_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

104

2 EAEHEERBIE@®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

22 MEAT (E)

2.2.1 Cconsolidation (Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee's net assets.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control.
This is generally the case where the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HiZ2 - ——

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the board
of directors of the Company (the “Board of Directors”)
that makes strategic decisions.

The Group is managed centrally and the Directors are
of the view that the whole Group is one single
reporting segment and hence no segment
information is presented.
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2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HKS$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are generally recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedge and qualifying net investment
hedge or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on a net basis within “Other gains/(losses) —

"

net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(c)

(@

assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

income and expenses for each
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EAEHEERBIE@®

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 N¥ BERSEE

108

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs or revalued amounts,
net of their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements
and certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter
lease term as follows:

— Buildings 30 years
— Computer equipments 3-6 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

— Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years
— Equipments 10 years
— Leasehold improvements 3-5years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within “Other gains — net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less provision for
impairment loss, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition. When the assets
concerned are available for use, the costs are
transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
above.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. Subsequently, they are carried at fair value.
Changes in fair values are presented in profit or loss
as part of a valuation gain or loss in “Other gains/
(losses) — net”.

Intangible assets

Computer software licences

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of three to
five years.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation but are tested annually for impairment
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at
fair value (either through OCI, or through
profit or l0ss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.1 Classification (Continued)

210 EREE (&)
2101 5% (4&)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OCI. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

2.10.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.10.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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2

112

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.4 Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains, together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.4 Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or 10ss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other (losses)/gains — net.
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or 10oss on a debt
investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within other
gains in the period in which it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.5 Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OClI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is

established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains in the
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other

changes in fair value.

2.10.6 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the

receivables.

For other receivables (excluding value-added
tax recoverable), the Group applies the general
model for expected credit losses prescribed by

HKFRS 9.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.11 Inventories 211 FE&

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the
transfer from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges for purchases of raw materials.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business and related receivable. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade and other receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less loss
allowance.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

116

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. In the consolidated and
Company’s statements of financial position, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily
redeemable preference shares are classified as
liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.16 Borrowings 2.16 & &

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Preference shares, if mandatorily redeemable at a
specific date or redeemable at the option of the
holder, are classified as liabilities. The dividends on
these preference shares are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

EENFRAREENRAELENR
SEAHER - & B BE & IR S A AT
B BREGARR ZAA) LD
(BE 2 HaERZB8ERERNEE
REEREESSBEa REMEZEK
AR P HER ©

EE A& 7 6 % 8019 sk 2 SR BN ey
ERAT  RBRUEFRMEZNHER
HERRERNZHEAR BT -
ZEASELERNERRE AL -
el 7 8 38 VR BRUR 7% b B AT Be A BR 1 3K
2RI ZBERERENMLERR
BE S RBHTARNFKIE - WX H AR
B & BRI S o

SRR E A B R Sk i #F A AR
REONEBLEEIBRARE T
BERNBEESGBEREMEE
Weas R NIER BB E KA ©

ﬁff\\3F$%lﬁﬁ4ﬁﬂ%1¢%ﬁ‘uﬂ%%%m
HEREEREARERD 1218 A
TH'Hﬁ{g?ﬁA*EEHML@JﬁfE °

117



DIT Group Limited ~ 2021 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B IS SRR RE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2-—E-_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

118

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance
charges in respect of lease liabilities and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs. The exchange gains and losses that
are an adjustment to interest costs include the
interest rate differential between borrowing costs
that would be incurred if the entity had borrowed
funds in its functional currency, and the borrowing
costs actually incurred on foreign currency
borrowings. Such amounts are estimated based on
interest rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s
functional currency.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined for each annual period and are limited
to the difference between the hypothetical interest
amount for the functional currency borrowings and
the actual interest incurred for foreign currency
borrowings. Foreign exchange differences that did
not meet the criteria for capitalisation in previous
years should not be capitalised in subsequent years.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined on a cumulative basis based on the
cumulative amounts of interest expenses that would
have been incurred had the entity borrowed in its
functional currency. The total amount of foreign
exchange differences capitalised cannot exceed the
amount of total net foreign exchange differences
incurred on a cumulative basis at the end of the
reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.18 Income tax 2.18 FR8%

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(i)  Tax incentives

Companies within the Group may be entitled to
claim special tax deductions in relation to
qualifying expenditure (e.g. the Research and
Development Tax Incentive regime in Oneland).
The Group accounts for such tax incentives as
tax credits, which means that the tax incentives
reduce income tax payable and current tax
expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised for
unclaimed tax credits that are carried forward
as deferred tax assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group has participated in the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for its Hong
Kong staff. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The MPF
Scheme is generally funded by payments from
employees and by the Group. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are expensed
as incurred in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the MPF Scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions.

In accordance with the PRC regulations, the
Group is required to pay social security
contributions for its PRC staff based on certain
percentage of their salaries to the social
security plan organised by related governmental
bodies (“PRC plan”).

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid to the
MPF Scheme and PRC plan. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and PRC plan
are recognised as employee benefit expense in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when they are
due.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the DIT Group Employee Option Plan.
Information relating to these schemes is set out in
note 28.

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Share
Option Scheme is recognised as an employee
benefits expense with a corresponding increase in
equity. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

— including any market performance conditions;

— excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions; and

— including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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2 EXEBREE@®

2.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities 221 BERBAREE

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.
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2.22 Revenue recognition

(i)

(ii)

Revenue from sales of prefabricated
construction units

Sales of prefabricated construction units are
recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customers, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

When either party to a contract has performed,
the Group presents the contract in the
consolidated balance sheet as a contract asset
or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group's performance
and the customer’s payment.

Revenue from granting licenses

The Group enters into granting licenses
agreements with the customers. The terms of
these arrangements typically include non-
refundable upfront payments and milestone
payments.

For non-refundable upfront payments, revenue
is recognised at point in time, when the license
is transferred to the customer, and the
customer is able to use and benefit from the
license.

For milestone payments, at the inception of
each arrangement that includes milestone
payments, the Group assesses whether the
milestones are considered highly probable of
being achieved and estimates the amount to be
included in the transaction price using the most
likely amount method. The Group recognises
revenue from milestone payments as or when
particular milestones are highly probable to be
achieved.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from decoration and landscaping
services

Revenue from decoration and landscaping
services is recognised over the service period
when the service are render to the customers
as the customers can benefit simultaneously as
the Group performing.

When the outcome of decoration and
landscaping services contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the
contract is recognised progressively over time
using the output method, i.e. based on the
completion of a physical proportion of the
contract work.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract
are estimated to exceed the remaining amount
of the consideration under the contract, then a
provision is recognised in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2.21.

Revenue from sales of prefabricated
construction equipments

Sales of prefabricated construction equipments
are recognised when the control of the
prefabricated construction equipments has
transferred, being when the prefabricated
construction equipments are delivered to the
customer and accepted by the customer in
accordance with contract.
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2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Revenue from consulting services

Revenue from consulting services is recognised
when or as the control of the services is
transferred to a customer. Depending on the
terms of the contract, control of the services
may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the services is transferred over
time if the Group's performance provides all of
the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer. If control of
the services transfers over time, revenue from
consulting service is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
from consulting service is recognised at a point
in time when the required service and related
deliverables are provided to the customers.

Financing components

The Group adjusts the transaction prices for the
time value of money and recognises financing
components in other income.

2.23 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.24 Leases 224 HHE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for leases of property, plant and
equipment for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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2.24 Leases (Continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as a
starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received.

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

any initial direct costs, and

restoration costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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2.24 Leases (Continued) 2.24 HHE (&)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its land
and buildings that are presented within property,
plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for
the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of
office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
16.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company'’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are appropriately authorised and
no longer at the discretion of the Company.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to assets are included in
non- current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the expected lives of the related assets. Note 4.2(a)
provides further information on how the group
accounts for government grants.

2.27 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

. by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Earnings per share (Continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

2.28 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group, if

that person:
() ~ has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

2 HFAETHRBSE @

2.27 3RBR (&)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.

FHZA=+—RIFE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Subsequent events
Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group's position at
the end of the reporting period (“adjusting events”)
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes when material.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange
risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

3.1.1 Market risk
(a)  Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the
value of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The majority of the
Group’s transactions and balances are
denominated in HKD and RMB, which are
the functional currencies of the Company
and its non-PRC mainland subsidiaries,
and its PRC mainland companies,
respectively.

2 EAEHHERBIE@®

2.29 HEMKREE
RARER & E BRI BRI
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(@

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Company and its non-PRC mainland
subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities are
mainly denominated in HKD, except for
certain bank balances which are
denominated in RMB and United State
dollars (“USD"). As HKD are pegged to
USD, it is assumed that there would be no
material currency risk exposure between
these two currencies.

The PRC mainland companies’ assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in RMB,
except for certain bank balances which
are denominated in HKD. Accordingly,
cash denominated in HKD is subject to
foreign exchange risk.

Fluctuations in the exchange rates of HKD
against RMB will affect the Group's result
of operations. The Group does not have
any formal hedging policies. However,
management closely monitors the foreign
exchange exposure and will take actions
when necessary.

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5%, against
HKD with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have
been HK$4,200 (2020: HK$4,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of net foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of
HKD denominated bank deposits. All
borrowings are denominated in RMB.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The Group'’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to the Group's variable
interest generating bank balances and
bank borrowings with variable interest
rates in 2021 while the short term
borrowings with fixed rate exposed the
Group to fair value interest rate risk in
2021.

Except for cash deposits in the bank, the
Group has no other significant interest
bearing assets.

Management does not anticipate
significant impact to interest-bearing
assets and bank borrowings resulted from
the changes in interest rates, because the
interest rates of bank deposits and
borrowings are not expected to change
significantly.

A IS SRR EE
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBEE(HE)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued) 3.1. 175 E R ()
(b)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate b) HBHERERAALBERZE
risk (Continued) R ()
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, if MRZB-—FR-F_FTF
interest rates on interest-generating bank +=ZA=+—8" Th‘a’Jr SR
deposits and borrowings with floating I KA ZEF AT B
rates had been 50 basis points higher/ BRI R EF T K50
lower with all other variables held 1IE¥£ﬁﬁﬁfrEﬁ@m§k%’ﬁ%
constant, the post-tax loss of the Group C AREBREE
for the years ended 31 December 2021 ——¢&7? =z ¢+ ﬂ
and 2020 would have changed as follows: =+—RHILEFENTREZEER
A T8 -
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Post-tax profit increase/(decrease) #i1& 5 A0, Cmid)
— 50 basis points higher — FFS0EE2, (1,127) (1,050)
— 50 basis points lower — Tk 50 EE 2L 1,127 1,050
3.1.2 Credit risk 3.1.21=ERE
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s RZBEZ—FR-FE_FTF+=
maximum exposure to credit risk is trade and B=+—8 A£EBNEEEE
other receivables and bank deposits. [B\Be 3 B 5 % B A FE W ERIA R 3R

TR -

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the HE-_T-_—F+=-_H=+—H

Group recognised provision for impairment of HFE  AEEERE S REMW

trade and other receivables amounted to JFE 5 5k TE (B 8 8 47,111,000 78

HK$47,111,000 (2020: HK$9,673,000). T = F = T F :9,673,000%
TT) e



EREENREBERAT ~ —B-—FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR I RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applied the simplified approach as
permitted under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9 — Financial Instruments to measure
expected credit losses which used a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables,
grouped by shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. Expected credit losses are
determined based on historical default rates and
also incorporate forward looking information.
The Group identifies GDP growth rate, fixed
assets investment growth rate and producer
price index as the key economic variables
impacting the expected credit losses. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance
provision was determined as follows.

3 HNEEMEERSBMIA@®

3.1 B¥RMEZE#E)
31.21=E R (&)
B WA
EEERBAEBSM B RE LR
FOWR —EBMT EAHFNEH
EETETEHEEEBE  EERAM
B B 5 FEUNGRIE R & (E B i 78 AP
EEEE  BEAZEERRBRES
MR D4 - HHEEEE
DERBRAENEETE  TES
ATREEE R - NEE 1S GDPIZ K
R BAErEERERENEES
YEEEET AT EBREES
BHIELEEE HNZT=—
FR-_EBE-_ZFF+_A=+—
B ®WRETIENEERENT -

Less than 6 months  More than
6 months -1 year 1year
Current past due past due past due Total
AHOSR  BHAEAR AHZR
- ~EA E—f —F @t
As at 31 December R=-Z=—-%
2021 +=ZRA=+-H
Expected loss rate REEEX 1.0% 5.2% 10.9% 17.3% -
Gross carryingamount  BRE4&1E 1,666,167 183,026 79,604 84,320 2,013,117
Loss allowance BERE 17,479 9,585 8,705 14,614 50,383
As at 31 December R-Z-ZfH
2020 +=A=1+-H
Expected loss rate BHEEX 0.2% 2.0% 41% 26.6% =
Gross carryingamount  BRE&E 786,329 161,882 12,152 15,932 976,295
Loss allowance BERE 1,637 3210 502 4,244 9,593
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3

FHZA=+—RIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)
Bank Deposits

3.1

HEEREERSHM T A @)

g NS ESE )

3.1.21 B8Rk (&)

138

The credit risk on bank deposits are limited
since they are substantially deposited with PRC
state-owned banks and other listed banks. As
such, no significant credit risk from bank
deposits is anticipated.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Cash transactions are limited to high-credit-
quality financial institutions. The table below
shows the bank deposit balances as at 31
December 2021 and 2020:

RITEF

fﬁﬁf EI’M*EHKMEWE Y
mEREDF N BEEBRT
K E A ETERTT o Ett - FEAR
TERETEELEAEER
B o

ReEERRAGAMBMRRR
AEBREMEENKREE °

REeERHERNEEERR TN
TREE - TREIIN=_F=——
FR_F_FF+_A=1+—H
HYSRTTIF SR AB AR

2021 2020

=B —F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

Counter party REGEF FET FET
Deposits with the state-owned banks ~ # BIRITHFH

of the PRC 131,725 189,847
Deposits with other listed banks R B EM EmiRITH

of the PRC Fk 328,290 253,250

Deposits with other banks REALIRITHFK 1,336 785

461,351 443,882

Management does not expect any losses from EREEEBRITEEZERZIHF

non-performance of these counterparties.

TREAMBRERIRK -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3 HNEEMEERSBMIA@®

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 FEERERREZEF)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Other Receivables

Other receivables mainly comprise receivables
amounts due from related parties, land auction
deposits and receivables relating to disposal of
subsidiaries. The Group closely monitors these
other receivables to ensure actions are taken to
recover these balances in the case of any risk
of default.

The Group uses three categories for other
receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the loss provision is determined for each
of those categories. A summary of the
assumptions underpinning the Group's

3.1.21=EmE ()

Hith e hE
E@FW*”IE?EE 2y ek

HFRIE - THERREE R AR
HEM B AR M EUKEIR - K&
B & = ) B YR % 55 H b B R
8 - LARERIE H IR A2 R
R BREFE 8 I [0 1 S R K

ARER B BR A EL A FE MR ) = fE
Bl RREGEERRREES
BRI EEREN L - AEE
B EEBRELERNRRAE
BN

expected credit loss model is as follows:

Basis for recognition of Basis for calculation
Category Group definition of category expected credit loss provision  of interest revenue
Eil SEHERENER BARHCEFRRENER FISWMAGEER
Stage one Customers have a low risk of 12 months expected 0sses. Gross carrying amount
default and a strong capacity to Where the expected lifetime of an
meet contractual cash flow asset is less than 12 months,
expected l0sses are measured at
its expected lifetime.
F-IBR FPENRBRREEGENEE RRREANESHEL -GXE SKAEE
SRZRMBER HEERE12(8A 2 AMEE -
BHBLRENEEBRF AR
s °
Stage two Receivables for which there is a Lifetime expected losses Gross carrying amount
significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition
FRBR BEARARGERRBEEN FEHANESREX GEREE
MR
Stage three Receivables for which there is Lifetime expected losses Amortised cost carrying amount
credit loss since initial recognition (net of credit allowance)
E-[ER BEABALELEERENE HFEIANEEEX BHRAEREE (NREE
WesE BEL)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Other Receivables (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of
receivables and adjusts for forward looking

macroeconomic data.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provides
for loss allowance for other receivables as

follows:

3 BEEMEERSBMIA @)

3.1 FERERREZEF)
3.1.21 B8Rk (&)

HotofEW 558 ()
AEERBLRBARBEERS
% BT RBERGAEEER
cHEFERHNEEREX
% AEEEEREREEGR
B R 52 HB Ok R 30 50 B RE ME Y R R
RBEZUEREH A -

R —F+_A=+—H"
7R £ B Y E b U SR IB Y B 1 R
BT

Estimated Carrying

gross Carrying amount (net of

amount at Loss impairment

Category default allowance provision)

BOWIE IR

Bl HREE EERE (NBRBERE)

Amount due from related parties Stage one 39,638,206 (826,172) 38,812,034
JE L R B 5 5RO BB

Land auction and other deposits Stage one 37,300,625 (650,681) 36,649,944
THBRRREE KA MRS —BEEx

Receivables relating to disposal of Stage one 2,070,695 (44,934) 2,025,761

subsidiaries

BRANEMEA RN ERZRIE —EER

Others Stage one 44,890,785 (2,607,435) 42,283,350
HAh, F-HER

Others Stage three 9,567,375 (9,567,375) -
Hih BB

133,467,686 (13,696,597) 119,771,089




EREENREBERAT ~ —B-—FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B I SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3 BXEMEERESMIE@E
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBEEHE)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 3.1.21=EmE ()
Other Receivables (Continued) E e W R (#E)
As at 31 December 2020, the Group provides RZZEZTF+=—A=+—8"
for loss allowance for other receivables as 7 £ B Y H At B U SR IE B9 B 1R 1
follows: (P ORNE
Estimated Carrying
gross Carrying amount (net of
amount at Loss impairment
Category default allowance provision)
ERRhE REE
Wl BIREE EEEE (MBREEERE)
Amount due from related parties Stage one 30,493,608 (227,417) 30,266,191
JE e B 77 5RO a2
Land auction and other deposits Stage one 41,335,820 (65,623) 41,270,197
THFERREEREMEZES F—E
Receivables relating to disposal of Stage one 6,764,175 (53,108) 6,711,067
subsidiaries
ERAHEM B A RREYEIE B
Others Stage one 27,900,745 (116,609) 27,784,136
Hith E—EE
Others Stage three 6,585,200 (6,585,200) =
Hih E=PRER
113,079,548 (7,047,957) 106,031,591
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3 H¥EMEENESMTIE@
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBEE(HE)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk 3.1.3nBEL R
Cash flow forecast is prepared by the finance RERETEATIHAR RSB
department of the Company. Group finance RE . SR BEEHAEER
monitors rolling forecast of the Group's liquidity MBESFIEITRENTER - LA
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to BREBBE MBS ENEEM
meet operational needs. %o
Surplus cash held by the Group over and above AEEMBFERREEESNE
balance required for working capital are ERNBHRASTFHRNEBRY
deposited with bank with good credit rating. As EEFRBIT  RZT=_—F
at 31 December 2021, the Group held cash and TZA=+—H AEEFER
cash equivalent of approximately HK$461.4 ERESFEBEBEENLGILEE
million (31 December 2020: HK$443.9 million). BT(ZE_EF+_A=+—
H:4439B&ET) °
The table below analyses the Group's financial T%%"TEZ!SE EHEHaE -
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based ARRBER T —FR=FT=
on the remaining period as at 31 December ZF+ZA=FT—HEEYD 'JHJ%
2021 and 2020 to the contractual maturity date. HIEsA T B BRI B A 1T
The amounts disclosed in the table are the DH  RANBEBENSERAE LR
contractual undiscounted cash flows. AR RE °
Total
Less than Between Between Over  contractual
1year 1and?2years 2and 5 years 5years  cash flows
Eribka
PR-F -EERE  HERLE LREE HELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FiEr FAET FEL FEL FA7
As at 31 December 2021 R-B=Z-§
TZhA=t- E
Trade and other payables B S REEMFT 1,772,008 - - - 1,772,008
Borrowings B8 875,426 425,862 829,367 237,363 2,368,018
Lease liabilities HEAR 19,851 15,862 41,898 76,760 154,371
2,667,285 441,724 871,265 314,123 4,294,397
Asat 31December 2020  R=-E-EF
t=A=t-H
Trade and other payables 8 2 REMEMTE 804,389 30,988 - - 835,377
Amount due to related parties e/ B 28 - 50,463 = = 50,463
Borrowings EE 399,291 394,925 904,177 94,723 1,793,116
Lease liabilities Eafs 13,119 9,246 13,960 13,564 49 889
1,216,799 485,622 918,137 108,287 2,728 845
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings, obligations under finance lease, lease
liabilities and interest payable less deposit for bank
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents.

The gearing ratios of the Group at 31 December 2021
and 2020 were as follows:

A IS SRR EE

Fr-A=+—RIFE

3 HNEEMEERSBMIA@®

32 EXmEBRER
AEBERBEAEEREARERE
REMRES  RRRIBH DRI
RIEBREBAREE AR o

RETRFHRBREARLRE
BIRN FRROBESHE
R EEE LB ETR °

ZN- S
1 BT

AEBENEEABIRE %éK A
R AF B ER AR QB E - F
BENAER BEBEE- i‘ﬂfféﬁ
MEMFMERRITEERES MRS
;RS EEBBE

AEER_F-_—FR_F_FF
tT-A=T—HEMEERMBLENT :

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

R-B-—-§ R-ZT_FTF

+=ZH=+—-8 +=—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FEr

Total borrowings BIEE 2,179,278 1,380,022
Total lease liabilities HEAERE 119,221 45,279
Interest payable JEHF B 256 600
Less: Deposit for bank borrowings B RTTEERES (130,000) (130,000)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERASEEEE (461,351) (443,882)
Net debt FEIR 1,707,404 852,019
Total equity EmiaT 3,361,297 2,821,584
Gearing ratio BERAELE 50.8% 30.2%
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3 H¥EMEENESMTIE@
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AREEME

The table below analyses financial instruments TERMABHEEDTIRAALBEAR

carried at fair value by valuation method. The MERTHE - FRERNERAD

different levels have been defined as follows:

—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for — HREEXEEEERMSNR
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). BCRERARE)(F14) °

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within — BRTEVRABENREN  Z
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or BESEBBMNBRE AHME -
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or Al AEE (BMER) @ (BUR
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2). BER)BABE(E2H) -

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not — BEREBBEVIEREUVEHERMS
based on observable market data (that is, R A BE (BN IEr] Bk &
unobservable inputs) (Level 3). ABE) (B3R -

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AEBMEAAREBEFTEBEEEEHT

of the Group are measured at fair value by Level 1 ANEZZEREEFTHAE1RNEIR

and Level 3. BARBEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- F24K F3IR Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&Er FEr FEr FET

Wealth management product ¥28f 7 5 12,231 - - 12,231

Unlisted equity instruments  3E -tz T A - - 52,003 52,003

At 31 December 2021 R-B-—F

+=A=+—H 12,231 - 52,003 64,234

Financial assets at fair value A AREEFERH

through profit or loss B AERZE
BMEE - - 46,276 46,276
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EHF
—_A=+-— - - 46,276 46,276

There was no transfer between level 1 and 2 during

the year.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3 HNEEMEERSBMIA@®

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEMF(HF)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The instrument
is included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
technigues. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is included
in Level 3. The following table presents the changes
in Level 3 instruments for the years ended 31
December 2021.

REBMSZEENERTARAEE
THREERBRAMNTISRETE
WRZPT - RZE ~ &4~ TTRAR
BEQAXEEERAUES M LEN
RURE - MEBTIZRGRER -
MAEBEBRREZEAFELEER LK
FETHNMSERS - Z LA AR

WIRERMBEENSRIT A (15
IZSHTETR)AREBEIMERGE
FEETE -  ZEMEFERENAA
BEEMAEBEEMSHE UKD
KBEEBERMT WEETIAAA
BEMR2MERE ASES THE -
ZLEBIGTAE 2 -

fin — Bk A £ ER8 ABEILIERE
AERMISEEEL - MZITATA
FE3W o TRAWINTHEZZS=—F
TZA=+—HLEFEFIRTAMNE
@J o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3 BEEMEERSBMIA @)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DA EEME (&)
Range of Relationship of
Fair value at Valuation  Unobservable  unobservable unobservable
Description 31 Dec-21 technique(s) inputs inputs inputs to fair value
R-ZZB=-% TABRR
+=-A=+-H TAEE TABEY ABBEAR
g HAREE BERE BAYE AHBNEE EBENEE
(HK$'000)
(F#7)
Equity instruments 32,008  Income approach Long-term 0%  The higher the Long-term
BEall WASE growth rate growth rate, the higher
KB RE the fair value
KERREYNS -
AREEERD
Discount rate 9.01%~9.40%  The higher the discount
MR%E rate, the lower the

19,995 Asset-based
approach
BEERZ

fair value
WREYR
BABEGER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying
the Group's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

(a)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the
provision for impairment of trade receivables
based on the expected credit losses which use
a lifetime expected loss allowance for trade
receivables. This assessment is based on the
credit history of its customers and other
debtors and the current market condition as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of
reporting period, and requires the use of
judgements and estimates. Management
reassesses the provisions at each balance
sheet date.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a
number of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

4 EETFHMEFRHER

B A VBRI AERG A BEE
ERRIENERGER - EEEREREE
SRR INBITEHIE

fhET R A S TETR S - RETDRBBEL

BLEMCEAR(BEYREBERASAEY
ERENMBTE  BBSENARRENH

FEH) M {E I TR o

4.1 BB

(a) EZEKERE
rEBEEEREEEHEES
B E S ERFIAFEATFERE
HA B R B PR e e B 5 FE WRKIE
B ERE - ZATEERERP
REMEBRANEELERE R
MF1E R A KA 545 B K 49 A g
MEE - W HEEERAE R
o BEEETREEEERESR
H & (haa i o

(b) FiEH

$EIM%%yMT£%Em%
BHR -NRETHEHERBSHE
%'ﬁxﬁﬁixﬂ% BrD
REEFEE R RIANR 5 MaT
B AEEREBEREAFNEIN
MR G R IERAR S EZEE
REME - WX FEEHRED
B AER Y F ROk AT
FREZERFEFELEENHAE
A BNEIMORIEFR S EE N A

& o
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

148

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group assesses and analyses whether
property and equipment would impair on each
balance sheet date. When the carrying value of
an asset or a group of assets exceeds the
recoverable amount (the higher of the net
amount of fair value less cost of disposal and the
present value of estimated future cash flow), it
indicates that an impairment has occurred. The
net amount of fair value less cost of disposal is
determined by reference to the agreed sales
price or the observable market price of similar
assets in arm’s length transactions, less
incremental costs that are directly attributable to
the disposal of the asset. During the estimation
of the present value of future cash flow, the
management needs to estimate the future cash
flow of the asset or group of assets, and select
an appropriate discount rate to determine the
present value of the future cash flow.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by using valuation technigue. Such
assessment is made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties
and might materially differ from the actual
result. In making the judgement, reasonable
consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market
condition existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and actual transactions in the
market.

FHZA=+—RIFE

4 BEEIHEFRAE @)

4.1 EEES:HEE (F)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Nk BERREREAEERE
HE
AEENEEEABRAHYE
RiBEE A BEREE TG
ot - BEEERBEMANKREE
BEeRAKEER(AIAAEE
BERE SRR FEME R
KEERENBETHNRS

) RABLETRE - AAE
BEREREEMRNFRE  £2

ERFRGPHEUEENHED
ZERIATBRINTHER
BMEFERGERNZEEREN
BEXARNETE - B ARKE R
BRER ERERMLAZEE
EXREEANEAFRKRER
B WEBRENTREREER
%Iﬁimbiﬂ’ﬁﬁ@

ERMTAHRAEE

WK ERTSEENEHMTA
(PIEZN R BOTETE) R T
EBEDMAGBETEEE - A%
BRREHAEEETRIDE I
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)

(f)

Estimated useful lives and residual values
of property and equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives, residual values and
related depreciation charges for the Group's
property and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will revise
the depreciation charges where useful lives are
different to that of previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore depreciation expense in
future periods.

4.2 Critical accounting judgements

),

Classification of government grants

Grants related to assets are government grants
whose primary condition is that an entity
qualifying for them should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire long-term assets. Grants
related to income are government grants other
than those related to assets. The Group’s
management needs to examine the terms of
the respective government grants and apply
judgements to identify the related expenditures
that are intended to compensate for.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group recorded government grants amounting
to HK$37,660,000 in profit and loss, among
which HK$25,997,000 were industry support
funds. The Group’'s management concluded
that these industry support funds granted to
compensate for operation expenditures but not
for the land use rights the Group acquired or
subsequent plant construction expenditures.
Therefore, the Group recorded them as grants
related to income.

4 BEEIHEFRAE @)

4.1 EESEHEE (&)

()

4.2
),

WERR BRI TEAFRR
FerEfE
AEBEERERBEEEXINER
U ERREERERFRN
BELR  EEEBFAIERSF
B MrEBELAENTERA -
2R A FHE AR AR
B - Sl BH Sk OB 2 B S E
& BRI - B B sk FF BB A
BER BEEESEXNHEE
R o BERAEEFHATERRR
BERFAMEAFR - EERAEIRE
1Bt 7] B8 B B T At M I BR B
B EHREMEEHAITES
HIL RIS EEBELRE  tmE
BHARARBENTEERELE
flg

EERH

BB 7 B

HEEEMBNMBEEI2ERGA
FERERARE  EZRIMUH
I ARERAEENBAH
By - H245 =3 AE R A0 7 BY R 4R RR E2
B E R R R B i Bh 2 SN R
W AXEEEEETREER
5 #60 BA) (R R I 88 PR 41 T kT 6
ERMERAFX

REBEE—_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—
HIEFE  AEBRBZPHS
1B T #8 B 37,660,00058 7T - E
259970008 T REXHKFE
o AEBEEERARSZESE
KEBES AR EELSERSY
i A7 IE LA 5 B ATERS Ay L Hb (3
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FHZA=+—RIFE

5 REVENUE 5 WA
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-Z-—F BE_ZT-_THF
+=ZA=+—-H +t=ZA=+—H
IEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from sales of prefabricated REHEEERER A EEANY
construction units FY A 1,322,633 915,261
Revenue from decoration and landscaping 3k B 2 & F & MR AR 75 B9 Y A
services 551,472 37,432
Revenue from granting licenses RE R TEFEAME AL
WA 98,069 67,709
Revenue from consulting services R BB AR UA 79,020 27,210
Rental income HEWA 21,335 13,687
Revenue from sales of prefabricated REHEEERER N EELE
construction equipments HI U A 12,697 27,985
2,085,226 1,089,284
notes: Fitaz
(@  Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (@) FARSHAERNUBEER
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TEREINAREHNEREENBEFE
in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward ENNEBENRRRBORTIRRNBAS
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance e

obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
—BE-—F —ETF
+=-HA=+-—H +=-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Revenue recognised that was included inthe  REFNBEEANEBEEHAD
contract liability balance at the beginning of BERERA -
the year:
Sales of prefabricated unit construction TRRER A LB FHEESL
contracts 14,731 52,732
Sales of granting licenses contracts HR R MEAEHES R 614 -
15,345 52,732
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REVENUE (continued)

notes: (Continued)

(b)  Unsatisfied sales contracts
The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations
resulting from sales contracts.

A IS SRR EE

Fr-A=+—RIFE

5 WA @

Hfez - (4)

(b)

RAMENHEEN
TREHIAHE
£ o

BHOMELNRENEOR

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—-F T oTF
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Sales of prefabricated construction TRRER A RRENHESRD
units contracts 2,259,845 1,558,614
Sales of decoration and landscaping services — # & K EMIRIS S A4
contracts 502,372 60,352
Sales of granting licenses contracts HRRMERAEEESD 67,880 11,882
2,830,097 1,630,848
Government grants 6 BAF#HEBh
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-ZE-_—F HE-_ZT-TF
t=-ZA=t—-RB +t=-A=+—H
ILEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Industry support funds EEXEREES 25,997 84,845
Others B 11,663 9,607
37,660 94,452

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised government grants of industry support funds
amounted to HK$25,997,000 from local authorities. These
government grants were granted to compensate for
operation expenditures but not for the land use rights the
Group acquired or subsequent plant construction
expenditures. Therefore, the Group recorded them as
grants related to income.

BT —F+-_A=+—HI#F
B AEBERRBNTAPEERFE
25,997,000 7T © 7% F AT BY TD
AREEEERS  MLERTEE
FTERAS A Tt FA M sl 12 B R B 22 =%
MmN - A AEEEEARS
B A ERHEE o
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B IR RMIEE

FHZA=+—RIFE

OTHER INCOME 7 HiwugA
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-T-—F HE_ZT-ZTF
+=ZA=+—-H +t=ZA=+—H
LFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Financing component from a related party & & B8t 75 B9 @& 205 10,778 7,932
Interest income on bank deposits IRITIFE A B WA 5,398 3,123
Others Hith 1,460 696
17,636 11,751
OTHER GAINS — NET 8 Hitnlkzs — 58
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-T-—F HE-ZT=-ZTF
+=A=+—-H +t=ZA=+—H
IEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAEIT
Gains on disposal of equipments ERENE 5,449 529
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair QAR EEF AEBRN S EE
value through profit or loss ENASEERKE 3,217 -
Gains on early termination of RANLIEHE S QR
lease contracts 1,199 17
Fair value gains on investment properties & MEEHERN A A BEWE 29 279
Gains on transferring licenses (Note 35) SRR U S (BT 35) - 5,035
Net exchange losses b H 1R ER (1,148) (215)
Others Hith (261) (2,904)
8,485 2,741
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 EMHIATHEX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution B OEEERAN - HERDBEEY RITH
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as A DT :
follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-Z-—F BE_ZT_FF
+=ZA=+—-H +t=ZA=+—H
LFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Raw materials and consumables used B ARV R B FEm 774,617 439,942
Changes in inventories of finished goods, &M « ERERLER SR
goods in transit and work in progress FEE (68,973) 13,140
Subcontracting charges in relation to H3 3 & B AR AR TS B B9 MBS
decoration and landscaping services == 436,133 27,129
Employee benefits expenses (note (a)) BIwMAX (M @) 280,844 161,740
Labour outsourcing BN 84,589 68,855
Depreciation e 108,690 75,897
Amortisation of right-of-use assets F AL EMNEE 35,501 22,341
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEE 451 375
Short-term leases and low-value leases EHHEMEEEEERS
expenses 3,450 817
Transportation ERER 76,193 50,844
Land use tax and value-added T R R IR E R AN B
tax surcharges 23,403 18,598
Legal and professional fees FERREXEER 16,749 22,844
Utilities NHEXEHR 16,714 10,278
Entertainment and travelling expenses BERERE R 8,473 6,831
Bank charges RITWE 2,323 1,773
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN
— audit services — ZERT 2,236 2,033
— non-audit services — BRI =
Provision for inventories impairment GFERERE 1,984 1,165
Office expenses WAERI 1,377 1,279
Registration expenses BB 223 277
Others At 39,440 20,309
Total of cost of sales, selling and HEXA « SHERDHHAZIA
distribution expenses and RITH A 85
administrative expenses 1,844,417 946,467
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FHZA=+—RIFE

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 9 RBRHUHEISHIEEZ @)
notes: Bfet -
(@) Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ and (a) EBIRIFAX(BRESERESTHRASHS)

chief executive’s emoluments)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-Z=-—-F HEZ E_EE
+=A=+—8H +=—A=+—
IFEE Jtif‘;'
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Wages and salaries ITER¥® 254,770 154,664
Share-based compensation LARR D AETRE B & 11,581 1,026
Pensions BIRE 6,504 653
Other welfare benefit expenses Hib@FE R 7,989 5,397
Charged to statement of profit or loss FTARIER R EMEEmKERA
and other comprehensive income 280,844 161,740
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b) HBERSEHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILFE  £&

Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 include three (year
ended 31 December 2020: four) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 11. Details of the
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2021 of the
remaining two (year ended 31 December 2020: one) highest paid
employees (including the one senior management) are as

follows:

BEREEeHMAL  BE=2EE_
TRFE+ A= HUEFE EIR)ES
RENMECRHEE N P25 DA IR o
BE_Z-—F+-_A=+—"RHLEFE HE#K
ME(BE_Z-_ZTF+_A=t—HLFE:
—B)NEaHHER (BE-—R2EREEA
B)HFBIEEST -

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-—Z=-—-% HE_ZT_TF
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—AH
LHFEE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT

Salaries and other short-term e REMSEESER
employee benefits 3,124 889
Contribution to pension scheme RIS A 72 18
Share-based compensation LARR 15 BERE A B < 296 9
3,492 916
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9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued)

notes: (Continued)

(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
The remuneration to the remaining two (year ended 31
December 2020: one) highest paid employees (including the one
senior management) fell within the following emolument band:

9 EMEEISHNMEXZ@

M - (4)

(b)

HEREEHMAL ()
EBpmE(BE_T-_TF+_A=+—A1t
FE: —R)E=FHMER (BE—2sREE
AB)FBE T 58 E

Number of individuals

N
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BE-Z-—f§ HE_T-ZTF
+=H=+-—AH +=-—A=+—AH

IHEE IHEE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =7 1,000,000 7T 0 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7T 2 0

10 FINANCE COSTS 10 BERA
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

ﬁgz%i:_ﬂi Eki—? —= E'E
+=B=+-B t-A=+—A

IHEE EFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FE&r

Interest expenses on borrowings BEMSHRAXZ 97,929 38,623
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBENRERE 4,648 1,450
Less: Interest capitalised (Note 15) B BAREFE (KT 15) (45,665) (7,125)
56,912 32,948
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11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 11 EEEFIRE

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) EERERSTHRAEN#MS
The remuneration of every director and the chief BREENESTHAENEESEY
executive is set out below. There is no chief executive W fBEREITERABHEARRF
who is not a director of the Company. =
Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s BRETARRSENB AR EEAE
services as a director, whether of the Company or its AREH D KENIE -
subsidiaries:
For the year ended 31 December 2021: HE - —F+-_A=+—HItF
g :
Share-based
Fees Salary Bonus Pension compensation Total
IR A
Name #4 Be ¥4 ERgd Efhe  EHm#E &it

HK$'000 ~ HKS'000 ~ HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
FEn FEn FEx TEx FEx FEx

Executive Directors BTES

Liu Weixing (Chairman) UBE(ZE) 2,000 - - 18 2,268 4,286

Guo Weigiang Peia () 800 2,058 - - 1,082 3,940
(Chief executive officer)

Wang ling I# 1,567 - - - 412 1,979

Non-Executive Directors FUTES

Wu Wallis T 60 - - - - 60
Wang Jun T 60 - - - - 60

Independent Non-Executive BuH{TES

Directors
Lee Chi Ming EEH 240 - - - - 240
Jiang Hongqing ZHE 240 - - - - 240
Ma Lishan il 240 - - - - 240

5,207 2,058 = 18 3,762 11,045
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11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 11 E2EEFRES @)

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EERERSTHRAENMS (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020: Bz Z-_TF+_-_A=+—HIHF
E
Share-based
Fees Salary Bonus Pension  compensation Total
D]
Name % e % FRBS Bhe  ARO#: At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
Executive Directors YTES
Liu Weixing (Chairman) NEE(FR) 72 - - - 201 927
(appointed on 21 AUg2020)  (R-ZE-T%
NAZT-BZf)
WU Po Sum (Former chairman) — EER (512E) 1,20 - - - - 1,280
(resigned on 21 Aug 2020) (R=Z-%F
NAZT—HE)
Guo Weigiang (Chief executive &% (77847 1,994 800 = = 9% 289
officer)
Wang Jing IF 400 58 1930 - % 2914
(appointed on 21 Aug2020)  (R-ZE-T%
NAZT-BZf)
Yang Hongwel N 560 - - - - 560
(resigned on 8 May 2020) (M=F=%F
RANBEE)

Non-Executive Directors FUTES

Wu Wallis TH 60 - - - - 60
Wang Jun Tk 60 - - - - 60

Independent Non-Executive BiE&HTES

Directors
Lee Chi Ming B 20 _ _ _ ~ 210
Jiang Hongging AR 240 4 - - . 20
Ma Lishan il 240 - - - - 20

5,800 1,348 1,930 = 333 941
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2 - ——

11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

158

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group did not provide any termination benefits, or
pay or receive any consideration to or from third
parties for making available directors’ service.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the Group did not have outstanding loan, quasi loan
or other dealing enter into by the Company or its
subsidiaries, in favour of directors of the Company or
its controlling shareholder, or the body corporates
controlled by such directors or entities connected
with such directors.

The emoluments of the directors are decided by the
Board of Directors, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics as well as the
recommendations of the Remuneration Committee of
the Board of Directors.

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

FHZA=+—RIFE

11 EEREMRES @)

(a)

ESNBESTRAENME (&)

BE-F-—FR-T-FET-A
=+—BLEE ARELHARE
EFRBT %A % = R AR
SRR S 9 SO TR 18 -

HEZZ - FR-_TE_FF+=A
=St—HILEFE AEEWTEREE
B AR R SKEME A RIS AERR
AIEEREERRE  hZEES
THIMEAERSHZEEETEHE
NEBAX R ANBKRERER £
BERHEMR S -

EEHEHETEELRARENE
BRE - BARRRTELBTE G
SHEEUREFRHIEERORE
R -

ADAEFHEAAA T T 8A
EEEBERANERINBE"T

——FR-E-TF+-A=+—H
FEEARMEANEERS &
BB A O A A EA R R
S -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12 Fi8HiFAxX
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2021 2020
BE-E-—F HE-_ZT-TF
+=HA=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—H

ILFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Current income tax REFTSHRL
— PRC corporate income tax — PRGN 69,958 36,602
— Hong Kong profits tax — BEREH = =
69,958 36,602
Deferred income tax (Note 30) EIEFTIS L (BY7230) (20,902) 8,123
Total income tax expenses for the year FREMEHAXERE 49,056 44,725
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 12 FiS#HMXZ @)
The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax REBE TR FTEF AR R M FrE R B B A
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using EEETNARIFERRDBHOHERTED
the enacted tax rate of the home country of the companies e ARG - BEEHLIT

160

within the Group as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-—Z—-—F HBE_ZT-FTF
+=-B=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
LEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE&r
Profit before income tax KR P15 350 A A 188,033 214,691
Income tax calculated at respective B BATMETERNMEN
Statutory rates 49,288 55,226
Preferential income tax rate BEMEHE (2,932) (6,219)
Previously unrecognised tax losses ﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬁu RIEEENAEE
recognised in current year as deferred RBELERIAE E
tax assets (129) (8)
Non-deductible expenses AT S 1,167 543
Non-taxable income BAERBBA (9,397) (726)
Research and development expenditure BEIMOKR A2 S
additional deduction (12,680) (8,952)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax — Eh @1 RFER T E E 18
losses (563) (558)
Tax losses and temporary differences not  RAERAIRILFIEE & &) F4 18
recognised as deferred tax assets EERER M EE 14,093 7,148
Prior year's tax filing differences FEERNER 10,209 (1,729)
Total income tax expenses for the year FE PIS BRI S A RR 49,056 44,725
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HiZ2 - ——

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Hong Kong profits tax

The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% (year
ended 31 December 2020: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit derived in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2021.

PRC corporate income tax

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“CIT
Law”), the CIT rate applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries
established in mainland China is 25%, while certain
subsidiaries are applicable to the preferential tax rate of
15%.

The CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a
withholding tax at 10% for dividends distributed by a PRC-
resident enterprise to its immediate holding company
outside PRC for earnings generated beginning 1 January
2008 and undistributed earnings generated prior to 1
January 2008 are exempted from such withholding tax. A
lower 5% withholding tax rate may be applied when the
immediate holding companies are established in Hong
Kong according to the tax treaty arrangement between the
PRC and Hong Kong. The Company’s mainland China
subsidiaries did not have plan for distributing dividend to
the Company in the foreseeable future, thus no such
withholding tax was accrued for the year ended 31
December 2021 (year ended 31 December 2020: Nil).

DIVIDEND

A final dividend in respect of year ended 31 December 2021
of HK$0.01 per ordinary share (year ended 31 December
2020: Nil) has been proposed by the board of directors of
the Company and is subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on
24 May 2022. The aggregate amount of the proposed
dividend expected to be paid but not recognised as a
liability at year end is HK$31,024,000.

12

13

A IS SRR EE

Fr-A=+—RIFE

FrE#imMX @)

EBNEH

HE T -_—F+-_A=+—HILEFEER
B & BT SRR M EA N EEFSBR
RE165% (BE_E_FTF+_A=+—
BIEFE : 16.5%) °

FEIGCEMEH
BRIBEPEDEMETE(TREMEEED -
ZNER B R AR B A A S /9 B /B A R A E B 4
EFMBHHRHEA2%  METHEARBA
15% 2 BB K o

m%% STEREERMBARPEERSE
R-ZEZN\F— A —BABREENEF ME
u#¢I%WmE&?““7% Ik AR B
B 10% TEHE - MR ZTEENF—H—H
A EE A M) R 7 IR B A A 2 B A 8 A TR N
ﬁo@%$ﬁﬁ§%%ﬁ%%ﬁ§%vﬁﬁ
B A RIR BB - BRI g8 ARIER
5%TEMBE « A B AARK - AR FIHH
B P 1tb B B A B I AT &l A AN A B 2R BR
S MU —E—F+_A=+—HIFE

EA R EMBHR (B2 _FF+ A
=t+—HIFE: &#)-

;135!

ARREESCEZHE_T - —F+_-A

=+ —HUEFENRBRE SR @001
AT(BE_ZT_ZEFT-_A=1t—BL*F
B 8) BALKRRESNR_-_T__F1h
AZtTHBESTHRRBEFAG LitE - 2
BEORERNFERIS/AENEZR AL
#H 731,024,000 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2 - ——

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) Basic

FHZA=+—RIFE

14 SREF

(@

Basic earnings per share for the year is calculated by
dividing the consolidated earnings of the Group attributable
to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

B %S
FEBREXBNDREARBESR
AFIEARRBEEBFRIAFAD %
TEBRNINETFESREAESE -

162

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-—ZT-—F BHE_T_TF
+=ZA=+—-H +Z-A=+—H
LFEE IEFE
Consolidated earnings attributable to ZAN/NGIE RS NI E =
owners of the Company (HK$'000) &R (FET) 132,375 158,833
Weighted average number of ordinary BT TRy hntE
shares in issue (‘000) FHE(FR) 2,837,743 2,802,401
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERBR GEM) 4.66 5.67
(b) Diluted (b) #%
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting BREERAN T FEBRABEITEINE
the weighted average number of ordinary shares BREOMELESEABREFAE BEE
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive HE %Hxaﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ cREEC
potential ordinary shares. For the year ended 31 B R T FFT_H=1—

December 2021 and 2020, the calculation of diluted
earnings per share excluded the share options
granted to directors, senior management and other
employees on 30 November 2020, as their inclusion
would have been antidilutive. Therefore, diluted
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 are equal to respective basic earnings
per share.

HIEFE SREERNNAETE
ER_Z_FTF+—-A=tHBERTE
E RREEENEMEENBEE
ARMAZSERES AAREEN
Rt #E—FT-_—FR_F_
FET _A=+T—HLFENESRE
SBRNERD B2 SGRELRERF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% - BERRE

Plant under

development

for

prefabricated

Computer Motor  Furniture & Leasehold  construction

Buildings  equipment vehicles fixtures  Equipment improvements husiness Total
RREHEES
BEEHN

g7 ElRE RE BARRE EE HERE  ABER it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

i i1 Fir i1 Fir i1 Fir i

At 1 January 2021 R=%=-%-5-8

Cost BA 1,194,759 6,679 12416 44,611 400,960 29,055 523,622 2,212,102
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (92,385) (3,594) (5,686) (15,953) (93,935) (22,237) - (233,790)
Net book amount FETE 1,102,374 3,085 6,730 28,658 307,025 6,818 523,622 1978312

Year ended 31 December 2021 HEo5--&

TIAZT-BLEE

Opening net book amount ENEESE 1,102,374 3,085 6730 28,658 307,025 6818 523622 1978312
Addtions HE 3910 1814 13,07 23,609 13,243 51,992 922,060 1,029,699
Transfers upon completion THEER 186,677 - - - 118,501 - (305,178) -
Disposals HeE - (364) - (4938) (13,725) - - (19,027)
Depreciation charge TEER (39,209) (1,323) (4,189) (8923) (45,028) (10,018) - (108,690)
Currency ranslation cifferences LSt 34,707 9 3 1,005 10,134 200 2,745 72
Closing net book amount FREAFE 1,288,459 3303 15,944 39411 390,150 48,992 1,165,249 2,951,508
At 31 December 2021 WBZ-F+p=t-H

Cost R 1,423 364 8,046 26,050 64,425 521,763 81,880 1,165,249 3,290,777
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (134,905) (4,743) (10,106) (25,014) (131,613) (32,888) - (339,269)
Net book amount FETE 1,288,459 3,303 15,944 39411 390,150 48,992 1,165,249 2,951,508
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% - RENRRE @)
(Continued)

Plants under

(evelopment

for

prefabricated

Computer Motor Furniture & Leasehold ~ construction
Buldings  equipments venicles fixtures  Equipments  improvements business Total

ARERRES

RERHH
B EHRE T RLRRE ES HEXE ERAR &3t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
T FAL T AT FEL T FEL AL

At 1 January 2020 R-2-%E£-A-H

Cost KA 826018 4683 7498 1927 22977 35,563 397,702 1,570,368
Accumulated depreciation 258 (58,819) (2.359) (2413 78%) (61451) 2173 - (154,040)
Net book amount B 761203 238 5,085 18,094 M52 1439 397702 1416328

Year ended 31 December 2020 H2-5-%E

TZA=T-ALEE

Opening net ook amount FEAFE 761,203 2328 5085 18,094 211526 14390 37,702 1416328
Addtions HE 126 1633 4,084 12734 39,166 580 457,087 515410
Transfers upon completion THREE 29,051 - - = 66,6% - (365,747) =
Disposals e = (18) (588) (51 (1,144 = - (1801)
Depreciation charge R (27815) (1,045) (3,055) (5,782) (29861) (8519 - (75,897)
Currency translation differences NEnEEE 63809 187 1204 3663 0462 37 34,580 124,272
Closing net book amount FXEEFE 1102374 3085 67390 28,658 307,005 6818 53622 1978312
At 31 December 2020 R-3-BF+-A=1-H

Cost A 1194759 6,619 1246 4611 400960 29055 523622 212,02
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (92,385) (3,594) (5,686) (15,953) (93,935) (2231) = (233,790)
Net book amount SETE 1,102,374 3085 6730 2,658 307,025 6818 52362 1978312
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of HK$108.7
million (year ended 31 December 2020: HK$75.9 million)
has all been charged to administrative expenses and cost
of sales in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2021, property, plant and equipment
with a net book value of HK$400.8 million (31 December
2020: HK$419.7 million) were pledged as collateral for the
Group'’s borrowings HK$210.4 million (31 December 2020:
HK$218.7 million). Among the collateral, property ownership
certificate of the Group’s building with a net book value
HK$281.1 million (31 December 2020: HK$280.6 million) is
under China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd.. These buildings
were pledged as collateral for two bank borrowings of
HK$171.2 million (31 December 2020: HK$164.6 million)
which was secured by China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd..

Interest expenses of HK$45.7 million were capitalised in
plant under development for prefabricated construction
business for the year ended 31 December 2021 (year ended
31 December 2020: HK$7.1 million).

15 V£ - BERRE @)

ME - BEMRENEI1087EEST(HE
—ZE_FF+-A=1+—HILFE 7598
BET)ERGEBakEME2EKERD
TR RS E AP 0Bk o

R-ZE-—F+-A=+—8 EEFESL
A008BEXT( ZE-_TF+_A=1+—8:
MOTEBETT) ME - BE MEREE TR
JEAREERGE210458E (=2 =%
F+-A=+—H:2187A8BBT)BEN
EHG  FELEBERT  AEERDFE
ERINEEBTL(ZE_EF+-_A=1+—
H:2806BEABT)NEFHNEEZRBR
FREKRBRARET - ZSEFEEMRE
EMELEAI7I2EEAL(ZE_ZF
+=A=+—8H 1646 BEBT) NIRITE
EriERY - P RERKBRARERR -

HE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HLEFE A
REREREXEEEBOEEREFER
FERMEZALTBEEAT(BE_T_2F
TZA=T—HLEFE :718EHT) °
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16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16 FRHEEE
This note provides information for leases where the Group A EE AR A - BIAK I ASIZMHE
is a lessee. o
(@) Amounts recognised in the statement of (@) REBRRARFTERZEH
financial position
The statement of financial position shows the MR RIRATBBEHRE &5

following amounts relating to leases:

Property,
plant and Land use
Right-of-use assets equipment right Total
R
EREEE kE#E LT ERRE st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET

As at 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—%—H—H 45,399 945,618 991,017
Additions NE 124,304 40,091 164,395
Disposals HeE (23,531) - (23,531)
Amortisation charged into profitor B sEst AfB3E

loss (21,282) (14,219) (35,501)
Amortisation capitalised to plant BHEERCEEERE

under development - (6,715) (6,715)
Currency translation differences HNES T E E R 2,283 27,488 29,771

Balance as at 31 December 2021 RA=E=—F+=#
=t+—Rz#& 127,173 992,263 1,119,436
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16 FHEEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Amounts recognised in the statement of (@) REBRRARFTERZEEE(H)
financial position (Continued)
Property,
plant and Land use
Right-of-use assets equipment right Total
EREEE R TR @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FEIT
As at 1 January 2020 R-Z2-ZF—H—H 13,332 713,255 726,587
Additions NE 40,551 204,538 245,089
Disposals mE (382) = (382
Amortisation charged into profitor — ##4zt Al8%s
loss (10,276) (12,065) (22,341)
Amortisation capitalised to plant BHEERCEEERE
under development - (4,796) (4,796)
Currency translation differences SN E =R 2,174 44,686 46,860
Balance as at 31 December 2020 A=—ZE_=-ZF+=f
=t+—B & 45,399 945,618 991,017
As at As at
31 December 31 December
Lease liabilities 2021 2020
R-ZB-—F RZZT_ZTHF
HEaE +=-—B=+—-8B +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current RE 13,749 13,735
Non-current FETRED 105,472 31,544
Total lease liabilities HEaEERE 119,221 45,279
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2 - ——

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(b)

FHZA=+—RIFE

16 FRHEEE @)

168

(c)

Amounts recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income

The statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

(b)

RESERHEMEERSERPERZ
&

BRElEMEARERITATERH
HEZ2E%

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-_ZT-—% BEz_ZT-%%
+=ZBA=+—HBH +tZ—A=+—H
IEFEE 1EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Amortisation charge of right-of-use FREESEHEER
assets
— Property, plant and equipment — W - WER&E 21,282 10,276
— Land use right — T A 14,219 12,065
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEaEMERT 4,648 1,450
Short-term leases and low-value CHIHEREEEHEERS
leases expenses 3,450 817
The Group's leasing activities: (c) XEBZHEEH:
The Group leases various property, plant and REEREREYME BERZE-

equipment. Rental contracts are made for fixed
periods of 1 to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions.

As at 31 December 2021, right-of-use assets, with a
net book value of HK$433.8 million (31 December
2020: HK$658.5 million) were pledged as collateral for
the Group's borrowings of HK$1,532.8 million (31
December 2020: HK$926.7 million).

HESNEIE10FHEE R AT
3 o FHE R TI B B EfE Lt ed
BE BB T RGN R -

RZEZ—F+ZHA=+—80 " KA
FEARIBIEEBT(ZZTE_EF
+—-—A=+—H :6585B&BIT)H
EAEEECERIEATRNEE15328
BEBTERNERAR(ZE =4
+ZA=1+—H8:9267E&BT) °
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17 REMBEHE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BE-ZE-_—F HE_ZT-_ZF
+=BA=+—RH +=Z—RA=+—8H

LFE IEEE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

Beginning balance FUEER 18,298 17,080
Disposals k= (270) (149)
Fair value gains on investment properties & WER QAR BEKE 29 260
Currency translation differences INEEIT B = KR 534 1,107
Ending balance FRER 18,591 18,298

Investment properties held by the Group are all commercial
properties located in Shandong Province, the PRC.

All investment properties were revalued as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 by Graval Consulting Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer. The revaluation
gains or losses are included in ‘Other gains — net’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (Note 8).

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the fair value of
investment properties which was determined using income
approach by reference to the value of income, cash flow or
cost savings generated by the asset.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into/out of fair
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer. The investment
properties are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy as at 31
December 2021 and 2020. There were no transfer among
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years.

AREBEFENREMEHEY SR B
REWAEEDE -

AEREMEHEDRBLEXESERME
B RBRARARAN T _—FR_
T TFF A=+ —BETEHNRHE-E
fEHﬁZ sRERDMAGEEa REMEEK
mRE [ HAb et — FEEJ(FHEES) -

m:%:—i&_v_?¢+ A=+—

CKREUERHENAABEERARA
/2 WREWPAEE BeRENEEEE
HIEf B P AR EE ©

AEEHNBRR AN EHER =R BRAE
MBH BRAABESHRANEA E
He RZFB-_—FR_F_FF+_H
=+—H BEUEHEENAAEBEES
FE3W - FARN - FNR - F2RNEIRZE
Bmsg -
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B IR RMIEE

FHZA=+—RIFE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17 REMUEHME @)
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value {HESASEERENABENEZ
The valuations were performed based on the income ZEREEEMETIREBWR ALK (EHKEE
approach (term and reversion method) or direct R SNHEEBELBORETIE  WE B A
comparison approach for those investment properties. The SEELF LA TN E AN ] B R iy A 28 -
following significant unobservable inputs for income
approach have been used:
Relationship of
Fair value at 31 Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description December 2021 technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
R-B=-fF
+ZA=+—-H AABE TABERAYE
it WAREE [“ERSE WARE FTABERAYENEE HAABENBE
HK$'000
FET
commercial 18,591  Income Term yield Term yield of 4.0% (2020: 4.0%),  The higher the term
properties (2020: 18,298)  approach taking into account of yield yield, the lower the
generated from comparable fair value
properties and adjustment to
effect the certainty of term
income secured and to be
received
HmEME 18,591 W A% S THWEZA0 (ZE-ZF: THREXHES
(ZZ2=Z5: 4.0%) © EET R AT B NAEEMIE
18,298) EEMaEL R AR MEEY]

ERE REERGHEHRA
[kG oS

Were the rental rate and yield rate required assumed to

MRRBEENEE RN EEENTR

increase or decrease by 10% from management’s estimate, H'J %U‘Fi' A 10%  R=F——F k=
the carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 FoEFET A=t BHNREURMEN
December 2021 and 2020 would have changed as follows: FREE R HIRIA T EE)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=B=—F R_T_ZTF
+=B=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Investment properties increase/decrease to & & MR ERE I, WL =
— 10 percent rental rate higher — &M 10% 20,303 20,080
— 10 percent rental rate lower — &R 10% 16,756 16,515
Investment properties increase/decrease to & & MR EKE I, =
— 10 percent yield rate higher — YEE E I AN 10% 17,857 17,585
— 10 percent yield rate lower — W = F A 10% 19,203 19,011
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(Continued)

The following rental income amounts relating to the
investment properties have been recognised in the

17 IREMEME ®)
(HEH A RIS R EA 2 EE0EE )

NTERREMEHENHSWRABBER
e Em M A2 R R R

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BE-®R--% BE-T-2F
eASi-R T=Aei-n

ILFE LFFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

Rental income GEEALL PN 733 686

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

B EE

Computer software

SHEE G
HK$'000
FHEIT

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-_—H+-A=1+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FYEREFE 4,567
Additions AT 103
Amortisation charge BiEEA (451)
Currency translation differences INEITH ERE 127
Closing net book amount FARREFE 4,346

At 31 December 2021 R=-B=—F+=-H=+—H

Cost AR 5,726
Accumulated amortisation R (1,380)
Net book amount FREFE 4,346
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 18 BHEE @)
Computer software
£
HK$'000
FET
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-ZE-ZHF+-A=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FYEREFE 3,619
Additions NE 873
Amortisation charge BIHE A (375)
Currency translation differences INEEHTH AR 450
Closing net book amount FRERMEFAE 4,567
At 31 December 2020 R-EBE-EF+-A=+—H
Cost BN 5,462
Accumulated amortisation RETEEE (895)
Net book amount REDFE 4,567
For the year ended 31 December 2021, amortisation REBE—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HILEFE "
charges of intangible assets were HK$451,000 (For the year REEELEENEHEER /45100048 7T
ended 31 December 2020: HK$375,000). (BE2ZT_TF+-A=1+—HIEFE:
375,000/ 7T) °
19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 19 RERBZE QT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

RZB=Z—F RZZE-_ZTF
t=A=+—-8 +t=A=+—"H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Share of net assets Frih B EFE 241,514 222,996
Less: Provision for impairment A RE R = =
241,514 222,996
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19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19 RERBI=Z DR (&)

As at the 31 December 2021, the Company had indirect RZE-_—F+=-A=+—8 XEERT
interests in the following associates: BBt N B EA RS
Carrying amount
REE
Place of As at 31 As at 31
incorporation Proportion of Issued  Principal December  December
Name and operation  ownership interest share capital  activities 2021 2020
R-B=-F RIB-E%
ERALR Tt=A TR
8 BEwd HEREELA BRIRA TEEE =1-A =1-A
Held by the  Indirectly
Company held HK$'000 HK$'000
RADREE HEEE TEn TEn
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology China - 49% HK$200,000,000  Construction 200,877 202,28
Company Limited* i Ar200000000  industrialisation
IR EERNBERAR BEEZY
YMCI China Minsheng Kunming China = 30% RMB100,000,000  Construction 14,866 20,768
Technology Construction Limited* & AR%1000000007c  industrialisation
ERARPRERRHERAR BEEZY
Nanyang Drawin Intelligent Manufacture - China = 20% RMB100,000,000  Construction 7470 =
Technology Limited* (a) i ARE100000000c  industrialisation
HREREERRERAR@ REEZY
Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology China - 40% RMB15,000,000  Construction 6,818 -
Company Limited* (3) i AR%15,000,00070 industrialisation
BEERERRENHERAA @) REEE
Baoying Maizheng Drawin Intelligent ~ China = 20% RMB100,000,000  Construction 4,962 =
Manufacture Technology Limited* (@) AR®10000000070  industrialisation
EREFEREERBBRAA@ BEEZY
Shaoguan Drawin Intelligent China = 20% RMB50,000,000  Construction 250 =
Manufacture Technology Limited* (@) = ARES00000007c  industrialisation
PHEREERRERAR@ BEEZY
Shanggiu Jinyao Drawin Intelligent China - 10% RMB100,000,000  Construction 2215 -
Manufacture Technology Limited* (@) = ARE100,0000007  industrialisation
BEeEEREENHERAR @ REEZY
Xiangxi China Minsheng Drawin China - 49% RMB20,420,000  Construction 893 -
Technology Company Limited* (a) AR%20420,00070 industrialisation
REPRERNBEREFAA () BEEX
Henan Dongzhu Drawin Ecological China = 49% RMB10,000,000  Construction 833 =
Environment Protection Limited* (a) ARE10000000t  industrialisation
MHRKER EERRERAA () BEEZY

*  For identification purpose only

Note: Biat -

(@)  For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group invested in () BEZZE-—F+-A=1+—HLEHFE &%
certain associates. The total addition of investments in EiREE THE AR - AR E A ARE
associates amounted to approximately HK$40,747,000. A £ #9540,747,000 7T °

The financial year end dates of the above associates are tﬁﬁﬁﬁ?%éﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁf%ﬁﬁﬁ B E/

coterminous with that of the Group. MR FEAERAAER -
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19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

174

(i)

(ii)

19 BRENRBZE QT (@)

commitments in respect of associates (i) FERAEEQATNEE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

R-ZB-—F R-ZE-_FTF
t=A=+-8B +t=A=+—AH

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Commitments to pay up the subscription {38 & A8 2 7 &
capital 57,583 -
Summarised financial information for an (i) BHEARNNBER/ME

associate

The tables below provide summarised financial
information for the associate that is material to the
Group. The information disclosed reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of
Zhejiang Anju Drawin and not the Group's share of
those amounts. They have been amended to reflect
adjustments made by the Group when using the
equity method, including fair value adjustments and
modifications for differences in accounting policy.

TERHFIHANEEEE RN E QA
MBERBE - FIRENERRBRR
TR EEROMBERRFP A2
R - MIEAKBIEZFEENMNHE
ZEENEHAKEERARSAETT
A RRFENER - BREAEER
BERHEABRRNZRETER -
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19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HiZ2 - ——

Summarised financial information for an (i)

associate (Continued)
Zhejiang Anju Drawin

The Group recognised share of losses of associates
of HK$5,801,000 from Zhejiang Anju Drawin using the
equity method for the year ended 31 December 2021

B IR RMIEE

Fr-A=+—RIFE

nv'.R

19 IRENVBENE (@)

BEARMBEERNE (&)

WIEEER

BE_T -+ -_A=1t—HLF
B AEEERXENILEEREZ
B ZARNEEBREAREBER

(2020: gains of HK$2,891,000). 5,801,000 (=T =T F : & F
2,891,000 7T) °
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-B=-—F R-T-_ZTF
+=—A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Summarised statement of financial R R KREPE
position
Current assets MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReMIRSEFMEIAE 19,950 26,733
Other current assets HEMmEEE 299,010 205,838
Total current assets MENEELARE 318,960 232,571
Non-current assets IEmBEE 314,965 322,850
Current liabilities mENAE
Financial liabilities (excluding trade TRBE(TRIEES
payables) FE3IR) 220,156 =
Other current liabilities EmmgatE 198,463 259,739
Total current liabilities M BERRE 418,619 259,739
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 3,972 75,232
Net assets EEFE 211,334 220,450
Group’s share in % REBEFFLDE(ESL) 49% 49%
Group’s share in HK$ REBFTL R (BT) 103,554 108,021
Goodwill and adjustments EEPE RS 97,323 94,207
Carrying amount BRI B 200,877 202,228
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19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(i) Summarised financial information for an

associate (Continued)

19 BRENRBZE QT (@)

(i) BMEQRAMBERBRE (F)

Zhejiang Anju Drawin (Continued) WIZEER ()
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

+=A=+-8 +=A=+—8H

IEFE WEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue WA 458,513 276,194
Profit before income tax B P55 Bl i A (13,789) 12,266
Income tax expenses IR (1,320) (639)
Other comprehensive income HEmemmlias - =
Total comprehensive income 2EWEEEE (15,109) 11,577
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19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(iii) Individually immaterial associates
In addition to the interests in a associate disclosed

19 IRENVBENE (@)

(i) ERFEERBELQT
i ap@i4-3:0) S ) NI L e

above, the group also has interests in a number of Sh - REBTNAERIFEE R E A A
individually immaterial associates that are accounted AR WERARREAALR -
for using the equity method.
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=B=—F RZ_ZTF
+=A=+—-H +=A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Aggregate carrying amount of &R FEE KRB = A
individually immaterial associates IREABE 40,637 20,768
Aggregate amounts of the group’s AEBEGEATSEN
share of: BEFE
(Losses)/Profit from continuing REFELCEERH (E
operations 18) = (6,733) 2,660
Post-tax profit or loss from KRB R ETEHIBR TR
discontinued operations & E N BE - =
Other comprehensive income EmemEmilas - -
Total comprehensive (losses)/income 2H (BR), /Wi (6,733) 2,660
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20

178

INVENTORIES 20 &8
As at AS at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=-B=—# —T-TF
+=HB=+—H JF—)EJ:JF*EI
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET F#ET
Raw materials RA7# 107,897 53,249
Finished goods BIRK fh 79,121 32,375
Goods in transit FrEm 12,358 237
Low value articles EEZEm 33 293
Work in progress ER 14,785 4,623
Inventory provision FERE (2,770) (1,321)
211,424 89,456

Provisions of inventories to net realisable value amounted
to HK$2,770,000 (2020: HK$1,321,000). These were
recognised as an expense for the year ended 31 December
2021 in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$705,644,000
(2020: HK$453,082,000). These were included in cost of
sales.

BEET R FENTE /2,770,000 T
(ZZE=Z4F :1,321,00087T) ° EZ%%’\IEEA
FeBRRLEMEHRERTHRI/EE
T2+ _A=+—HUIEFEMNRX -

HE T -_—F+_A=1+—HILFEER
BRI FEE A705644008 T (ZEF
& : 453,082,000 7T) * HET ASEERA ©
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impairment of trade receivables of HK$50,383,000 and provision
for impairment of other receivables of HK$13,697,000 (31
December 2020: HK9,593,000 and HK$7,048,000, respectively).

2 MR

17,048,000 7¢) ©

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21 B SR HE{tifEWEIERFaTEIE
PREPAYMENTS
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
RZB=Z—F RZZE-_ZTF
+=B=+—H +=Z—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET
Trade receivables — third parties BERWGIE —F=7 1,217,674 756,326
Trade receivables — related parties E 5 EINGRIE — g 795,443 219,969
Value-added tax recoverable AU 32 (E R 119,873 71,053
Amounts due from related parties JiE s B B 75 SR IE 39,638 30,494
Notes receivable R E & 31,118 9,320
Prepayments SN 22,569 17,096
Land auction deposits THEFR IR 20,008 28,348
Deposits e 17,292 12,988
Government grants receivable FEW BT #E B 2,630 5,228
Receivables relating to disposal of EHETNENB R RN EKGIA
subsidiaries 2,071 6,764
Others Hi 34,700 18,923
2,303,016 1,176,509
Less: Provision for impairment of trade B B ERGRIE R EA
receivables and other receivables FE W IR R B R
(note (a)) (K1t (@) (64,080) (16,641)
2,238,936 1,159,868
note: Btat -
(@  As at 31 December 2021, such balance included provision for @ RZEBEZ—F+-A=+—H Z&EHBEZ

k7% 50,383,000 7 4036 B e B
B R 13,697,0007% 72 KR (6 18 s ( = F =
TE+=A=+—F: 5

711 49,593,000 % 7T
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21

B IR RMIEE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 based on the invoice issue date were as follows:

FHZA=+—RIFE

21

BEZREMBWRERFEMNRE
(#)

BEOREFIER T —FR T _TF+ =
A=1+—BRAAZZEHNKREROMET

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

R-B-—F R-ZE-FTF
+=—A=+—H +-A=+—H

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FE&T

Less than 1 year DR—F 1,912,328 772,764
1to0 2 years —EMF 74,610 199,954
Over 2 years BB T 26,179 3,577
2,013,117 976,295

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 is the carrying value of each class of
receivables mentioned above.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the fair values of trade
and other receivables approximate their carrying amounts.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
receivables and prepayments are denominated in the
following currencies:

ﬂ474—¢&4747¢+ A=+—H
ﬁﬁﬁ nuFﬁ ;f\f AAZ%J: l:l E\/DJIJ}:Z%J‘I&/TAIE\
FIARE(E -

N_E - —FR-_T-_TF+_A=1+—
B Z5REMEWKRZIENAEELEER
EEER -

REBNE 5 K H b YRR A M FE A 50R
MAREEA N IIEEEHE -

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

RZBZ—F RIZT-_ZTF
+=A=+—-H +=-—A=+—H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK dollar BT 10,907 6,540
Renminbi AR 2,228,029 1,153,328
2,238,936 1,159,868

The creation of provision for impairment of receivables has
been included in “Net impairment losses on financial
assets” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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22 MELRINER

(@) The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRAR-_Z-_—F+-A=+—8H
31 December 2021: WEZEMBARRE :
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAREREE REERE FERERER
HMRLRESEEH WEBRLA WEBRLA HEBRLA
£ NREABRER TEEH BRITRAZE (BSk) (A2k) (BAk)
% % %
Benelux Property Development Ching, limited liability  Property USD5,000,000 100% 100% -
(Shanghai) Limited*"® company (evelopment 5,000,000%
EREXEE(LG) BRAR mE - BRAR NELE
South East (Shandong) Property Ching, limited liability  Property RMB15,000,000 100% 100% -
Limiteg'e company development ARE
RE(LR)EEBRAF" wEl - BRAA NELE 15,000,0007C
Sunshine Universal Development BVI, limited liability Inactive N 100% 100% =
Limited comparny TREK %7
EBRRES BR
G
Perfect Gold Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited ~ Investment holding HKD2 100% 100% -
HERERRAR liability company B EK 28T
&8 ARAT
Shangheng Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding N 100% 100% =
HWFBRAA company REER (Er
EBRLES BR
G
Commit Glory Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 - 100% -
JIERERRAR liability company ~ ®&RK BT
&4 BRAA
Giant Achiever Development Limited  Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 - 100% -
ERIERARAR liability company ~ ®EER BT

&i& BROA
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 MEBATNER @)
(Continued)
(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TFTRARZZE-_—F+_A=+—H
31 December 2021: (Continued) NEBHBARZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAREERE ASERE FEREERE
HMRREREE WERRLA  HEBRLA LERLA
£ NREABRER TEEH BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (BAt)
% % %
Fame Glory Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 - 100% -
ERREERAR liability company &R 1871

&% ARLA

Noble Walk Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding UsD1 100% 100% -
WITBRAT company RERR (E
XBRLHE ER
G
Noble Tide Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding usD1 100% 100% -
HWHBRAR company RERR %7
EBRLHE ER
A
Zheyou Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD10,000 100% 100% =
MREEBRLE liability company ~ REZR 10000%7

B BRAA

Guiyou Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD10,000 100% 100% =
ERREERAR liability company ~ REZR 10000%7

&8 ARAA
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Ching, limited liability  Construction HKD1,530,000,000 = 100% =

Technology Investment Limited** company industrialisation ~1,530,000,00078 7
SREENBRERRAR wEl - BRAR BEEZY
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The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2021: (Continued)

22 B ATINER @)

@ TER/RN

— = —

=

—#+=A=+-8

MEEMBAREE : (&

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  ARENE FEREERE
ARMA LRSS MEBRLA WEBERWA WEBRUA
£ NREABRER  TEEH BRAREKFE (BAk) (BAL) (BAL)
% % %
Shenzhen Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 200,000,000/ 7
AIERBERFARAR® TE - BRAE REEEL
Lux Property Construction Ching, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 - 100% -
Technology (Shanghai) Limited*® company industrialisation 200,000,000/ 7
IERERR(LE)BRAR® TE - BRAE BEEEL
Nanjing Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 - 97% 3%
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 200,000,000/ 7
(note (1) HEl - BRAA BEEEL
RARERBENRARARC
()
Hengyang Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction HKD100,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*® ~ company industrialisation 100,000,000 7T
BRERBENRBRRR® ME - ARAR REEXY
Foshan Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction HKD100,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*® ~ company industrialisation 100,000,000 7T
FERBERNHERAR® ME - ARAR REEXY
Hefei Drawin Intelligent Manufacture ~ China, limited liability  Construction HKD95,000,000 = 100% =
Technology Limited*® company industrialisation 95,000,000/ 7T
AEERBENBERARC ME - ARAR REEXY
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 MIELTINER #)

184

(Continued)
(@) The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRANR-ZE-_—F+-A=+—H
31 December 2021: (Continued) WEEMBARIEZE : (&
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAFERKE AEERE FERERER
AMAIRESLY MEBRLA  HEBRLA BRI
£ NREABRER TEER BRAIRAFSE (BSk) (BAL) (BAk)
% % %
Changsha Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction HKD?1,108,000,000 = 51% 49%
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ~1,108,000,0007% 1T
(note (i) mE - BRAA BEEZY
ROERBERBARAR®
(k)
Kunshan Drawin Intelligence China, limited liability  Construction RMBS50,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation A #%50,000,0007C
EERBERERFBRAT B ARAA BEEEL
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture China, limited liability  Construction HKD23,650,000 - 100% -
Intelligent Technology Limited* company industrialisation 23,650,000 %7
(formerly known as China HE - BRAR REEFY
Minsheng Drawin Intelligent
Equipment Technology Limited)*®
EREEREMBERAT
(B0 iﬁdﬂﬁﬁ‘i?x‘ ﬁéééﬁﬂ&
BRRE)®
Huizhou Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB60,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*@ company industrialisation ARE
ENEREEREARAR mE - BRAA BEEZY 60,000,0007
Huidong Drawin Manufacture China, limited liability  Construction RMBA40,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limitet*® company industrialisation ARE
BREREENRARAR® mE - BRAR BEEZY 40,000,000



22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

EREENREBERAT ~ —B-—FFH

=
=a

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S AR B B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2021: (Continued)

@ TRARZ-ZZEZ

22 B ATINER @)

—#+=A=+-8

MEEMBRARRE : (&)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  ARERE FERERRE
AMELRESLE WEBRLA HEBRLA HEBRLA
8 NREABRES TEEK BRITRAZE (B2t (BAk) (Bat)
% % %
Pingdingshan Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB80,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ARE
TRLEREEREERAR® hE - BRAA BEEEL 80,000,0007C
Yuxi Drawin Intelligent Manufacture  China, limited liability - Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Technology Limited*@ company industrialisation AR
FEERBENRER AT ME - ARAA REEX 100,000,000 7
Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou Drawin Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB137,250,000 = 51% 49%
Intelligent Manufacture company industrialisation ARE
Technology Limited*® (note () HE - BERAA BEEXL 137,250,0007
FEMBMERBERFAR
(Wt ()
Xiangtan Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*@  company industrialisation ARE
HRERBENRARAR® T BRAE BEEEL 70,000,0007C
Jiaozuo Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology Limited*@  company industrialisation ARE
EEERBENRARAR® T BRAE BEEEL 70,000,0007C
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 MEBATNER @)
(Continued)
(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TFTRARZZE-_—F+_A=+—H
31 December 2021: (Continued) NEBHBARZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAREERE A5ERE FEREERE
HMRIREREE WERRLA  HEBRLA EZERLA
£ NREABRER TEEH BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (BAt)
% % %
Huaf'an Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology company industrialisation ARE
Limited*® (formerly known as wEl - BRAA REEZY 70,000,007
Huai'an China Minsheng DIT
Limited)

EZERBENRERLRC
(FRELFRERBERR

BRAR)

Chongging Shi Qijiang Qu Drawin Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Inteligent Manufacture Technology — company industrialisation ARE
Limited+ hE - BRAA REEXI 100,000,000 7

EETRIBEREENEARLAC

Wuxi Drawin Intelligent Manufacture ~ China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Construction Technology Limited* ~ company industrialisation ARE
(formerly known as Wuxi China Bl » BRAH BEEXL 100,000,000
Minsheng DIT Limited)*®

EHEREERENRERAA
(FIRES T RERBEMER

BRAF)e

Shijiazhuang Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limitec*®  company industrialisation ARE

RREERBENBARARC ME - BRAR REEXI 100,000,000
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 MEARKER @)
(Continued)
(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRAR-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H
31 December 2021: (Continued) MEBWBARRZE : (&)

Proportion of

Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares

incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by

operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling

Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests

BAREERE ARERE FEREERE

HMRIREREE WEBRILE WEBRHA NEBERHA

£ NREABRER TEEH BRITRAZE (BAL) (BAk) (BAt)

% % %

Chengdu Dayi China Minsheng China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Drawin Technology Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
RARERRERMBEERAR®  HE - BRAF BEEEL 100,000,0007C

Wuhan China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Limited* company industrialisation ARE
RERRERBERBBRAT BB ARAA BEEEL 100,000,0007C

Chengdu China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 - 100% -
Limited* company industrialisation ARE
RAPRERBENRERAR®  HE - BRAF BEEEL 700000007

Tianjin China Minsheng DIT Limited*® ~ China, limited liability  Construction RMB150,000,000 - 100% =
REPRERBERHERAA® company industrialisation AR
TE - BRAE BEEEL 150,000,0007C

Langfang Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB150,000,000 - 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ARE
BHERBENRARA® TE - BRAE BEEEL 150,000,0007C

Xuzhou Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited®®  company industrialisation ARE
BNERBENRERAR® TE - BRAE BEEEL 100,000,0007C
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(Continued)
(@  The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRANR-ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H
31 December 2021: (Continued) NESHBRARIRE : (&
Proportion of
Place of Proportionof  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAREERE A5ERE FEREERE
HMRIREREE WERRLA  HEBRLA EZERLA
£ NREABRER TEEH BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (BAt)
% % %
Nantong Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 60% 40%
Manufacture Technology Limited* ~ company industrialisation ARE
(formerly known as Nantong mEl - BRAA BEEZY 100,000,000
China Minsheng DIT Limitec)*®
(note ()
HREREENRERAR
(MEERT REREERE
BRAE) (i)
Zhoukou Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology Limited*@ company industrialisation ARE
FANERBERBARAR HE - BRAA REEFY 70,000,000
Zhengzhou Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB300,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ARE
PNERBEREARAR® mE - BRAR REEFY 300,000,000
Zhengzhou Drawin Construction Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
Limited* company industrialisation ARE
PNERBERNERART® HE - BRAR REEFY 30,000,0007C
Drawin Intelligent Landscaping Ching, limited liability  Landscaping RMB50,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Co,, Ltd.*@ company Services ARE
ERBERNIRARAR® HEl BRAR Epvddiv 50,000,0007C
Drawin Intelligent Decoration Ching, limited liability  Decoration RMB50,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Co,, Ltd.*® company Services ARE
FRBERNIRERLF® mE - BRAR RS 50,000,0007C



22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HiZ2 - ——

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

EREENREBERAT ~ —B-—FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

v',R

B IR RMIEE

Fr-A=+—RIFE

22 B ATINER @)

@ TR/RRZZZ—F+ZHA=+—H

31 December 2021: (Continued) MEZBHBARIGE : (B

Proportion of

Place of Proportionof  Proportion ordinary shares

incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by

operation and Principal of issued directly held  shares held non-controlling

Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests

BARERRE  ARERE FERERRE

AR E MEBRLA  HEBRLA WEBERULA

£ DREAERER TEEK BRITRAFE (BAH) (Bok) (BaL)

% % %

Drawin Construction Limited*® Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
SRBERRIRERAAC company industrialisation ARE
mEl - BRAR BEEZY 100,000,007

Luoyang Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*@ company industrialisation ARE
REEREEREARARA) ME - ARAH REEXL 100,000,000

Znumadian Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB60,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*@ company industrialisation ARE
SRR B ER R ARAT ME - ARAA REEXL 60,000,007

Drawin Decoration and Construction  China, limited liability  Decoration RMB50,000,000 = 100% =
Limiteqx® company services ARE
SREEENREIREARRR  HE FRAA SHRT 50,000,000 7T

Henan Drawin Decoration Limited*®  Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB450,000,000 = 100% =
MRERBERNEFEERAT®  company industrialisation ARHE
mEl - BRAR BEEZY 450,000,000

Haikou Drawin Construction Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB10,000,000 = 100% =
Technology Limitec*® company industrialisation ARE
BOERRERBARARC ME - ARAH REEXL 10,000,000

Hainan Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Construction company industrialisation ARE
Technology Limited*e HE - BERAR BEEXL 100,000,000

BEEREERENRARAA®
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

@)

190

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2021: (Continued)

22 MBATIMNER @)

@ TER/R

— = —

=

—#+=A=+-8

WEEMNBARRE : (&

Proportion of
Place of Proportionof  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE AEERE FERERRE
AR ERLE WEBRLA WEBRLA HEBRLA
£ DREAERER TEEK BRITRAFE (AAk) (B2k) (AL
% % %
Henan Delixin New Material Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 = 100% =
Limited company industrialisation ARE
THEFENMHERAR® HE - BRAR BEEZY 30,000,0007C
Luoyang Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 = 100% =
Construction Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
REERBERNERAT® HE - BRAR BEEZY 30,000,0007C
Znumadian Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 = 100% =
Construction Limited*® company industrialisation ARE
S EERBERN ERAR® HE - BRAR BEEZY 30,000,0007C
Hefei Drawin Landscaping Ching, limited liability  Landscaping RMB10,000,000 = 100% =
Construction Co., Ltd.*® company services ARE
AREREMIRAR AR HE - BRAR Epvd v 10,000,000 7
Hefei Drawin Decoration Ching, limited liability  Decoration RMB10,000,000 = 100% =
Construction Co,, Ltd.*® company services ARE
AEEREMTRAR AR HE - BRAR FHRE 10,000,000 7T
*  For identification purpose only * (B E
A Registered as wholly foreign-owned enterprises under PRC N IRBHELEFEF M RN B AR
law
@ Registered as domestic limited liability companies under PRC law @ WRIKFEDEFTMABEANFREFELA]
# Registered as a limited liability company (invested by Hong # REFELZTMABEREFLNR](EER

Kong) under PRC law

B&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2021: (Continued)

note (): The Group holds 97%, 51%, 51%, and 60% equity
interest of Nanjing DIT Limited*, Changsha DIT Limited*,
Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou DIT Limited*, and Nantong China
Minsheng DIT Limited*, respectively. The voting right
shall be exercised in proportion to the capital
contribution, according to the Company Articles. Except
for modification of Company Article, increase or
decrease of registered capital, company merger or
division and change of corporate structure, a resolution
to be made by the shareholders general assembly shall
be subject to adoption by more than half of the voting
rights held by the shareholders. Nanjing DIT Limited*,
Changsha DIT Limited*, Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou DIT
Limited*, and Nantong China Minsheng DIT Limited*
are owned by the Company and are accounted for as
subsidiaries by virtue of the Group's control over it.

note(ii): Qingdao China Minsheng DIT Limited* and Zhoukou

Nengda New Material Limited* have been cancelled
before 31 December 2021.

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include

22 MBATINER &)

@ TRARZ—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H
MEZWEARIRE : (&)

M@ - NEBSH %ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ SERIE A
RAR - RAERBEEREERA
Al EETMBMNERBENEERA
A MEBPRERSEREERA
F97% ~ 51% ~ 51% ~ 60% HIBXHE 1B
BARER  BRESRZHBRFIZRL
B HIITHERRE - RIERARE
E»%Mﬁ%ﬁ¢i%ﬁ$»@ﬂé
PRA T REBEERREEIN  REKX
%m%m@ﬁ%*“z DA _E R RHE
IR R EE © %#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@*“ﬁ
BEREBRAR - RAERBIER
RERAR - BE5MBMEREER
RERAGNEBEPRERSERKE
BRARMEHE  ZETFTARHEAN
RREBNIERK B ARSI -

HiaE() - SSETFRERBDEREBRARRA
O EFMERAREN = =_—F
+-—A=+—B A

23 U EBESFERAHEZEF AR

mNEMEE

NAnBEFEAEZHHABRENESRE

the following: EfFETYEIE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
RZB=-—F R-ZT-ZTF
+=-A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Current; me
— Wealth management product (note (a)) — B ERKEE) 12,231 -
Non-current; E
— Unlisted equity instruments (note (b)) —EEmESTEAZD) 52,003 46,276
64,234 46,276

note (a):  As at 31 December 2021, wealth management product was
acquired from a PRC listed bank and was redeemed on 4
January 2022.

note (b):  As at 31 December 2021, equity instruments are related to
investments in seven (2020: seven) unlisted companies in
Mainland China which are measured at fair value.

M@ R=T=—F+=-A=+—-H BEB—M
FEEMRITEABRMESR  YER=Z
- AMAER -

Kb : R=F=—F+=A=+—H0 #xIA

BEEANARARBEFTENTREAEN L
F(Z2-2F : tH)FLTRARERR -
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24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FHZA=+—RIFE

24 BHERREZEEH

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=B=—% RZFT_FF
+=HA=+—-8H +=-—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITHERNFERE
— Denominated in HKD — LAUBITEHE 18,024 4,062
— Denominated in RMB — UAREEE 443,327 439,820
461,351 443,882
25 RESTRICTED CASH 25 ARHRE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-E-—F AZE=TF
+=HA=+—-H +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Restricted cash BRHIRE
— Deposit for bank borrowings (note (a))  — SRITEERZ S (A1it @) 130,000 130,000
— Deposit for bank notes — RITEZREZS 46,654 89,613
— Others — Hfh 11,063 -
187,717 219,613
note (a):  As at 31 December 2021, certificate of deposit of HK$130.0 M@ RZTZ—F+ZA=+—8B ' TRE

1300 & B TEEMIERAEEEK
122.8 BB THIERY -

million was pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings
HK$122.8 million.
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A IS SRR EE

Fr-A=+—RIFE

26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 fgA
Authorised shares EE KRG
Number of
authorised shares
EERGBEE
As at 31 December 2020 and 2021 RZBEZEFR-_F-—F+=-fA=1+—H 6,250,000,000
Issued shares ERITRG

Number of Ordinary shares

issued shares (nominal value)

(at HK$0.4 each) TER(mE)

ERITROEE HK$'000

(BR0.47%7T) FET

As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZEF+-A=1+—H 2,802,400,730 1,120,960
Issue of ordinary shares in 2021 RZ-ZT = —F&/TERK 300,000,000 120,000
As at 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—F+=ZfA=+—H 3,102,400,730 1,240,960

All the shares issued rank pari passu in all respects.

On 19 November 2021, the Company issued 300,000,000
new ordinary shares at subscription price of HK$0.96 per
share, and received proceed of HK$288,000,000
approximately.

PIAC BRI ES T EEEA RS

\

R-ZZBZ_—F+—A+ThB KARAEHT
300,000,000 B3R 17 - REBE RFTA0.9678
TT + {5 FRIEA) 288,000,000 4 7T ©
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27 RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

OF THE GROUP

27 AEKEHEEAEILGFEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

i ONGE 2PN 3
Contributed
Share Exchange surplus Other Undistributed
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R} EE ENRE SARBREE HitE  ROEEA ekl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BE_E_-%
31 December 2021 +ZRA=+-HLEE
At 1 January 2021 RW_E_—F—F—H 863,905 87,340 131,166 24,810 (78,162) 1,029,059
Comprehensive income: 2EYE
Profit for the year EREH - - - - 132,375 132,375
Other comprehensive income:  E 2 H K
Currency translation difference  SMNEITEEE - 84,604 - - - 84,604
Total comprehensive income for ~ FRZ AN LS
the year - 84,604 - - 132,375 216,979
Transactions with owners: HEBAETHRS
Issue of ordinary shares BTLER 168,000 - - - - 168,000
Share-based compensation R BEROME - - - 11,581 - 11,581
Total transactions with owners BB AE1THR S 168,000 - - 11,581 - 179,581
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ—F
+-A=t-H 1,031,905 171,944 131,166 36,391 54,213 1,425,619
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v',R

Bl IR AR AL

Fr-A=+—RIFE

27 AEEHEEAELGFEE®

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREE RS
Contributed
Share  Exchange surplus Other Undistributed
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RAOBE ELfE SABRBEE Hivkke  RDRER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BZ-2-3F
31 December 2020 +=A=+-ALEE
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-FF-f—H 863,669 (76,794) 131,166 29,439 (236,995) 710,485
Comprehensive income; 2HEKE
Profit for the year EREH - - - - 158,833 158,833
Other comprehensive income:  Efi 2K :
Currency translation difference  SMNEITEZEE - 164,134 - - - 164,134
Total comprehensive income for ~ FRZEHELE
the year - 164,134 - - 158,833 322967
Transactions with owners: REFARTHRS
Capital injection EIN- 236 - - (5,655) = (5,419)
Share-based compensation MR AERNH S - - - 1,026 - 1,026
Total transactions with owners BEAANETNRS 236 - - (4,629) - (4,393)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZF
+-A=1— 863,905 87,340 131,166 24,810 (78,162) 1,029,059
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28

B IR RMIEE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company on 17 July 2020, the Group adopted a new
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).
Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, a total number of
201,850,000 share options was subsequently granted to
selected employees on 30 November 2020. Subject to
certain service and non-market performance conditions,
the granted share options can be vested in several
tranches since 30 November 2020 with a validity period of
10 years.

Movements in the number of share options granted and
their related weighted average exercise prices were as
follows:

FHZA=+—RIFE

28 LIRS ER

REARABRRR-_Z_TFLtA+LEAE
BEVRES - ANEBRA BB 8
(TRERHERT8)) - RIBBEER S &K
201,850,000 17 FEAEBE RN — T —FTF +—
A=ZTERTREBERS - FFEKE ?HW{
KIFMIGRBIGHE - ROOBRES =
“EFE+—-RA=tHERETHES - ﬁxﬁl
HIR104F -

E?ﬁﬁﬂ&%%{ B REARBEINEFAITEED

Weighted average
Number of exercise price per
share options share option

BEBREN

BREEE InfEF 91T EE

Granted on 30 November 2020 RZZEZEF+—HA=+H 201,850,000 HK$1.09
s 1.09% 7T

Forfeited in 2020 RZE_FFRRK (1,950,000) HK$1.09
1.098 7T

Outstanding as at 31 December RZZEZEF+_HA=+—H 199,900,000 HK$1.09
2020 B AR T 1.097% 7T
Outstanding as at 1 January 2021 R-—E=——F—H—H 199,900,000 HK$1.09
mARITIE 1.09%8 7T

Forfeited in 2021 R-ZZTE=—FREIK (3,990,000) HK$1.09
1.09% T

Outstanding as at 31 December RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H 195,910,000 HK$1.09
2021 EE@RE 1.098 7T
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme as at 30 November 2020, the grant date,
was HK$ 27,794,000 and was determined by reference to
the market price of HK$1.09 per ordinary share on the grant
date.

The Group recognised an expense with a corresponding
increase in equity of HK$11,581,000 for the year ended 31

December 2021 (year ended 31 December 2020:
HK$1,026,000).

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

28
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

LARRAR T FR (@)

R-EBE_EF+—A=+HELBH)BE
BEREFERENERENRFTES
27,794,000 T » IIEZER BB BRERE

1.0 TTHI M BEERE °

AEERHE—"T—_—F+_A=t—Hit
F & SR B 2 30 AE FE 45 N4 2= 11,581,000 78
TEHE_Z-_FTF+_A=t—HLEFE:

1,026,000 7T) °

izl

REBAFEZERERIAT ¢

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=B=—-F R-Z_ZTF
+=—A=+—-H +t=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT

Changsha DIT Limited (“DIT Changsha”) BV EREEREBRA
(TRPER]) 563,004 555,608

Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou DIT Limited SEMBMNERSERBEER

NG 74,829 61,915

Nantong China Minsheng DIT Limited MR RERSER
1N 49,779 47,461
Nanjing DIT Limited ARERESEMBEERA 7,106 6,581
694,718 671,565
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29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary
with material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the DIT Changsha that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position —

29 FEFERRHES (@)

BEEREEREZNNBARNMEE
BB
TXHEIEAERFEEHASEMEBEX
HISEEBE SR M BRI E -

MBRREME — RIER

DIT Changsha
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
RZB=Z—F RZZE-_ZTF
+=A=+—-H +t=-—A=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$000
FETT FET
Current TE
Assets EE 470,988 489,239
Liabilities =k (121,516) (145,179)
Total current net assets R e & EFE 349,472 344,060
Non-current FRE
Assets BE 672,002 633,576
Liabilities =X (24,000) (23,315)
Total non-current net assets BIEREEEFE 648,002 610,261
Net assets EEFE 997,474 954,321
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29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 29 3E}ERRHEZS &)

Summarised statement of financial position — BB REBE — RAEXR(F)
DIT Changsha (Continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BE-®--—F HE-T-3F
PSP

IEFEE IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Revenue WA 136,639 198,480

Profit before income tax BRFT18 i A 16,486 23,936

Income tax expenses SR X (1,618) (3,257)

Other comprehensive income H 2w _ _

Total comprehensive income 2HREHEE 14,868 20,679
Total comprehensive income allocated S EEFERERNEZE

to non-controlling interests s 4858 7,285 10,133

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests A JE2R A %5 R 1~ O A% 5. = 5
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29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 29 3JEIEpBH#EZS (&)

Ssummarised statement of financial position — HMBERRRBE — RIVER (EF)
DIT Changsha (Continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-ZE-—F BE_ZT_ZTF
+=-—A=+—-8 +=A -|— =]
IEEE WFE
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHEIT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEHENIRERE 19,037 48,002
Cash flows used in investing activities REEBFANRESRE (40,645) (3,081)
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities @t & EBNFTS, (PR ) B9
BemeE 24,479 (34,411)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 84 &I8& 5 (E1E B 18 11 F5E 2,871 10,510
30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 RIEFASH
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-ZB-—F RZZT-TF
+=—A=+—HBH +-—A=+—H
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Deferred tax assets FIEBIEEE
— to be recovered after more than — BRERB121ME A B Uk
12 months 32,544 25,506
— to be recovered within 12 months — B 12{E A RE 29,201 13,561
61,745 39,067
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEAE
— to0 be settled after more than 12 months — #8121 B 1& &1 (12,200) (12,434)
— 10 be settled within 12 months — R 121E A RER (2,123) (1,179)
(14,323) (13,613)
Deferred tax assets — net RERIEEE — 558 47,422 25,454
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 30 RIEFRBFH (&)
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account BIEPTISTHER B @ EH T ¢
is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-ZE-—F HE-_ZT-FTF
+=—A=+—-8 +=H -I— =]
IEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of the year RED 25,454 32,057
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss (Note 12) &t A/ (1% ) 1825 (Hfs+ 12) 20,902 (8,123)
Currency translation differences INEE T R 1,066 1,520
At the end of the year RER 47,422 25,454

201



DIT Group Limited ~ 2021 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BT IS Rk MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2-—E-_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 30 IRIEFRBFH (&)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities REBE_E-_—ER-_ZET-_ZTF+_H4
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, without —t+t—HULEFE  BEEMESHEENBED
taking into consideration the offsetting of balance within % gE)(WET MER — TSl AR A IE
the same tax jurisdiction are as follows: HIASER) L0 T
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFREHER
Depreciation
Government of fixed
Grant assets Others Total
BRfE BEEEENE Hit mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE--%£-F—H 7,248 6,365 - 13,613
Credited to profit or loss FABR (474) (11) 804 319
Currency translation differences NI E =% 206 173 12 391
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-F
+=A=t- 6,980 6,527 816 14,323
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-Z2F—-H—H 7,304 5,612 - 12,916
Charged to profit or loss NkiER (393) 283 - (110)
Currency translation differences  SMNEHFEZ5 337 470 = 807
At 31 December 2020 R-B-EF
—A=+-H 7,248 6,365 = 13,613
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 30 BRIEFSH @
Deferred income tax assets FEEFTBHEE
Elimination of
intra-group
unrealised Share-based
Movements 28 Tax losses profit ~ Provisions compensation Leases Total
EHEER
A DY R
REEE  A%REA BE  EENHE HE o

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr

At 1 January 2021 WZB--£-f-A 18,300 17,628 2,694 106 339 39,067

Credited to profit or loss AR (5,826) 19,036 7,364 1121 (487) 21,208
Currency translation NEREESD

differences 2,414 (588) (30) 20 (346) 1,470

At 31 December 2021 R=B=-F+ZA=1-H 14,888 36,076 10,028 1,247 (494) 61,745

At 1 January 2020 WZE-E%-5-A 27,800 16,128 900 - 145 44,973

Charged to profit or loss nhEs (9.984) 900 1,626 9 316 (7,03)

Currency translation differences  SNETEZEE 184 593 168 7 (122 1,130

At 31 December 2020 R-E-EE+-A=1-H 18,300 17628 2604 106 339 39,067

Deferred tax assets arising from the unused tax losses have
been recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow such
deferred tax assets to utilised this year in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets relating to
unused tax losses of approximately HK$169.3 million on 31
December 2021 (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$155.8 million).

HEERHAERT G ELERREER AN
FEER  AMARBARAERELENERE
ERBAEECRZE WHRER

R-ZBE-—F+_A=+—H KEELE
HRAEAARSARIBEEBNELHIBEELN
193BERT(ZE_EF+_A="+—
H:#1558A8BT) °
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31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
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B IR RMIEE

FHZA=+—RIFE

31 ESREMEMNFIE

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

R-E-—F —E-TF

+=H=+—H JF—)EJ:JF*EI

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT

Trade payables — third parties BORNFIBE—FE=7H 1,223,820 429,462

Trade payables — related parties = b ,TAIE ezl 10,015 7,082

Amounts due to related parties 1 B RS 205,769 47,890
Accrued payable for property, plant and LE JF?iF%& ﬁL S eSS

equipment construction — third parties HIE—FH=7 68,338 60,531
Accrued payable for property, plant and VI - BB KRB ERES

equipment construction — related parties  FIE — EaH 64,786 75,585

Accrued tax payable FERT RIS 5RIE 62,399 44,080

Notes payable A3 58,977 112,476

Deposits b 15,989 3,649

Accrued payroll EErTE 11,493 11,404

Provision for onerous contract B RS LR 2,318 314

Interest payable FERTFE 256 600

Others HAtb 47,848 42,304

1,772,008 835,377
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31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 31 B 5 R H{E =18 &)

The ageing analysis of trade payables as at 31 December EoOBENRBER _E-_—FR_ZBE_EF
2021 and 2020 based on the invoice issue date were as + A=+ —HEZAAZEZAMNERESIT
follows: I
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

RZBZ—F RZ2_TF
+=—A=+—8 +=—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Less than 1 year DR—EF 1,182,500 405,556
110 2 years —EmMF 51,335 30,988
1,233,835 436,544
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the fair values of trade EA_ngi)&_ E_TFF_HA=1—
and other payables approximate their carrying amounts. B REMENRIENA A EEERR
ETE*E% o
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of EA_E: —FRZBZFF+ A=+ —
trade and other payables are primarily denominated in B REMENFIENEEABEEENUA
Renminbi. Eﬁgéﬂﬁ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2 - ——

FHZA=+—RIFE

32 BORROWINGS 32 88
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-—ZB=-—F ZETF
+=H=+—H JF—)EJ:JF*EI
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Non-current, secured: FEENER - B -
— Bank borrowings —RITER 1,672,723 1,080,707
— Other financial institution borrowings — Hith S RgEER 18,366 25,664
Non-current, unsecured: FERNAR - MR -
— Bank borrowings —RITER 64,212 20,199
1,755,301 1,126,570
Less: Current portion of non-current B REMEFRERNAIE o
borrowings (414,181) (133,547)
Non-current, total FEBNER - 45t 1,341,120 993,023
Current, secured: BVER - AR -
— Bank borrowings — RITER 174,902 241,571
Current, unsecured: BNER - AR -
— Bank borrowings —RITER 249,075 11,881
423,977 253,452
Current portion of non-current borrowings & Hi & 2k &9 BNEAEE 414,181 133,547
Current, total BOER - 45t 838,158 81,180
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@

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B I SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

32 BE @)

Btet -
These bank borrowings of the Group are secured by property, (@) AREBNFRITEEUREEDE  HE KK
plant and equipment (Note 15), right-of-use assets (Note 16) and & (KEzE15) - EAEEE (HE16) RERH
restricted cash deposit (Note 25) of the Group and/or REFER(MaE25) (B R HAATIH B
guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Company or related parties ARk AT (B 35(0)) IR IELR -
(Note 35(c)).
The borrowings are all denominated in RMB and their fair values (b))  FAEREGUAREE  RARBERER
approximate their carrying amounts. HERE -
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's borrowings were (©) RIBE-_—FR_ZE-_FEF+_-_A=+—H
repayable as follows: AEEMNEEEEBROT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R-B=—F RIZZETF
+=A=+-—H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
within 1 year —FA 838,158 386,999
Later than 1 year but within 2 years ZR—FRLRMF 412,626 375,895
Later than 2 years but within 5 years ZRMFRLRAF 784,516 545,839
Later than 5 years ZREF 143,978 71,289
2,179,278 1,380,022
The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31 December @ BEZ_—FRZFTF+_A=+—H

2021 and 2020 were as follows:

E AT BERFIR T -

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

R-B=——F RIZEZETF
+=H=+-—AH +=-—A=+—AH

Bank borrowings RITRE
Other financial institution borrowings Hib BB ER

5.18% 5.22%
7.02% 4.50%
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FHZA=+—RIFE

33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 33 FERELRERMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Cash used in operations (a) ERMARS
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
TE--F HE_ZT_TF
+=ZA=+—-H +=A= -|— B
ILEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Profit before income tax K P15 350 A A 188,033 214,691
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation e 108,690 75,897
Amortisation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 35,501 22,341
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EHH 451 375
Fair value gains on investment KREEFEHENAR
properties BEEkE (29) (260)
Fair value gains on financial assets at NAREBETEAEE
fair value through profit and loss STABENEREERN
AAEERE (3,217) -
Losses on disposal of investment HEREEEERE
properties (216) (97)
Shares of gains/(losses) from associates — FE{GHE 4 A =~
(B18) 28,965 (5,551)
(Losses)/gains on disposal of fixed PERTEEE(BEB),
assets e (5,449) 546
Losses on disposal of right-of-use assets L& AEEEEE (1,199)
Provision for impairment of inventories 77 & R{E B & 1,984 1,165
Provision for impairment of trade and B 5N E M REWIE
other receivables ﬂzfﬁﬁéﬁ 47,111 9,673
Interest income from bank deposits TTF R B U A (5,398) (3,123)
Finance costs mﬁéﬁﬁzzﬁ 56,912 32,948
Share-based compensation AR 0 R AT H B & 11,581 1,026
Operating profits before changes in EEECEHRMNLCER
working capital 463,720 349,631
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash BRFIFESRD (3 m) 31,896 (79,242)
Increase in inventories FEEMN (123,952) (949)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 Kk H M REWFUIEL K
and prepayments TR SRIEIE hN (1,139,249) (448,042)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N Eo A e A BRI AN 903,980 297,565
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities & #& &1, ) 43,332 (37,783)
Cash generated from operations REELNRS 179,727 81,180
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33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 33 HREHLRERMT @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Liabilities arising from financing activities (b) MEEHEENERS
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HiEE REZDELNER
Lease Lease

Deposit for  Borrowings  Borrowings  liabilities  liabilities
bank  duewithin  dueafter duewithin due after Interest
Cash  horrowings 1year 1 year 1year 1year payable Total
—ER -
RiTEE -ER -Ff  UHRE  YHHE
Ré REt  HBEE  YHRE 1| B  ERFER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKs'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TA1T AT T AT T TAT AT AT

Net debt as at 31 December R=F=F&£+=A

2020 =t-BNEFEE 443882 130,000 (386,999 (993023 (13735) (31,544) (600) (852,019
Cash flows Reng (10,487) - 67575 (110,376) 32,677 - 34 (620,267)
Additions — lease iabilites ~ FE—HEAE - - - - (23412 (81,083) - (104,465)
Foreign exchange adusiments &5 38% 27,956 - - (51,902) 4,470 (6,624) - (26,100)
Other changes Hpg

—Reclassification fomafter ~ — B—F#EH

1 year to within 1 year PREEER = = (414,181) 414,181 (13,749) 13,749 - -

—Others () —Hft (i) - = (104,553) - - - - (104,553)

Net debt as at 31 Decemher R=E=—-F+=A

2021 =t-BIMFEE 461,351 130,000  (838,158) (1,341,120  (13,749)  (105472) (256)  (1,707,404)
(i)  Others refer to non-cash transactions of () HMIBEnERREEESEN
additions in borrowings and settlements of KIEMIER SRS °

trade payables.

209



DIT Group Limited ~ 2021 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BT IS Rk MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2-—E-_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

34 COMMITMENTS 34 EiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EREIE
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, capital RZE_—FhN_E_ZTF+_A
expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred is as =+—H: BEIHNEHREENER
follows: AT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=ZB-—F RIZT_TF
+=BA=+-8 +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB KRG 37,664 54,107
(b) Non-cancellable operating lease (b) FABUEKSEHEAE
commitments
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable RETATEBUEELHE  ARPBR
operating leases related to short-term and low-value FABRZEHAREEEHEEEBY
leases not recognized in the financial statements as HEMERNTAT :
follows:
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=ZB=—F R_T_ZTF
+=—A=+—-H +=A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FE&r
Within 1 year —FUA 50 151
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35 ABAERS

(a) Name and relationship with related parties (a) BAEAINEBREHRBER
Name Relationship
£28 @&

Jianye Holdings Limited*
BEEERBRA

Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology
Industry Group Limited*
EREENMBEEEBERA

Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology
Group Co., Ltd.*
EREEEZRMBREERERA

China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., Ltd.*
PRERXEIBRAR]

Jiayao Global Investments Limited (“Jiayao”)
=R (B REARAR ([512))

Drawin Intelligent Construction Design
Company Limited*
EREERERABRR

China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd.*
PRERABRLQR

Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green
Construction Investment Limited*
AP REREEREARAT

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
2 [A — AT AR AR R A

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

B — A AR YR AR AR BR A

NH

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

(R — S AR PR AL BR A 5

X

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
X [B — S AR AR AR SR A

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
2 [A — R AR AR AR B

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

A — AR AR PR AR A BR 42

XA

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
S [A] — B AR AR AR B 2 o)

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

[R] — B AR P2 P AR BR A 6

NH
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35 FEBARS #®)

(Continued)

(@) Name and relationship with related parties () BEM AWM BRBREHBERE)
(Continued)
Name Relationship
=y B

Drawin Intelligent Construction New Material
Ccompany Limited*
ERBEFMBRA

Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate

companies*
EEMERMDARA R RENBAR]

Henan Central China Property Management
Co., Ltd.*
TREXYEEEERAA

Zhengzhou One Family Electronic Technology
Co., Ltd.*
BN —REFREEBR AR

Henan Central China New Life Travel Service
Co., Ltd.*
IEREN A RIREREBRA A

YMCI China Minsheng Kunming Technology
Group Co., Ltd.*
ZEEBTRERMRAR AT

Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology Company

Limited*
MILZEERBHEARAT

212

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

[R] — B AR PR P AL BRI 6

><1H

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

[R] — AR AR P22 R A BR 42

NH

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

l\

R [R— Ex AR PR B A R A

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

l\

R [F — AR R AR R 15
Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

[R] — AR AR PR R A BR 42

)dh

An associate company of the Group
REE B REE N F)
An associate company of the Group
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BBIE RS a0

(Continued)

(a) Name and relationship with related parties () BEM AW BRBKREHEBERE)
(Continued)
Name Relationship
= 2 RE

Xiangxi China Minsheng Drawin Technology
Company Limited*
MR RERBEBREEAA

Hainan Haikong Drawin Technology Company
Limited*
BB ERBENRBRAR

Shaoguan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Limited*
HMAEREERMRERAR

Nanyang Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Limited*
MBEREERBBERA

Baoying Maizheng Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture Technology Limited*
BEREBILERTEMRARAD

Shanggiu Jinyao Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Technology Limited*
B ZEREENRARAT

*  For Identification purpose only

An associate company of the Group
REEAEEE QA
An associate company of the Group
AN SEAL: D)k /N
An associate company of the Group
REEHEBEE AR
An associate company of the Group
REEMEEE AR
An associate company of the Group
REBBEHE A
An associate company of the Group

REB N E AT
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 EABA XS (&)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EHEBEAINRS
During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, REBE_E-_—FR-T_FTF =
the Group has the following related party A=+—BLFE XEBEHEUTH
transactions: G5

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2021 2020
HE-Z-—% H2-T-%F
+=A=+-H t=A + =
EEE LFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Supply of prefabricated construction KEEMERERNER 2R
components and products by the Group, HRER BEAREMBA
including financing component recognized RRERNRME RS
in other income
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group E*” ERR R EEAR
Co., Ltd. NG| 148,803 155,002
Hainan Holding Drawin Construction Technology — /BE/SEERZER AR
Limited NC] 5,483 -
YMCI China Minsheng Kunming Technology Group EfE#ixhREERHEAR
Co., Ltd. NG| 3,795 3,347
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate 32 HERM B R A &) K HHf
companies B 2,950 -
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. PFRERBRAF 1,345 2,961
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology Company MIREEREHEERAA
Limited - 15,005
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company SR B EREERT AR A
Limited - 6,376
162,376 182,691
Supply of decoration and landscaping REE AIES A R B AR
services by Group
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate  EEMERMDBR QD 7] K EH
companies B 373,815 -
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group SRR iEZRFREE
Co., Ltd. BRARA 1,250 -
Zhengzhou One Family Electronic Technology ZbM —=XEFRHEABR A F]
Co., Ltd. 394 =
375,459 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 EABtA XS (&)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EEEBEANRZ (#E)
During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, REBEZE-_—FR=-ZT=_TF+=
the Group has the following related party A=+—BLFE XEBEHEUTHE
transactions: (Continued) ARG (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-Z--% Bz-Z2-%F%
+=-A=+-H +=A=+—H

LEE HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Leasing of properties to related parties HENXTEEHS
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group **7yi DERREIREEER
Co., Ltd. NG| 9,861 5,335
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company &R & skt AR A7)
Limited 4,698 3,218
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology EREEVMREXEEER
Industry Group Limited NG| 2,827 1,539
Drawin Intelligent Construction New Material EREEFTMARD
Company Limited 1,512 1,872
China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., Ltd. PRERXEIBRLA - 87
18,898 12,051
Supply of consulting services by the Group leiimﬁ%;%*ﬁ.l R
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company SR B ER SR AR D
Limited 8,161 =
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group SRS EZZFEEBRER
Co., Ltd. NC 5,369 =
Henan Central China Property Management AEEEMEEREGRAAF
Co., Ltd. 5,115 -
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HRERBR AR 3,603 2,564
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate 331D AR A A & E K
companies B AR 1,995 4,993
Hainan Holding Drawin Construction Technology — /8E/SFE R ZERHEGR
Limited yNC] 433 =
24,676 7,557
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2-—E-_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 EABA XS (&)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EHEBEAMRZ (E)
During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, REBEZE-_—FR=-ZT=_TF+=
the Group has the following related party A=+—BLFE XEBEHEUTH
transactions: (Continued) AR5 (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-E-—F g5-2-%F
+=-A=+-H +=-A=+—H

LFE HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Supply of transferring licenses by the Group ZAEEH{EEZSA
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company £k B ERERA AR D
Limited - 2,575
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group E% EEREEEEER
Co., Ltd. NG| = 2,460
- 5,035
Granting licenses to related parties HIER F 3T T R A
Drawing Intelligent Construction Technology Group £ 7i DEEERNMBERER
Co., Ltd. NG| 34,099 -
Xiangxi China Minsheng Drawin Technology WMARRERBEERET
Company Limited NG| 11,594 -
Nanyang Drawin Intelligent Manufacture MEEREEREARA
Technology Limited 5,456
Baoying Maizheng Drawin Intelligent Manufacture SBEEFSERSERER
Technology Limited NG| 4,547 -
Shaoguan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture HAEREENEERAD
Technology Limited 2,364 -
Shangaiu Jinyao Drawin Intelligent Manufacture MR & ZSERDEREAER
Technology Limited NG| 2,046 -
60,106 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 AR SE @)

(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EEEBEANRZ (#E)
During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, REBEZE-_—FR=-ZT=_TF+=
the Group has the following related party A=+—BLFE XEBEHEUTHE

transactions: (Continued) KRS (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
ai g ﬂi a:l:— = = g
+=-A=+-H +=A=+—H
LEE HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Provision of engineering, procurementand BEFREENIE NIK
construction general contracting services BEAARERYE
by a related party
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group E R EiEREBJREREBER
Co., Ltd. NG| 579,464 175,318
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HRERERA 695 -
580,159 175,318
Provision of design services by a related B R ST RS
party
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company &R & skt AR A
Limited 7,307 1,849
7,307 1,849
Leasing of properties by a related party BRI RUNERE
Central China Real Estate Limited and its affiliate  EEMERAR A& REH B
companies yNC] 4,506 4,336
4,506 4,336
Leasing of equipment by a related party AL RUZERE
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HRERBER AR 2,447 2,283
2,447 2,283
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2-—E-_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 EABtA XS (&)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EHEBEAMRZ (E)
During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, REBEZE-_—FR=-ZT=_TF+=
the Group has the following related party A=+—BLFE XEBEHEUTH
transactions: (Continued) AR5 (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-E-—F g5-2-%F
+=-A=+-H +=-A=+—H

LEE HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Payment on behalf of related parties by the REBRREES N
Group
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group SRS EZ R EBRER
Co., Ltd. NG| 8,347 2,949
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HRERBR AR 2,265 2,139
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company SR B R SR AR D
Limited 523 330
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology EREENBREXSERR
Industry Group Limited yNG] 234 144
Drawin Intelligent Construction New Material EREEFMARDR
Company Limited - 82
11,369 5,644
Payment on behalf of the Group by a related BIH SR RAEE L
party
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology EREEVMREXEEER
Industry Group Limited NG| 22,446 -
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group R EiEERFBREBER
Co., Ltd. NG| 5,159 528
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HREREBRAT 1,228 -
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design Company SR B &R SR AR A A
Limited 516 -
Hainan Holding Drawin Construction Technology — BREEEEREZERER
Limited AA] 479 -
Drawin Intelligent Construction New Material EREEFMARD
Company Limited 20 -
29,848 528
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS FARE T X 5 ()
(Continued)
(c) Related-party balances (c) EAEEFR#EER
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=B=—F RIZ_ZTF
+=A=+-H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
Amount due from related parties PEURBREEE 75 TR 18
Central China Real Estate Limited and its 2 ERMDBR A7 ME
affiliate companies oy ENE 363,135 1,438
Drawin Intelligent Construction FEREERIEEBREAR
Technology Group Co., Ltd. NG 136,909 187,929
Nanyang Drawin Intelligent Manufacture mIFFSEAE &R AR A A
Technology Limited 29,354 —
Baoying Maizheng Drawin Intelligent EREBLERTEREER
Manufacture Technology Limited NE] 24,462 -
Shangaiu Jinyao Drawin Intelligent MrFeRERSEREER
Manufacture Technology Limited NS 22,016 -
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design SR ER LR BRA A
Company Limited 21,531 15,189
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. FRERBRAT 14,685 9,857
Shaoguan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture SBRASER EZERRAER AT
Technology Limited 13,454 -
Xiangxi China Minsheng Drawin MAFRERBEAREE
Technology Company Limited NS 12,162 -
Drawin Intelligent Construction New HEREEFMBRAF]
Material Company Limited 11,298 9,449
YMCI China Mingsheng Kunming Tkt REEREAR
Technology Group Co., Ltd. ~A] 7,801 5,332
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture EREENREXEEGR
Technology Industry Group Limited NC] 7,775 4,508
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology MIZEERBEBRAR
Company Limited 6,019 14,899
Hainan Holding Drawin Construction HREIEEREERE AR
Technology Limited ~A] 1,340 -
Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green AP RERGERERR
Construction Investment Limited NE] 1,136 1,103
China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., Ltd. A RERXEIGRA A 1,088 1,057
Zhengzhou One Family Electronic BN —REFRHEEBRAF
Technology Co., Ltd. 41 -
674,206 250,761
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2-—E-_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BEEARSE @)
(Continued)
(c) Related-party balances (Continued) (c) FEREET4Eer (&)
As at AS at

220

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

R=B=—F R_T_ZTF
+=ZA=+—-H +Z-A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
Amount due to related parties Eﬁl@ﬁ%ﬁ MIE
Drawin Intelligent Construction 7yi DR R EE AR
Technology Group Co., Ltd. /NG| 309,108 130,770
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture HE£RE ﬁ%ﬁfi?%% £l
Technology Industry Group Limited BRA 101,683 12,295
Jiayao Global Investments Limited F=HE( Bﬁ’%) KEERAA]
(“Jiayao") ==
— Current (note (a)) — mE (K1at (@) 77,438 30,975
— Non-current (note (a)) — IERB (HTaE @) 4,000 50,463
Central China Real Estate Limited and its @%ﬂﬂéﬁ%’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂi&ﬁ
affiliate companies iSpEEN 9,778 =
Drawin Intelligent Construction Design £k % i%i&é&ﬁrﬁﬁﬁ
Company Limited 7,094 3,231
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. FRERBRAT 6,838 3,249
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology I EERBEBRAR
Company Limited 2,266 1,114
Hainan Holding Drawin Construction 5@;‘!%%&%5@4&%@
Technology Limited NG 265 -
Drawin Intelligent Construction New ERBEFMARA
Material Company Limited 34 14
Jianye Holdings Limited BEEERERA 8 =
Henan Central China New Life Travel Jﬁ%%%ﬁiémﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ
Service Co., Ltd. [ /NCT 5 -
518,517 232,111
note (a):  As at 31 December 2021, the amounts due to Jiayao Hiit@: RZTE_—F+ZA=+— E FE

Global Investments Limited of US$10.0 million
(equivalent to HK$77.4 million) and HK$4.0 million
were unsecured and bore no interest, and matured
within one year. Subsequently on 14 March 2022,
US$10.0 million (equivalent to HK$77.4 million) and
HK$4.0 million were further extended to July 2022 and
August 2023, respectively.

Save as disclosed in note(a), all other amounts due from or due 53
to related parties are unsecured, bear no interest and are 7
A

i3
%
repayable on demand or within one year. &3

iR

=

f“am

NER(ER)BREBRA
10.05%%%(*@%5@77.45%5%7%)
RAOEEBTABEEAREE - I
ER—FERIH - HER T ——
F£=F+MA - 1008EXT(HE
R774BEET) RAOEEETTE
DAE—FERE-_T-_—_F+ A
E=ZZFE—=FN\A-

t(@) TR ER & 5 - ELAR IR R o R 5 B Bt
UG REER 2R RARERIN—F
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 -_E-_—4F+_-_A=+—HIFE

35 AR SE @)

(Continued)
(c) Related-party balances (Continued) (c) FEREEF4Eer (&)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=-B-—-§ R-ZT_FTF
+=H=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
Guarantee/security for borrowings BB S IREMNE SRR K
provided by the related party
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. PRERBRAF 171,233 218,027
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture FEREERBEXEEEEAR
Technology Industry Group Limited NE] 732,338 119,369
Drawin Intelligent Construction EREERRBEEEER
Technology Group Co., Ltd. NE] 36,693 53,467
940,264 390,863
(d) Key management compensation (d) XEEEASME
Key management includes directors (executive and FEEBEABBREES(ITRIEH
non-executive), chief financial officer, vice presidents 7)) BFEVEE BEXERERED
and assistant presidents. The compensation paid or B-REERBENXNERNETEZER
payable to key management for employee services is ABRMEFIRAT ¢
shown below:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE-ZE-_—§ HE_T-TF
t=A=+—-8 +t=A=+—"H
LFE 1EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
Salaries and other short-term e hEMEEESET
employee benefits 9,669 8,371
Share-based compensation ARRAD B ETEREN £ 4,057 360
13,726 8,731
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2 - ——

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B IR RMIEE

FHZA=+—RIFE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE

36 ARTMNBMBHRRRRFREH

COMPANY
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R=ZB=-—F R-T-TF
+=—A=+—8B +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB N 30 34
Right-of-use assets FREEE 6,282 11,307
Investments in subsidiaries NS NGIE e $ =) 22,405 14,933
28,717 26,274
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables and B 5 Kk EMEWFIANKRTE
prepayments (NESE 1,792,297 1,540,863
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEIER 17,899 3,970
1,810,196 1,544,833
Total assets HWEE 1,838,913 1,571,107
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to owners of RAREE AEEER
the Company
Share capital N 1,240,960 1,120,960
Reserves (note (a)) &t (Mat @) 507,920 356,098
Total equity ERBEE 1,748,880 1,477,058
LIABILITIES 88
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Lease Liabilities HE&E 5,234 6,589
Amount due to related parties JE 1< BB 5 3R IE - 50,463
5,234 57,052
Current liabilities ;ﬁEJJEF
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M E R IR 83,444 32,046
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,355 4,951
84,799 36,997
Total liabilities EEEE 90,033 94,049
Total equity and liabilities ERREEREE 1,838,913 1,571,107

RABOHBRAARR T -__F=H
:JF*EW%%%HU& CWHIATEERR
i%a?i

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2022 and
was signed on its behalf by:

2EE
EFE

e
EE

Liu Weixing
Director

Guo Weigiang
Director
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36 ARTIME IR R R R GEEEED

AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE (#&)
COMPANY (continued)
note: Hiat
(@) Reserve movements of the Company (@) EATNREEZD
Contributed
Share surplus Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
0N
R4 518 BERE Hit R RitER wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZTF—F—H 815,125 157,955 - (596,723) 376,357
Loss for the year FAEE - - - (21,285) (21,285)
Other comprehensive oss: Hitr2EEE : = = = = =
Total comprehensive loss for the year A2 EEEATE = = = (21,285) (21,285)
Share-based compensation AR BERNHE - - 1,026 - 1,026
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZE+-A=+—H 815,125 157,955 1,026 (618,008) 356,098
Balance at 1 January 2021 RZTZ—5—A—HNEH 815,125 157,955 1,026 (618,008) 356,098
Issue of ordinary shares BITERR 168,000 - - - 168,000
Loss for the year FAEE - - - (27,759) (27,759)
Other comprehensive oss: Hit2EES : = = = = =
Total comprehensive loss for the year A2 EEEAE 168,000 - - (27,759) 140,241
Share-based compensation LAR D AETR RS - - 11,581 - 11,581
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZZ—%+ZA=+—H
oFeR 983,125 157,955 12,607 (645,767) 507,920
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2-—E-_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group forthe A&EBERBEREEE HRENELE  SERE
last five years/period is as follows: BT

For the year For the year For the year Fortheyear  For the year

ended ended ended ended ended
31December  31December  31December  31December 31 December
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
BE2-T—+F 2T\ HE-_ TN HE_Z_TF EBE_EBE_-F
+ZA=+—A +ZA=+—R +zZA=+—-H +zZA=+—H +=A=+-H
H&E HFE EEE EFE LEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Results £
Revenue WA 216,587 530,232 695,901 1,089,284 2,085,226
Profit before income tax BRETIS B A& R 112,597 26,243 138,935 214,691 188,033
Income tax expense FTiEHiF X 11,224 (6,903) (25,318) (44,725) (49,056)
Profit for the year FEHF 123,821 19,340 113,617 169,966 138,977
Profit attributable to ADAHAR AR
owners of the Company A 131,719 27,427 110,749 158,833 132,375
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
RZT—tF RIZ-N\F RIT-NF RZIZZTF NIE=-F§
+-A=+-8 +ZA=t-B +zZA=+-H +=ZRA=+—-H +=RA=+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities BEREHE
Total assets BEE 2,867,988 3,358,006 3,466,997 5,213,352 7,560,802
Total liabilities BakE (462,594) 949,477 1,047,954 2,391,768 4,199,505
Total equity BnEs 2,405,394 2,378,529 2,419,043 2,821,584 3,361,297
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